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August 17, 2019

To To

The Manager The General Manager

Listing Department Department of Corporate Services
National Stock Exchange of India Limited BSE Limited

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex 25th Floor, P. J. Towers,

Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051 Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001
Stock Code: SUVEN - EQ Stock Code: 530239

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Notice of the NCLT convened Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Company

With reference to the above subject, Pursuant to Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015, please find enclosed herewith the Notice along with the Explanatory Statement of
the NCLT convened meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company, as directed by the
Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench, order dated 14th August, 2019 directing to convene the
said meeting at KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh
Chambers of Commerce & Industry [FTAPCCI], 11-6-841, Red Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana,
India-500004 to be held on Friday, 20th September, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. for the purpose of
considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed
Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Suven Life Sciences Limited (“Demerged
Company”) and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (“Resulting Company”) and their
respective Shareholders and Creditors under Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Equity Shareholders have been provided with the facility to cast their vote on the
resolution(s) to consider and approve the Scheme set forth in this Notice, either by way of
remote e-voting facility, prior to the meeting or by way of e-voting at the venue of the
meeting. The Company has engaged the services of Karvy Fintech Private Limited, (Karvy),
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company, as the authorized agency to provide
the e-voting facility. The Company will also provide facility to vote through ballot paper at
the venue of the Meeting.
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The schedule of the NCLT Convened Equity shareholders meeting is set out below:

Event

Event date

Cut-off date to vote on NCLT Convened
Meeting resolutions

02-Aug-2019

Commencement of e-voting

20-Aug-2019 at 9:00 a.m. IST

End of e-voting

19-Sept-2019 at 5:00 p.m. IST

The above Notice along with the Explanatory Statement of the meeting is also available on

website of the Company at www.suven.com.

We request you to take this document on your record.

Thanking You,
Yours faithfully,
For Suven Life Sciences Limited

e

K. Hanumantha Rao
Company Secretary

Encl: as above
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SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

Registered Office: 8-2-334, SDE Serene Chambers, 6th Floor,
Road No. 5, Avenue 7 Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana — 500034, India
CIN: L24110TG1989PLC009713
Tel: 91 40 2354 1142/3311, Fax: 91 40 2354 1152
Email: investorservices@suven.com
Website: www.suven.com

NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

CONVENED PURSUANT TO THE ORDER DATED 14™ AUGUST, 2019 OF THE HON’BLE NATIONAL
COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, HYDERABAD BENCH

DETAILS OF NCLT CONVENED MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Day Friday

Date 20th September, 2019

Time 03:00 PM IST

Venue KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh
Chambers of Commerce & Industry [FTAPCCI], 11-6-841, Red Hills, Hyderabad,
Telangana, India—500004.

E-VOTING PERIOD FOR NCLT CONVENED MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

E-VOTING
Commencing on Tuesday, 20th August, 2019 at 09:00 AM IST
Ending on Thursday, 19th September, 2019 at 05:00 PM IST
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FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation Rules, 2016)]

IN THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL BENCH AT HYDERABAD
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA) NO.178/230/HDB/2019

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH APPLICABLE RULES

AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
(“DEMERGED COMPANY”’) AND SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED (“RESULTING COMPANY?”)
AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Suven Life Sciences Limited, A company
incorporated under the provisions of Companies
Act, 1956 with CIN L24110TG1989PLC009713 and
having its registered office at Door No. 8-2-334, 6t
Floor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road No. 5,Avenue
7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034, Telangana | ..... First Applicant Company / Demerged Company

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
PURSUANT TO THE ORDER DATED 14™ AUGUST, 2019 PASSED BY THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY
LAW TRIBUNAL, HYDERABAD BENCH.

To

The Equity Shareholders of Suven Life Sciences Limited (“First Applicant Company” or “Demerged
Company” or “the Company”).

NOTICE is hereby given that, by an Order dated 14 August, 2019 (“NCLT Order”), the Hyderabad Bench of
the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (“Hon’ble NCLT"), has directed a meeting of Equity Shareholders
(“Shareholders”) of the Demerged Company to be convened and held for the purpose of considering and if
thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the Scheme of Arrangement between Suven Life Sciences
Limited (“First Applicant Company” or “Demerged Company” or “the Company”) and Suven Pharmaceuticals
Limited (“Second Applicant Company” or “Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors
(“Scheme of Arrangement”) for the proposed demerger of Contract Research and Manufacturing Services
Undertaking (“CRAMS Undertaking”) of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company under Sections 230
to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules.

In pursuance of the NCLT Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of the Demerged Company will be held at KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of Telangana
and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce & Industry [FTAPCCI], 11-6-841, Red Hills, Hyderabad,
Telangana, India -500004 on Friday, the 20th day of September, 2019 at 03:00 PM IST (“Meeting”), and the
Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company are requested to attend, and to consider and if thought fit, to pass
the following resolution:
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RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Securities and Exchange Board
of India’s Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10 March 2017 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment there of for the time being in force), the Observation Letters issued by BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited, dated 11 April 2019 and 23 April 2019 respectively, the Memorandum of Association and
the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the relevant provisions of any other applicable laws and
requisite approval and sanction of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench (“Hon’ble NCLT")
and/or such other appropriate authority, as may be applicable,if any, and all such other approvals, permissions and
sanctions, as maybe necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed
by any of them while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed by the Board of
Directors of the Company, the Scheme of Arrangement between Suven Life Sciences Limited (“the Demerged
Company”) and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (“the Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders
and creditors (“Scheme of Arrangement”), placed before this meeting, be and is here by approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this
resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/
or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the Hon’ble NCLT while sanctioning the Scheme or
by any authorities under law, including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the
books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper,
and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of aforesaid without being required to seek
any further consent or approval of the Equity Shareholders of Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they
shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

The quorum for the Meeting shall be 30 shareholders (Thirty Shareholders). In case the quorum is not in place at the
designated time,the Meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour and thereafter, the persons present for voting shall be
deemed to constitute the quorum.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that you may attend and vote at the Meeting may vote in person or by proxy, provided
that all proxies in the prescribed form, duly signed by them or their authorised representative, are deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company at Door No. 8-2-334, 6" Floor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road No. 5,
Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500034, Telangana, not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of
the commencement of the Meeting. The form of proxy can be obtained free of charge from the Registered
Office of the Company on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) during 10:00 AM
to 4:00 PM or or at Officeof Legal Representative i.e., Mr. D.V.M. Gopal, Practicing Company Secretary at
6/3/154-159, Flat No.303, 3rd Floor, Royal Majestic, Prem Nagar Colony, Near Banjara Hills Care Hospital,
Hyderabad - 500004, Telangana or can be downloaded from the website of the Company (www.suven.com)

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the NCLT Order and the provisions of Section 230(4) and Section
108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India’s Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10 March 2017, the Demerged Company has provided
the facility of e-voting, so as to enable the Equity Shareholders which includes Public Shareholders (as defined
in the Notes below) to consider and approve the Scheme of Arrangement by way of the aforesaid resolution.
Accordingly, voting by Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be
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carried out through (i) remote e-voting or (ii) through Ballot paper at the venue of the Meeting, to be held on 20th
September, 2019.

Itis clarified that votes maybe cast by the Equity Shareholders by remote e-voting in terms of this Notice and casting
of votes by remote e-voting does not disentitle them from attending the Meeting. However, the members who have
cast their votes by remote e-voting will not be eligible to cast their votes at the Meeting. It is further clarified that
votes may be cast personally or by proxy or by Authorized Representative at the Meeting as provided in this Notice.

Copy of the said Scheme of Arrangement, and of the Statement under Section 230, 232 and Section 102 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder (“Explanatory Statement”)
can be obtained free of charge at the registered office of the Demerged Company on all working days (except
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) during 10:00 AM to 4:00 PM.

Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Mr. Nagaraj Kumar Annabattula, Advocate, an Independent Professional to act as the
Chairman of the said Meeting including any adjournment(s) thereof.

The Scheme of Arrangement, if approved at the Meeting by the requisite majority of the Equity Shareholders of
the Demerged Company, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the Hon’ble NCLT and any other approvals
as may be required.

Explanatory Statement, the Scheme of Arrangement and other annexures as indicated in the index including Proxy
Form and Attendance Slip are enclosed herewith.

Date: 16th August, 2019
Place: Hyderabad
Nagaraj Kumar Annabattula
The Chairman appointed for the Meeting
Registered Office:
Door No. 8-2-334, 6™ Floor,
SDE Serene Chambers Road No. 5,
Avenue 7, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad, Telangana — 500034, India



Notes for the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company:

1.

An Equity Shareholder of the Demerged Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend the meeting and vote in his/her stead, and the proxy need not to be
an Equity Shareholder of the Demerged Company. The instrument appointing a proxy, in order to be
effective, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company, duly completed, stamped and
signed, not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting. A blank
proxy form is annexed to this Notice and can be obtained free of charge from the Registered Office of
the Demerged Company on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) during
10.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m. or at Officeof Legal Representative i.e., Mr. D.V.M. Gopal, Practicing Company
Secretary at 6/3/154-159, Flat No.303, 3rd Floor, Royal Majestic, Prem Nagar Colony, Near Banjara Hills
Care Hospital, Hyderabad - 500004, Telangana or can be downloaded from the website of the Demerged
Company (www.suven.com). All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Equity Shareholders not exceeding 50 (fifty) in number, and
holding in aggregate, not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Demerged Company carrying
voting rights. An Equity Shareholder holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights, may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for
any other Equity Shareholder. Proxies executed/ submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies,
etc., must be supported by appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable. The Proxy-holder shall
prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting. The Proxy(ies) should carry any of their identity
proof i.e. a Pan Card / Aadhaar Card / Passport / Driving License / Voter ID Card/ employee id card or
such other proof at the venue of the meeting.

Corporate / Institutional Shareholders intending to depute their authorized representative(s) to attend
the Meeting are requested to submit at the Registered Office of the Company, certified copy of the Board
Resolution/Power of Attorney together with specimen signature(s) of the representative(s), authorizing the said
person to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting, not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of
the commencement of the Meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote at the Meeting.

The Statement under Section 230 to 232 and Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder (“Explanatory Statement”) is annexed hereto.

Hon’ble NCLT by its Order dated 14 August, 2019 (“NCLT Order”), has directed a meeting of Equity Shareholders
(or “Shareholders”) of the Demerged Company to be convened and held at KLN Prasad Auditorium, The
Federation of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce & Industry [FTAPCCI], 11-6-841, Red

Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana, India —-500004 for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with or
without modification(s), the Scheme of Arrangement.

The Notice, Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying documents, is being sent to all the Equity
Shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members / List of Beneficial Owners received from
National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL") / Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL") as on
Friday, 02 August, 2019 (“Cut-off date”). The Notice will be displayed on the website of the Demerged Company
viz. www.suven.com and on the website of Karvy viz. https:// evoting.karvy.com.

The Notice, Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying documents, is being sent to the Equity
Shareholders in electronic form whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Depositories (in case of
electronic shareholding) or the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (in case of physical shareholding).
However, in case a shareholder wishes to receive a physical copy of the Notice, he/she is requested to send
an e-mail from their registered email ID to investerservices@suven.com / dvmgopal@gmail.com duly quoting
his/her DP ID and Client ID or the Folio number, as the case may be. For shareholders who have requested for
physical copy of the Notice or whose e-mail address is not registered, the physical copy of the Notice is being
sent by the permitted mode.



10.

11.

Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (“SEBI Circular”) issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) as amended from time to time, inter alia, provides that approval of Public
Shareholders of the Demerged Company to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be obtained by way of e-voting.
Since, the Demerged Company is seeking approval of all its equity shareholders (which include the Public
Shareholders) to the Scheme by way of e-voting, no separate procedure for e-voting would be required to
be carried out by the Demerged Company for seeking the approval to the Scheme of Arrangement by its
Public Shareholders in terms of SEBI Circular. The aforesaid Notice sent to the Equity Shareholders (which
includes Public Shareholders) of the Demerged Company would be deemed to be the notice sent to the Public
Shareholders of the Demerged Company. For this purpose, the term “Public” shall have the meaning assigned
toitin Rule 2(d) of the Securities Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957 and the term “Public Shareholders” shall
be construed accordingly.

In compliance with the provisions of(i)Section 230(4) read with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013; (ii) Rule
6(3)(xi) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (iii) Rule 20 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014; (iv) Regulation
44 and other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015; and (v) SEBI Circular, the Equity Shareholders have been provided with the facility to cast their vote on
the resolution(s) to consider and approve the Scheme set forth in this Notice, either by way of remote e-voting
facility, prior to the meeting or by way of e-voting at the venue of the meeting. The Company has engaged the
services of Karvy Fintech Private Limited, (Karvy), the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company, as
the authorized agency to provide the e-voting facility. The Company will also provide facility to vote through
ballot paper at the venue of the Meeting.

Accordingly, voting by the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company to the Scheme shall be carried out
through (a) E-voting (remote e-voting); and (b) Ballot paper at the venue of the Meeting to be held on Friday,
20th September, 2019.

Kindly note that the Equity Shareholders (which include the Public Shareholders) can opt for only single mode
of voting i.e. either through remote e-voting or voting at the venue of the Meeting. If an Equity Shareholder
casts votes by both modes, then voting done through remote e-voting shall prevail and voting at the Meeting
shall be treated as invalid. Further, the Equity Shareholders who have cast their vote through remote e-voting,
may attend the Meeting but shall not be allowed to vote again thereat.

It is clarified that votes may be cast by the Equity Shareholders by remote e-voting in terms of this Notice
and casting of votes by remote e-voting does not disentitle them from attending the Meeting. However, the
members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting will not be eligible to cast their votes at the Meeting. It
is further clarified that votes may be cast personally or by proxy or by Authorized Representative at the Meeting
as provided in this Notice.

Any person, whose name appears in the Register of Equity Shareholders / list of Beneficial Owners as on the
Cut-off date i.e. August 02, 2019, shall only be entitled to vote through remote e-voting or through ballot paper
at the venue of Meeting on the resolution(s) set forth in the Notice. The voting rights of Equity Shareholders
shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of Equity Shareholders / Beneficial
Owners as on the Cut-off date.

The quorum for the Meeting shall be 30 Shareholders (Thirty Shareholders). In case the quorum is not in place
at the designated time, the Meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour and thereafter, the persons present for
voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

Equity Shareholders / Proxies / Authorised representative(s) may kindly note the following:
(i) You are requested to bring copy of the notice to the Meeting;

(i) Attendance Slip, sent herewith, is required to be produced at the venue duly filled-in and signed, for
attending the Meeting;

(iii) Entry to the hall will be in exchange for duly completed and signed Attendance Slips; and
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

(iv) In all correspondence with the Company and/or Karvy, please quote Folio No. or DP & Client Id No., as the
case may be.

The documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be available for
inspection without any fee at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company at Door No. 8-2-334, 6" Floor,
SDE Serene Chambers, Road No. 5,Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034, Telangana, upto 1
(one) day prior to the date of meeting on all working days between 10:00 am to 4:00 pm, (except Saturdays,
Sundays and Public Holidays).

Karvy Fintech Private Limited, Registrars and Transfer Agents of the Company. All investor related communication
may be addressed to Karvy at the following address:

Karvy Fintech Private Limited

Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,

Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500032, Telangana

Phone No. 040-6716 1565, Fax No. 040 - 2300 1153, Email Id: einward.ris@karvy.com

During the period beginning 24 (twenty four) hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Meeting
and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, an Equity Shareholder would be entitled to inspect the proxies

lodged at any time during the business hours of the Demerged Company, provided that not less than 3 (three)
days of notice in writing is given at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company.

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period

Commencing on Tuesday, 20th August, 2019 at 09:00 AM IST

Ending on Thursday, 19th September, 2019 at 05:00 PM IST

During the aforesaid period, the Equity Shareholders (which includes Public Shareholders) of the Demerged
Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the Cut-off date, i.e. August 02,
2019, may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid
date and time, and the remote e-voting module shall be disabled by Karvy upon expiry of aforesaid period.
Once the vote on the resolution is cast by an Equity Shareholder, he or she will not be allowed to change it
subsequently. Equity Shareholders are requested to carefully read the “Procedure and instructions for
e-voting” outlined hereunder.

In terms of the directions contained in the Orders, the Joint advertisement convening meetings of the Equity
Shareholders, the Secured Creditors and the Unsecured Creditors, will be published in (i) Business Standard
newspaper in the English Language (Hyderabad edition); and (ii) Nava Telangana newspaper in Telugu
language (Hyderabad edition).

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme of
Arrangement shall be acted upon only if a majority of persons representing three-fourth in value of the Equity
Shareholders of the Demerged Company, voting in person or by proxy orby authorized representative, by
Electronic Means, agree to the Scheme of Arrangement.

Hon'ble NCLT has appointed, Mr. Lokesh Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary (ICSI Membership No.
A35764) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting through e-voting process and voting at the venue of the
Meeting.

The Scrutinizer shall on conclusion of remote e-voting period, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two
witnesses not in employment of the Demerged Company. Thereafter, the Scrutinizer will submit his report to
the Chairman of the Meeting, after completion of scrutiny of votes cast by Equity Shareholders (which includes
Public Shareholders) of the Demerged Company, through (i) remote e-voting, and (ii) ballot paper at the venue
of the Meeting, who shall countersign the same. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes (including
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e-votes) shall be final. The results of the voting on the resolution(s) set out in the Notice, will be announced
on or before 22nd September, 2019. The results, together with the Scrutinizer’s report, will be placed on
the Company’s website www.suven.com and on the website of Karvy http://evoting.karvy.com immediately
after their declaration, and the results shall simultaneously communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the
Company is listed, viz. BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

20. The resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of Meeting, subject to receipt of requisite number of
votes being cast in favour of the resolution(s).

21. Route map of the venue of the Meeting is annexed to the Notice.
22. Procedure and instructions relating to e-voting:

(A) In case a Member receives an e-mail from Karvy [for Members whose e-mail IDs are registered with
the Company/Depository Participant(s)]:

i). Launch internet browser by typing the URL.: https://evoting.karvy.com.

ii). Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password) which are mentioned in the e-mail received
from Karvy in the following format:

EVEN User ID Password
(E-Voting Event Number)

The E-Voting Event Number + Folio No. or DP ID Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are
already registered with Karvy for e-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password for casting
your vote. If required, please visit https://evoting.karvy.com or contact Karvy at tollfree number 1800-
3454-001 (from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.) for your existing password.

iii). After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

iv). You will now reach password change menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your
password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case
(A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@,#,$,etc.). The system
will prompt you to change your password and update your contact details like mobile number, e-mail
ID, etc. on first login. You may also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your
password in case you forget it. It is strongly recommended that you do not share your password
with any other person and that you take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

v). You need to login again with the new credentials.

vi). On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-Voting event for Suven Life Sciences
Limited.

vii). On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the
cut-off date under either ‘FOR’/'AGAINST’ or alternatively, you may partially enter any number under
‘FOR’/'AGAINST’, but the total number under ‘FOR’AGAINST’ taken together should not exceed
your total shareholding as mentioned therein. You may also choose the option ‘ABSTAIN' and the
shares held will not be counted under either head.

viii). Members holding shares under multiple folios/demat accounts are requested to vote separately for
each of their folios/demat accounts.

ix). Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast your
vote on any specific item, it will be treated as ‘ABSTAINED’.
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x). You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on ‘SUBMIT".

xi). A confirmation box will be displayed. Click ‘OK’ to confirm, else ‘CANCEL’ to modify. Once you confirm,
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xii). Corporate/ Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUFs, NRIs, etc.) are also required to
send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/ Power of Attorney/ Authority
Letter, etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), to
the Scrutinizer at e-mail id: cslokeshagarwalO5@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@karvy.
com. They may also upload the same in the e-voting module in their login page. The scanned image
of the above mentioned documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name_EVENT NO.”

(B) In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice by Post/Courier[for Members whose e-mail
IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)]:

i). User ID and initial password as provided by the Company in a separate letter along with the Notice in
the following format:

EVEN User ID Password
(E-Voting Event Number)

ii). Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (i) to (xii) as mentioned in 22(A) above, to cast your vote.

iii). If you have forgotten your password, you can reset your password by using ‘Forgot Password’
available on https://evoting.karvy.com or contact Karvy at toll free no.: 1-800-3454-001 or e-mail at
evoting@karvy.com.

23. In case of any query/grievance pertaining to e-voting, please visit Help & FAQ’s section of https://
evoting.karvy.com (Karvy’s website) or contact Mrs. C Shobha Anand, Contact No. +91 40 6716 1505,
e-mail evoting@karvy.com at [Unit: Suven Life Sciences Limited] Karvy Fintech Private Limited, Karvy
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500032.
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IN THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL BENCH AT HYDERABAD
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA) NO.178/230/HDB/2019

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH APPLICABLE RULES

AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

(“DEMERGED COMPANY”) AND SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED (“RESULTING COMPANY”) AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Suven Life Sciences Limited, A company
registered under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956 with CIN L24110TG1989PLC009713and
having its Registered Office at Door No. 8-2-334,
6thFloor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road No. 5,
Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034,
Telangana | ... First Applicant Company/Demerged Company

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230, 232 AND SECTION 102 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULES MADE THEREUNDERFOR THE MEETING OF EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED CONVENED AS PER THE DIRECTIONS OF THE
HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, HYDERABAD BENCH

In this Statement, Suven Life Sciences Limited is hereinafter referred to as “Demerged Company” or “First Applicant
Company” or “Company” and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited is hereinafter referred to as “Resulting Company”
or “Second Applicant Company”. The other definitions contained in the Scheme of Arrangement will apply to this
Statement also. The following Statement as required under Section 230 to 232 and Section 102 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, (“Explanatory Statement”)

1

Pursuant to the Order dated 14 August, 2019, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Hyderabad Bench, (“Hon’ble NCLT”), in Company Application CA(CAA) NO.178/230/HDB/2019, a meeting
of the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company, is being convened at the KLN Prasad Auditorium,
The Federation of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce & Industry [FTAPCCI], 11-6-
841, Red Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana, India — 500004 on Friday, the 20th day of September, 2019 at 03:00
PM IST (“Meeting”), for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving the Scheme of Arrangement
between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and their respective shareholders and creditors
(“Scheme of Arrangement”) under Sections 230 to 232 read with section 66 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, provides for demerger of the Contract Research and
Manufacturing Services Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme of Arrangement) of the Demerged Company
to the Resulting Company, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company, and the Demerged
Company will continue to carry out the Discovery Research business. A copy of the Scheme of Arrangement
setting out details of parties involved in the proposed Scheme, Appointed Date, Effective Date, Share Entitlement
Ratio etc., is enclosed as Annexure 1.
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2. The Scheme of Arrangement also provides that, the paid-up equity share capital of 1,00,000 (One Lakh) equity
shares of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company be reduced and cancelled
as provided for and detailed under Part B of the Scheme of Arrangement.

3. In addition to the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company convened on the directions
of the Hon’ble NCLT, to seek the approval of the said Shareholders pursuant to Section 230 to 232 read with
Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the Equity Shareholders of
the Demerged Company is also sought by way of e-voting as required under Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the SEBI Circulars and the Companies Act,
2013.

4. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company at their respective meetings held
on 05th February 2019 approved the Scheme of Arrangement, subject to approval of various authorities, the
shareholders and the creditors of the Demerged Company, inter alia after taking into account the following:

a) The Share Entitlement Ratio Report issued from M/s. Karvy & Co., Chartered Accountants dated 05th
February 2019 for issue of shares pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement.

b) The Fairness Opinion issued by Ernst & Young Merchant Banking Services Private Limited, Independent
SEBI Registered Merchant Banker dated 05th February 2019 on the fairness of the Share Entitlement
Ratio.

c) Statutory Auditors Certificate dated 05th February 2019 issued by M/s. Tukaram & Co LLP, Independent
Auditors of the Demerged Company in relation to the accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme of
Arrangement.

Copy of the Share Entitlement Ratio Report and Fairness Opinion is enclosed to this Notice as Annexure 2
and Annexure 3 respectively.

5. Based upon the recommendations of the Audit Committee and on the basis of the evaluations, the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company has come to the conclusion that the Scheme of Arrangement is in the
best interest of the Company, its shareholders and other stake holders.

6. As required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India’s Circular bearing no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21
dated 10 March 2017 (“SEBI Circular”), the Demerged Company has filed the Complaints Report with BSE
Limited on 14th March 2019 and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited on 16th April 2019. After filing
of the Complaints Reports,the Demerged Company has not received any complaints. A copy of the Complaints
Report filed with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited is enclosed as Annexure 4 to this
Notice.

7. Background of Companies
7.1. List of the Companies involved in the Scheme of Arrangement:
7.1.1. Suven Life Sciences Limited (First Applicant Company/ Demerged Company/ Company)

7.1.2.  Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (Second Applicant Company/ Resulting Company)
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7.2. Details of the companies to the Scheme of Arrangement:
7.2.1. Suven Life Sciences Limited

a) Suven Life Sciences Limited (“First Applicant Company” or “Demerged Company” or
“Company”) is a Public Company (Listed) which was originally incorporated on 9 March 1989,
in the erstwhile State of Andhra Pradesh under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with
the Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad, under the name and style of “Suven Pharmaceuticals
Pvt. Ltd". With effect from 4 January 1995, the name of the Demerged Company was changed
to Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited as per provisions of Section 31(1) / 44 of the Companies Act,
1956. Thereafter, on 20 September 2003, the Demerged Company had changed its name to
Suven Life Sciences Limited.

b) The Corporate Identification = Number (CIN) of the Demerged Company is
L24110TG1989PLC009713 and the Permanent Account Number (PAN) is AADCS4044C. The
equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and BSE Limited (“Stock Exchanges”).

c) The Registered Office of the Demerged Company is situated at Door No. 8-2-334, 6th Floor, SDE
Serene Chambers, Road No. 5, Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034, Telangana. The
email address of the Demerged Company is khrao@suven.com.

d) The main objects of the Demerged Company are set out in the Memorandum of Association are
as under:

i.  To manufacture, refine, purchase, sell, prepare, import, export all classes and kinds of drugs
including pharmaceuticals preparations and formulations, fine chemicals, raw-materials and
intermediates for drugs and all other pharmaceuticals such as tablets, injectables, syrups,
powders, ointments, aerosols, capsules and liquids, for human consumption.

ii. To buy, sell, Import, export, manufacture and treat, and deal in all kinds of chemicals,
biologicals, cosmetics, insecticides, agrochemicals, pesticides, hormones, medicated soaps
and foods.

iii. Torenderprofessional and Technical Consultancy and advice to any individual firm, Company,
Government and Statutory Undertaking or Corporation or any other body carrying on any
business whatsoever in the field of Design and Engineering, Research and Development,
Business, Industrial and General Management relating to Chemical and Pharmaceutical
Industries.

iv.  To undertake, promote, encourage, initiate, assist and engage in all kinds of research and
development work and to set up laboratories and other facilities required for the same and to
render such assistance monetary or otherwise as may be required for that purpose.

v. To undertake all kinds of Research & Development in health-care, biotechnology,
pharmaceuticals and formulations not specifically covered aforesaid, and, in particular and
without prejudice to the generality, to undertake clinical research, contract clinical research
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activities, bio-technology and services, to develop new products and provide support services
for developing new products and substitutes for imported products and for manufacture and
distribution of finished dosage forms and establishing pharmaceutical market networks.

vi. To establish, run and maintain hospitals, diagnostics centres, nursing homes, mobile medical
service centres and any medical and health care institution and to promote research and
development in these areas.

e) The Demerged Company has two business verticals:

+ Contract Research and Manufacturing Services (“CRAMS”) — CRAMS division of the
Demerged Company is engaged in development and manufacturing of New Chemical Entity
(NCE) based Intermediates, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API), Specialty chemicals
and formulated drugs under Contract Research and Manufacturing Services for global
pharmaceutical, biotechnology and chemical companies.

» Discovery or Research and Development (“Discovery Research”) — Discovery Research
division ofthe Demerged Company is focused on discovering, developing and commercializing
novel pharmaceutical products, which are first in class or best in class CNS (Central Nervous
System) therapies using GPCR targets for the treatment of cognitive impairment associated
with neurodegenerative disorders like Alzheimer’s disease, Attention Deficient Hyperactivity
Disorder (ADHD), Huntington’s disease, Parkinson and Schizophrenia, Major Depressive
Disorders (MDD) and sleep disorders like Narcolepsy etc.

f)  There was no change in the name, registered office and object of the Demerged Company during
the last five years.

g) The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company as on
31 March 2019 was as set out below:

Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised share capital
40,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each 40,00,00,000
Total 40,00,00,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

12,72,82,478 fully-paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- 12,72,82,478
each
Total 12,72,82,478

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in authorised, issued, subscribed and
paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company.

h) The details of the present Promoter(s) and Directors of the Demerged Company along with their
addresses are as follows:
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Details of the Promoters

S No

Name

Address

1.

Mr. Venkateswarlu Jasti

Plot No. 396, Road No. 22B, Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad, 500033, Telangana, India

Mrs. Sudharani Jasti

Plot No. 396, Road No. 22B, Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad, 500033, Telangana, India

Mrs. Madhavi Jasti

Plot No. 396, Road No. 22B, Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad, 500033, Telangana, India

Ms. Kalyani Jasti

Plot No. 396, Road No. 22B, Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad, 500033, Telangana, India

Ms. Sirisha Jasti

Plot No. 396, Road No. 22B, Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad, 500033, Telangana, India

Jasti Property and Equity Holdings
Private Limited

(In its capacity as, sole trustee of the
Jasti Family Trust)

Plot No. 396, Road No. 22B, Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad, 500033, Telangana, India

Details of the Directors

SNo

Name and Designation

Address

Mr. Venkateswarlu Jasti

Plot No. 396, Road No. 22B,

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer| Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, 500033,

(DIN: 00278028)

Telangana, India

Mrs. Sudharani Jasti
Whole time Director
(DIN: 00277998)

Plot No. 396, Road No. 22B,
Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, 500033,
Telangana, India

Mr. Seyed Ehtesham Hasnain
Non Executive Director
(DIN: 02205199)

13, West Avenue lit Campus,
Hauz Khas, South Delhi, Delhi
1100186, India

Mr. Rangaswamy Naidu Maripuri
Independent Non Executive Director
(DIN: 00143836)

8-2-467/5, Road No. 5,
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, 500034,
Telangana, India

Mr. Govinda Prasad Dasu
Independent Non Executive Director
(DIN: 00160408)

8-3-222/C/1/19 A-8 Madhura
Nagar Ameerpet Hyderabad
500038Telangana, India

Mr. Muddusetty Gopalakrishna
Independent Non Executive Director
(DIN: 00088454)

12-2-823/A/23, Santosh Nagar
Mehdi Patnam, Hyderabad-500028
Telangana, India
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SNo Name and Designation Address

7. | Mr. Santanu Mukherjee Flat No. 303, E Tower
Independent Non Executive Director mydiome Ash:ja’ Obppd|_r|‘_°|rb't Mall
] adhapur, Hyderabad Telangana,
(DIN: 07716452) ndia 500034
8. | Mrs. Ananthasai Padmaja Jasthi Sr. Officers Qtrs, Q. No. 2, Shourya
Independent Non Executive Director Bhavanam Campus MLA Colony,

Road No 10-C, Jubilee Hills
Hyderabad 500033 Telangana,
India

(DIN: 07484630)

i)  Theamountdue to the Unsecured Creditors and the Secured Creditors of the Demerged Company
as at 31 March 2019 is INR 67,96,66,585.15/- (Rupees Sixty Seven Crores Ninety Six Lakhs
Sixty Six Thousand Five Hundred Eighty Five and Fifteen Paisa Only) and INR 50,02,20,408/-
(Rupees Fifty Crores Two Lakhs Twenty Thousand Four Hundred and Eight Only) respectively.

7.2.2. Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

a) Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (“Second Applicant Company” or “Resulting Company”)is a
Public Company which was incorporated on 6 November 2018 in the State of Telangana, under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad under the name
and style of “Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited”,

b) The Corporate Identification Number of the Resulting Company is U24299TG2018PLC128171
and the PAN is ABBCS1159F. The Resulting Company is an unlisted Public Limited Company.

c) The Registered Office of the Resulting Company is situated at #8-2-334, SDE Serene Chambers,
6th Floor, Avenue 7, Road No. 5, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034, Telangana.The email address
of the Resulting Company is khrao@suven.com.

d) The objects of the Resulting Company as set out in the Memorandum of Association which are
considered as main objects are as under:

i.  To manufacture, refine, purchase, sell, prepare, import, export all classes and kinds of drugs
including pharmaceuticals preparations and formulations, fine chemicals, raw materials and
intermediates for drugs and all other pharmaceuticals such as tablets, injectables, syrups,
powders, ointments, aerosols, capsules and liquids, for human consumption. To carry on
the business of manufacturing, buying, selling, importing, exporting or otherwise dealing in
nutraceutical products, medical, pharma and biotech products and agro-biotech products,
including vaccines for prevention and cure of certain diseases among human beings and
animals.

i. To buy, sell, Import, export, manufacture and treat, and deal in all kinds of chemicals,
biologicals, cosmetics, insecticides, agrochemicals, pesticides, hormones, medicated
soaps and foods. To Manufacture, process, refine, formulate, purchase, sell, import, export,
distribute and/or deal with, all kinds of organic as well as inorganic materials, all kinds of
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iv.

Vi.

drugs, nutriments, nutraceuticals, phytochemicals, active pharmaceutical ingredients,
functional foods, therapeutic preparations, dietary supplements, pharmaceuticals, allopathic
and/or veterinary, including bulk drugs and intermediates, organic compounds, acids,
vitamins, medicines from fermentation and synthetic routes and/or diagnostics.

To render professional and Technical Consultancy and advice to any individual firm, Company,
Government and Statutory Undertaking or Corporation or any other body carrying on any
business whatsoever in the field of Design and Engineering, Research and Development,
Business, Industrial and General Management relating to Chemical and Pharmaceutical
Industries.

To undertake, promote, encourage, initiate, assist and engage in all kinds of research and
development work and to set up laboratories and other facilities required for the same and to
render such assistance monetary or otherwise as may be required for that purpose.

To undertake all kinds of Research & Development in health-care, biotechnology,
pharmaceuticals and formulations not specifically covered aforesaid, and, in particular and
without prejudice to the generality, to undertake clinical research, contract clinical research
activities, bio-technology and services, to develop new products and provide support services
for developing new products and substitutes for imported products and for manufacture and
distribution of finished dosage forms and establishing pharmaceutical market networks.

To establish, run and maintain hospitals, diagnostics centres, nursing homes, mobile medical
service centers and any medical and health care institution and to promote research and
development in these areas.

e) The Resulting Company is engaged in the business of development and manufacturing of New
Chemical Entity (NCE) based Intermediates, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API), Specialty
chemicals and formulated drugs under contract research and manufacturing services for global
pharmaceutical, biotechnology and chemical companies.

f)  There hasbeenno change inthe name and object of the Resulting Company since its incorporation.
There has been a change in the registered office of the Resulting Company from Plot No 396, Road
No 22B, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana — 500 033 to # 8-2-334, SDE Serene Chambers, 6th
Floor, Avenue 7, Road No. 5, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034, Telangana.

0g) The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company as on 31
March 2019 was as under:

Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised share capital
10,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 1/- each 10,00,000
Total 10,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
1,00,000 Equity Shares of INR1/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000
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Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in authorised, issued, subscribed and
paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company.

h) The details of the present promoter(s) and directors of Resulting Company along with their addresses
are as follows:

Details of the Promoters

S No Name Address

1. | Suven Life Sciences Limited Door No. 8-2-334, 6th Floor, SDE Serene
Chambers, Road No. 5, Avenue 7, Banjara
Hills, Hyderabad - 500034, Telangana, India.

Details of the Directors

S No Name Address

Mr. Govinda Prasad Dasu # 8-3-222/C/1/19, A-8, Madhura Nagatr,

1. | Non-Executive Director Ameerpet, Hyderabad 500038 Telangana,
(DIN: 00160408) India
Mr. Sunder Venkatraman Flat No. 1202, Block N, Aparna Sarovar,

> | Non-Executive Director Kanchi Gachibowli Road, Serilingampally,
(DIN: 00300628) Hyderabad 500046 Telangana, India
Mr. Subba Rao Parupally 2-23-600/1, Plot No. 691, HMT Hills

3. | Non-Executive Director Colony, Near Jala Vayu Vihar Road,
(DIN: 00296951) :f][ékaatpa”y, Hyderabad 500085 Telangana,

i

i)  The amount due to the Unsecured Creditor of the Resulting Company as at 31 March 2019 is INR
1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only).

8. Relationship subsisting between the parties to the Scheme of Arrangement

8.1. The Resulting Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company. Further Mr. Govinda
Prasad Dasu is a common Director in both the Companies.

9. Details of the Board Meeting at which the Scheme of Arrangement was approved by the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company including the name of the Directors
who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not vote or
participate on such resolution.

9.1. The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company vide its resolution passed in the Board Meeting held on
5 February 2019, had unanimously approved the Scheme of Arrangement. Out of total 8 Directors of the
Demerged Company, 7 Directors were present in the Meeting, all of whom voted in favour of the resolution.
The details of voting by Directors on the resolution is as under:
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Name of the Director and Designation Vote in Favour | Voted Against | Did not vote or

participate
Mr. Venkateswarlu Jasti Yes - -
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. Sudharani Jasti - - Absent

Whole time Director

Mr. Seyed Ehtesham Hasnain Yes - -
Non Executive Director

Mr. Rangaswamy Naidu Maripuri Yes - -
Independent Non Executive Director

Mr. Govinda Prasad Dasu Yes - -
Independent Non Executive Director

Mr. Muddusetty Gopalakrishna Yes - -
Independent Non Executive Director

Mr. Santanu Mukherjee Yes - -
Independent Non Executive Director

Mrs. Ananthasai Padmaja Jasthi Yes - -
Independent Non Executive Director

9.2. The Board of Directors of the Resulting Company vide its resolution passed in the Board Meeting held on
5 February 2019, had unanimously approved the Scheme of Arrangement. Out of total 3 Directors of the
Resulting Company, 3 Directors were present in the Meeting, all of whom voted in favour of the resolution. The
details of voting by Directors on the resolution is as under:

Name of the Director and Designation Vote in Favour | Voted Against | Did not vote or
participate

Mr. Govinda Prasad Dasu Yes - -
Non Executive Director

Mr. Sunder Venkatraman Yes - -
Non Executive Director

Mr. Subba Rao Parupally Yes - -
Non Executive Director

The Board Resolution of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company approving the Scheme of
Arrangement is attached as Annexure 5 and Annexure 6 respectively.

10. Rationale of the Scheme of Arrangement

10.1. The Demerged Company is inter alia engaged in two business verticals, namely: the Contract
Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking and the Discovery Research Undertaking.
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10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.4.1.

10.4.2.

10.4.3.
10.4.4.
10.4.5.

10.4.6.

10.4.7.

10.4.8.

The Scheme of Arrangement involves Demerger of the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services
Undertaking of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company.

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company believe that the
risk and reward associated with each of the aforesaid business verticals are different. In order to
segregate the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking with that of the Discovery
Research Undertaking, it is intended to demerge the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services
Undertaking on a going concern basis into its wholly owned subsidiary with a resultant mirror image
shareholding.

The demerger, transfer and vesting of the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking
on a going concern basis to the Resulting Company would result in better and efficient control and
management for the segregated businesses and promote their growth. Further, it would also result in
the following benefits:

The demerger would facilitate focused growth, operational efficiencies, business synergies and
increased operational and customer focus in relation to the Contract Research and Manufacturing
Services Undertaking in the Resulting Company and the Discovery Research Undertaking in the
Demerged Company. The demerger would thus provide a platform for having a concentrated approach
towards development of the respective business verticals.

Focused business approach for the maximization of benefits to all the shareholders and opportunities
for growth.

Operational rationalization, organization efficiency and optimum utilization of various resources.
Ability to leverage financial and operational resources of each business.

Each business would be able to address independent business opportunities, pursue efficient capital
allocation and attract different sets of investors, strategic partners, lenders and other stakeholders.

The proposed demerger will enhance value for shareholders and allow a focused strategy in operation
of the respective business verticals which would be in the best interest of the Demerged Company
and the Resulting Company, shareholders, creditors and all persons connected therewith.

The segregation is also expected to unlock the value of the business verticals of the Demerged
Company.

There is no likelihood that the interests of any shareholder or creditor of either the Demerged
Company or the Resulting Company would be prejudiced as a result of the Scheme of Arrangement.
The demerger will not impose any additional burden on the members of Demerged Company or the
Resulting Company. The Scheme of Arrangement is not in any manner prejudicial or against public
interest and would serve the interest of all shareholders, creditors and stakeholders.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company have
formulated this Scheme of Arrangement. Further, the Scheme of Arrangement also provides for capital
reduction in the Resulting Company of the existing share capital held by the Demerged Company
under Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions.
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11. Salient features / details / extract of the Scheme of Arrangement

The proposed Scheme of Arrangement between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and
their respective shareholders is presented under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The salient features of the Scheme of Arrangement are as under:

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall make applications and/or petitions under
Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the Hon’ble NCLT for sanction of this Scheme of Arrangement and all matters ancillary or incidental
thereto.

The whole of the undertaking, business, activities, operations, assets, liabilities and employees of the
CRAMS Business of the Demerged Company, shall stand transferred to and vested in and/or deemed
to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company so as to vest in the Resulting Company all
the rights, title and interest pertaining to the CRAMS Business.

“Appointed Date” means 1 October 2018 or such other date as may be decided or approved by the
Hon’ble NCLT or such other appropriate authority.

“Effective Date” means the date or last of the dates on which the certified copy of the order, issued
by the Hon’ble NCLT, sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement is filed by the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company with the Registrar of Companies, Telangana at Hyderabad.

The Scheme of Arrangement inter-alia provides for:

a) The manner of vesting and transfer of the assets pertaining to the Contract Research and
Manufacturing Services Undertaking of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company.

b) The transfer of contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, arrangements, assurances and other
instruments of whatsoever nature pertaining to Contract Research and Manufacturing Services
Undertaking of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company.

c) The transfer of all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations pertaining to the Contract Research and
Manufacturing Services Undertaking of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company.

d) The transfer of all legal proceedings by or against the Contract Research and Manufacturing
Services Undertaking of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company.

Consideration:

a) Upon the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective and upon the demerger, transfer and
vesting of the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking of the Demerged
Company in the Resulting Company, in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement, the Resulting
Company shall, without any further application or deed, issue and allot equity shares credited as
fully paid-up, to the extent indicated below, to the members of the Demerged Company, holding
fully paid up equity shares in the Demerged Company and whose names appear in the Register
of Members of the Demerged Company on the Record Date or to such of their respective heirs,
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executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in title as may be
recognized by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company in the following manner:

“1 (One) fully paid up Equity Share of INR 1/- (Rupee One Only) each of the Resulting Company
shall be issued and allotted for every 1 (One) fully paid up equity share of INR 1/- (Rupee One
Only) each held in the Demerged Company”

b) The equity shares in the Resulting Company to be issued to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company shall be subject to the Scheme of Arrangement, the Memorandum of Association and
the Articles of Association of the Resulting Company, and shall rank pari passu with the existing
equity shares of the Resulting Company in all respects including for the purpose of any dividend
declared after the Scheme of Arrangement becomes effective.

c) The equity shares of the Resulting Company shall be listed on the BSE Limited and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, on which the shares of the Demerged Company are listed as
on the Effective Date. The Resulting Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such
confirmations and/or undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with the applicable laws
or regulations for complying with the formalities of the said the Stock Exchanges.

11.7. Reduction of Share Capital held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company:

a) Uponthe Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective and upon the issue of shares by the Resulting
Company in accordance with Clause 6.1 of the Scheme of Arrangement, the existing 1,00,000
equity shares of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company, as on
the Effective Date, shall without any application or deed, stand cancelled without any payment.

b) The reduction of share capital of the Resulting Company shall be affected as an integral part
of the Scheme of Arrangement and the Resulting Company shall not be required to follow the
process under Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other provisions of Applicable Law
separately.

c) The reduction would not involve either a diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share capital, if
any or payment to any shareholder of any unpaid share capital. Notwithstanding the reduction in
the equity share capital of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall not be required
to add “And Reduced” as suffix to its name.

d) The approval of the Scheme of Arrangement by the shareholders of the Resulting Company shall
be deemed to have the approval for the purpose of effecting the capital reduction in the Resulting
Company under Section 66 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and no further resolutions would be required to be separately passed in this regard.

e) The application and reduction of Securities Premium Account of the Demerged Company, as
above, shall be affected as an integral part of this Scheme of Arrangement and the Demerged
Company shall not be required to follow the process under Section 66 of the Act or any other
provisions of Applicable Law separately. The reduction would not involve either a diminution of
liability in respect of unpaid share capital, if any or payment to any shareholder of any unpaid
share capital. Notwithstanding the reduction in the Securities Premium Account of the Demerged
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Company, the Demerged Company shall not be required to add “And Reduced’ as suffix to
its name. The approval of this Scheme of Arrangement by the shareholders of the Demerged
Company shall be deemed to have the approval for the purpose of effecting the capital reduction
in the Demerged Company under Section 66 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and no further resolutions would be required to be separately passed in this
regard.

11.8.  Accounting Treatment:
11.8.1. In the books of the Demerged Company
Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme of Arrangement and with effect from the Appointed Date:

a) The Demerged Company, as on the Appointed Date, shall reduce the book value of assets and
liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company from the book value of assets and liabilities as appearing in its books.

b) The Securities Premium Account, General Reserve and Retained earnings of the Demerged
Company, as on the Appointed Date, shall be apportioned between the Resulting Company and
the Demerged Company on the basis of net assets transferred to the Resulting Company and net
assets retained by the Demerged Company.

c) The difference, if any, between the net assets (difference between the book value of assets
and liabilities as on the Appointed Date) and transfer of reserves as provided in Clause 9.2 of
the Scheme of Arrangement along with any accounting adjustments, shall be adjusted against
General Reserve of the Demerged Company.

d) Investments in the equity share capital of the Resulting Company will stand cancelled as per
Clause 8.1 of the Scheme of Arrangement and be debited to the General Reserve of the Demerged

Company.
11.8.2. In the books of the Resulting Company
Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date:

a) The Demerger will be accounted in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 103 —
Business Combination as notified under Section 133 of the Act read together with paragraph 3 of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

b) The Resulting Company, as on the Appointed Date, shall record the assets and liabilities
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred to and vested in it pursuant to this Scheme
of Arrangement at their respective book values, excluding revaluation, if any, as appearing in the
books of the Demerged Company.

¢) The Resulting Company shall record the Securities Premium Account, General Reserve, Retained
Earnings transferred to and vested in it pursuant to Clause 9.2.0f the Scheme of Arrangement.

d) Upon coming into effect of the Scheme of Arrangement, the shareholding of the Demerged
Company in the Resulting Company shall be cancelled and the amount of such share capital, as
stands cancelled, be credited to General Reserve.
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e) The Resulting Company shall credit to its share capital in its books of account, the aggregate face
value of the new equity shares issued by it to the members of the Demerged Company pursuant
to Clause 6.1 of the Scheme of Arrangement.

f)  The excess of assets over the liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking transferred to and vested
in the Resulting Company after considering the treatment specified in Clause 9.7 and 9.8 of
the Scheme of Arrangement and after considering the issue of share capital by the Resulting
Company in terms of Clause 6.1 of the Scheme of Arrangement, would be adjusted against the
General Reserve of the Resulting Company.

g) For any matter arising in connection with the accounting treatment, the same would be dealt in
consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company.

h) In case of any differences in accounting policy between the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company, the accounting policies, as may be directed by the Board of Directors of the
Resulting Company in compliance with the Accounting Standards will prevail and the differences
will be quantified and adjusted to ensure that the financial statements of the Resulting Company
reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent accounting policy.

11.9. This Scheme of Arrangement is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

a) The requisite consent, approval or permission of the Central Government or any other statutory
or regulatory authority, which by law or otherwise may be necessary for the implementation of this
Scheme of Arrangement.

b) The Scheme of Arrangement being approved by the requisite majorities of the members and/
or creditors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company as may be directed by the
Hon’ble NCLT.

¢) The Scheme of Arrangement being sanctioned by the Hon’ble NCLT or any other authority under
Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

d) Certified copies of the Orders of the Hon’ble NCLT sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement being
filed with the Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad by the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company.

You are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get fully acquainted with the provisions
thereof. The aforesaid are only some of the key provisions of the Scheme.

12. Effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on various parties:
12.1. Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and Directors

None of the Directors, the KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the
Act and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity
shares held by them in the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and/or to the extent that the
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said Director(s) are common director(s) of the said companies and/or to the extent that the KMPs is
holding shares in said companies as a nominee and/or to the extent that the said Director(s), KMP
and their respective relatives are the directors, members of the companies that hold shares in the
respective companies. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the KMP has any material
interest in the Scheme. There is no effect of the Scheme on the Directors of the said Companies.

Further the effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on the KMPs (as applicable), have been provided
in Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company
pursuant to Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 annexed herewith as Annexure 10.

Details of shares held by the present Directors and KMPs of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company either individually or jointly as a first holder or second holder or as a nominee, in
the respective companies are as under:

Demerged Company

S No Name Designation Number of equity shares
9 held as on 31t March, 2019
1. | Mr. Venkateswarlu Jasti Managing Director and 1,000
(DIN: 00278028) Chief Executive Officer
2. | Mrs. Sudharani Jasti Whole time Director 1,000
(DIN: 00277998)
3. | Mr. Seyed Ehtesham Hasnain Non Executive Director -
(DIN: 02205199)
4. | Mr. Rangaswamy Naidu Maripuri Independent Non 3,500
(DIN: 00143836) Executive Director
5. | Mr. Govinda Prasad Dasu Independent Non -
(DIN: 00160408) Executive Director
6. | Mr. Muddusetty Gopala Krishna Independent Non -
(DIN: 00088454) Executive Director
7. | Mr. Santanu Mukherjee Independent Non -
(DIN: 07716452) Executive Director
8. | Mrs. Ananthasai Padmaja Jasthi Independent Non -
(DIN: 07484630) Executive Director
9. | Mr. K. Hanumantha Rao Company Secretary -
10. | Mr. P. Subba Rao Chief Financial Officer 56,000
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12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

12.6.

Resulting Company

, . Number of equity shares
S No Name Designation
held as on 315t March, 2019

1. | Mr. Govinda Prasad Dasu Non Executive Director -

(DIN: 00160408)
2. | Mr. Sunder Venkatraman Non Executive Director -

(DIN: 00300628)
3. | Mr. Subba Rao Parupally Non Executive Director 1*

(DIN: 00296951)

* Holds as nominee of the Demerged Company

Promoter and Non-Promoter Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Resulting
Company

The effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on the Promoter and Non-Promoter Equity Shareholders,
have been provided in Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company pursuant to Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, annexed herewith as
Annexure 10.

Depositors& Deposit trustee

None of the Companies involved in the Scheme of Arrangement have accepted any deposits and
thus, the effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on any such Depositor or Deposit trustee does not
arise.

Creditors, Debenture-Holders& Debenture trustee

The proposed Scheme of Arrangement does not involve any compromise or arrangement with the
creditors any of the companies involved in the Scheme. The rights of the creditors shall not be
affected by the Scheme. There will be no reduction in their claims on account of the Scheme of
Arrangement. The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of business as and when their dues are
payable. There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner as a result of the
Scheme of Arrangement being sanctioned. Further none of the Companies involved in the Scheme of
Arrangement have issued any debentures and thus, the effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on any
debenture holders or debenture trustee does not arise.

Employees

With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall engage, without any interruption in
service, all staff and employees of the Demerged Company, engaged in or in relation to the CRAMS
Business, on the terms and conditions not less favourable than those on which they are engaged by
the Demerged Company. The Resulting Company undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement/
settlement or arrangement, if any, entered into or deemed to have been entered into by the Demerged
Company with any of the aforesaid employees. The Resulting Company agrees that the services of
all such employees with the Demerged Company prior to the demerger shall be taken into account
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for the purposes of all existing benefits to which the said employees may be eligible, including for the
purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other retiral/terminal benefits.

13. Pre-Scheme of Arrangement and post-Scheme of Arrangement Shareholding Pattern

13.1. The pre Scheme of Arrangement & post Scheme of Arrangement (Expected) - Shareholding
Pattern of the Demerged Company as at March 31 2019:

Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme

Category of the Shareholding Pattern Shareholding Pattern

S No
shareholders Total No. of | As a percentage | Total No. of | As a percentage
Shares of total capital Shares of total capital

(A) Promoters and

Promoter Group
(1) | Indian
(@) | Individual/HUF 5000 - 5000 -
(b) | Central Govt. - - - -
(c) | State Govt.(s) - - - -
(d) | Bodies Corp. 76365000 76365000
(e) | Banks/ FI - - - -
(f) | Any Other.... - - - -

Sub Total (A)(1): 76370000 60.00 76370000 60.00

(2) | Foreign

(@) | NRIs Individuals - - - -

(b) | Other -Individuals - - - -

(c) | Bodies Corp. - - - -

(d) | Banks/FlI - - - -

(e) | Any Other - - - -

Sub-total(A)(2):

Total shareholding
of Promoter 76370000 60.00 76370000 60.00
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

B. | PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) | Institutions

(@) | Mutual Funds 2760735 2.17 2760735 2.17
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Category of the

Pre-Scheme
Shareholding Pattern

Post-Scheme
Shareholding Pattern

S No shareholders
Total No. of | As a percentage | Total No. of | As a percentage
Shares of total capital Shares of total capital
(b) | Banks/FI 266046 0.21 266046 0.21
(c) | Central Govt. - - - -
(d) | State Govt.(s) - - - -
Venture Capital
© | Funds i i i i
(f) | Insurance 129196 0.10 129196 0.10
Companies
(g) | FlIs 7222373 5.67 7222373 5.67
) Foreign Venture i ) i i
Capital Funds
(i) | Others (specify) - - - -
Sub-total(B)(1): 10378350 8.15 10378350 8.15
(2) | Non-Institutions
(a) | Bodies Corp.
(). Indian 4953735 3.89 4953735 3.89
(ii). Overseas
(b) | Individuals
(i). Individual
shareholders holding 25685013 20.18 | 25685013 20.18
nominal share capital
upto 1 lakh
(ii). Individual
shareholders holding 4119407 3.24 4119407 3.24
nominal share capital
in excess of 1 lakh
(c) | Others 5775973 4.54 5775973 4.54
i) | Non Resident Indians 4957077 3.89 4957077 3.89
ii) | NRI Non-Repatriation 451590 0.35 451590 0.35
iii) | Clearing Members 123087 0.10 123087 0.10
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Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
< No Category of the Shareholding Pattern Shareholding Pattern
shareholders Total No. of | As a percentage | Total No. of | As a percentage
Shares of total capital Shares of total capital
iv) | NBFC 80004 0.06 80004 0.06
v) | Trusts 1215 0.00 1215 0.00
vi) | IEPF 163000 0.13 163000 0.13
Sub-total (B)(2): 40534128 31.85 40534128 31.85
Total Public
Shareholding 50912478 40.00 50912478 40.00
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C | Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) | 127282478 100.00 | 127282478 100.00

Note: Since, there is no issue of shares by the Demerged Company pursuant to the Scheme of
Arrangement, hence, the post arrangement Shareholding Pattern will remain unchanged (save and
except routine transfer of shares in physical/demat form).

13.2.

The pre Scheme of Arrangement & post Scheme of Arrangement - Shareholding Pattern of the

Resulting Company as at March 31, 2019 (assuming the shareholding pattern of the Demerged
Company as on March 31, 2019):

Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
S No Category of the Shareholding Pattern Shareholding Pattern
shareholders Total No. of | As a percentage | Total No. of | As a percentage
Shares of total capital Shares of total capital
Promoters and
(A)
Promoter Group
(1) | Indian
(@) | Individual/HUF 6* 0.01* 5000 -
(b) | Central Govt. - - - -
(c) | State Govt.(s) - - - -
(d) | Bodies Corp. 99,994 99.99 76365000
(e) | Banks/FI - - - -
(H | Any Other.... - - - -
Sub Total (A)(1): - - 76370000 60.00
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Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
< No Category of the Shareholding Pattern Shareholding Pattern
shareholders Total No. of | As a percentage | Total No. of | As a percentage
Shares of total capital Shares of total capital
(2) | Foreign - -
(@) | NRIs =Individuals - - - -
(b) | Other —Individuals - - - -
(c) | Bodies Corp. - - - -
(d) | Banks/FlI - - - -
(e) | Any Other - - - -
Sub-total(A)(2):
Total shareholding
of Promoter 1,00,000* 100.00* 76370000 60.00
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. | PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) | Institutions
(@) | Mutual Funds - - 2760735 2.17
(b) | Banks/FlI - - 266046 0.21
(c) | Central Govt. - - - -
(d) | State Govt.(s) - - - -
© Venture Capital
Funds
Insurance
) ) - - 129196 0.10
Companies
(g) | FlIs - - 7222373 5.67
") Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
(i) | Others (specify) - - - -
Sub-total(B)(1): - - 10378350 8.15
(2) | Non-Institutions - -
(a) | Bodies Corp. - -
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Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
< No Category of the Shareholding Pattern Shareholding Pattern
shareholders Total No. of | As a percentage | Total No. of | As a percentage
Shares of total capital Shares of total capital
(i). Indian - - 4953735 3.89
(ii). Overseas - -
(b) | Individuals - -
(@i). Individual
shareholders holding
. . - - 25685013 20.18
nominal share capital
upto 1 lakh
(ii). Individual
shareholders holding
. ] - - 4119407 3.24
nominal share capital
in excess of 1 lakh
(c) | Others - - 5775973 454
i) | Non Resident Indians - - 4957077 3.89
i) | NRI Non-Repatriation - - 451590 0.35
iii) | Clearing Members - - 123087 0.10
iv) | NBFC - - 80004 0.06
v) | Trusts - - 1215 0.00
vi) | IEPF - - 163000 0.13
Sub-total (B)(2): - - 40534128 31.85
Total Public
Shareholding - - 50912478 40.00
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C | Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 1,00,000* 100.00* | 127282478 100.00

* Shares held as nominee(s) of the Demerged Company
14. Pre-Scheme of Arrangement and post-Scheme of Arrangement — Capital structure

14.1. The Pre-Scheme of Arrangement capital structure of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company is detailed in clause 7 above.
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14.2.  The Post-Scheme capital structure is as follows:
14.2.1. Demerged Company:

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, there will not be any change in the issued, subscribed and
paid up share capital of the Demerged Company. However, in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement
the Authorized Share Capital of the Demerged Company amounting to INR 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Twenty Crore only) comprising of 20,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- each, shall be transferred to
the Resulting Company, pursuant to section 66 or any other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, as given below:

Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised share capital
20,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each 20,00,00,000
Total 20,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
12,72,82,478 fully-paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each 12,72,82,478
Total 12,72,82,478

142.2.  Resulting Company:

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and on issue of 12,72,82,478 fully paid-up equity shares of face
value of INR 1/- each in the Resulting Company to the shareholders of the Demerged Company,
except to the Resulting Company itself, in consideration for the arrangement in compliance with the
provisions of section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the issued, subscribed and paid up share
capital of the Resulting Company shall increase to INR 12,72,82,478 divided into 12,72,82,478 of face
value of INR 1/- each, and also in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement the Authorized Share Capital of
the Demerged Company amounting to INR 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crore only) comprising of
20,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- each, shall be transferred to the Resulting Company, pursuant
to section 66 or any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as given below:

Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised share capital
20,10,00,000 equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each 20,10,00,000
Total 20,10,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
12,72,82,478 fully-paid up equity shares of face value of INR 1/- each 12,72,82,478
Total 12,72,82,478

Note: Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the issue of shares by the Resulting Company
in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, the existing 1,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- each
of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company, as on the Effective Date, shall without any
application or deed, stand cancelled without any payment. The reduction of share capital of Resulting
Company shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme of Arrangement.
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15. Approvals/ Sanctions/ No-Objections in relation to the Scheme of Arrangement

15.1.  The Demerged Company had filed an Application with the BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (collectively referred to as “Stock Exchanges”) on 08 February 2019 and
11 February 2019 respectively, for obtaining Observation Letter or No-objection letter, in terms of
Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10
March 2017.

15.2. BSE Limited was appointed as the designated Stock Exchange by the Demerged Company for the
purpose of co-ordinating with SEBI, pursuant to SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10
March 2017. The Demerged Company has received Observation letters regarding the Scheme of
Arrangement from BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited dated 11 April 2019
and 23 April 2019 respectively. BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited have
conveyed their no adverse observations/no objections for filing the Scheme of Arrangement with the
Hon’ble NCLT. Copy of the Observation Letters received from BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited are attached to this Notice as Annexure 7.

16. Summary of Share Entitlement Ratio Report and Fairness Opinion

16.1. The Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated 5 February 2019 issued by from M/s. Karvy & Co, Chartered
Accountants, states that the ratio of one fully paid up equity share of the Resulting Company for
every one existing equity share of the Demerged Company paid to Equity Shareholders of Demerged
Company in consideration of demerger of Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking
would be fair and reasonable, considering that all the shareholders of the Demerged Company, are
and will, upon demerger, be the ultimate beneficial owners of the Resulting Company in the same ratio
(inter-se) as they hold shares in the Demerged Company.

16.2.  The Fairness Opinion dated 5 February 2019 issued by M/s. Ernst and Young Merchant Banking
Services Private Limited, an independent Merchant Banker, provided that the Share Entitlement Ratio
stated in the Scheme of Arrangement and as provided in the Report is fair.

16.3. A copy of the audited Financial Statements of the Demerged Company along with Auditors Report
as on 31 March 2019 and the audited Financial Statements of the Resulting Company along with
Auditors Report as on 31 March 2019 are attached to this Notice as Annexure 8 and Annexure 9
respectively.

17. The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company have made Joint applications before the Hon’ble NCLT
as per Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,2016 for the
sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement under Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

18. In relation to the meeting of the Demerged Company, the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company
whose names are appearing in the records of the Company as on 02nd August, 2019 (cut-off date) shall be
eligible to attend and vote at the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company convened at
the directions of the Hon’ble NCLT or cast their votes using remote e-voting facility.
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19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

The rights and interests of the equity shareholders, the secured or unsecured creditors, promoter members,
non-promoter members, and employees of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company will not be
prejudicially affected by the Scheme of Arrangement as no sacrifice or waiver is at all called from them nor their
rights sought to be modified in any manner. Both the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company does
not have any depositors,debenture holders, deposit trustee and debenture trustee.

Except to the extent of the shares held by the Directors and the KMP, none of the Directors, KMPs of the
Demerged Company or their respective relatives is in any way connected or interested in the resolution forming
part of the Notice.

There is no likelihood that any secured or unsecured creditor of the companies concerned would lose or be
prejudiced asa result of the Scheme of Arrangement being passed since no sacrifice or waiver is at all called
for from them nor are their rights sought to be modified in any manner. Hence, the arrangement will not cast
any additional burden on the shareholders or creditors of either company nor will it affect the interest of any of
the shareholders or creditors. As far as the employees of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company
are concerned there would not be any change in their terms of employment on account of the Scheme.

No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending under the Companies Act, 2013 against the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

As directed by the Hon’ble NCLT, the Notice pursuant to Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the
prescribed format along with a copy of the Scheme of Arrangement, the Statement and the disclosures provided
herewith will be served within the prescribed time on the Statutory Authorities, as applicable.

Availability of documents for obtaining extract/ copies or for inspection, etc.,

The following documents will be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company at
Door No. 8-2-334, 6" Floor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road No. 5, Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad —
500034, Telangana, upto 1 (one) day prior to the date of meeting on all working days between 10:00 AM to

04:00 PM (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays):
24.1.  Certified copy of the Order dated 14th August, 2019 passed by the Hon’ble NCLT in Original Joint

Company Application No. CA(CAA) NO.178/230/HDB/2019 made by the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company.

24.2.  Copy of Joint Company Application No. CA(CAA) NO.178/230/HDB/2019 made by the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company

24.3.  Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company.

24.4.  Copy of the Audited Financial Statements along with Auditors Report as on 31 March 2019 of the
Demerged Company.

24.5.  Copy of the Audited Financial Statements along with Auditors Report as on 31 March 2019 of the
Resulting Company.

24.6.  Copy of the Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated 05th February 2019 issued by M/s. Karvy & Co,
Chartered Accountants.
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24.7.

24.8.

24.9.

24.10.

24.11.

24.12.

24.13.

24.14.

24.15.

24.16.
24.17.

24.18.

Copy of the Fairness Opinion dated 05th February 2019 and 18th March 2019 issued by Ernst &
Young Merchant Banking Services Private Limited, Independent SEBI Registered Merchant Banker.

Copy of the Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company confirming that the Accounting Treatment specified in the Scheme of Arrangement is in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read together with paragraph 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

Register of Director’s shareholding of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

Copy of the Complaints Reports dated 14th March 2019, submitted by the Demerged Company to
BSE and dated 16 April 2019 submitted by the Demerged Company to National Stock Exchange of
India Limited.

Copy of Audit Committee Report dated 05th February 2019 of the Demerged Company.

Copies of the resolutions passed by the respective Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company on 05th February 2019 approving the Scheme of Arrangement.

Copy of the no objection/observation letters issued by BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited dated 11th April 2019 and 23rd April 2019 respectively to the Demerged Company.

Copy of the certificate dated 05th February 2019 issued by M/s. Tukaram & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants and Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company confirming on the non-applicability
of Para (I)(A)(9)(a) read with Para (I)(A)(9)(b) of Annexure | of said SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/
CIR/2017/21 dated 10 March 2017.

Abridged Prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 including applicable information pertaining to the Resulting
Company.

Copy of the Scheme of Arrangement.

Copy of report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company pursuant to Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Copy of Complaints Report dated 14 March 2019 and 16 April 2019 submitted to BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited respectively.

This statement shall be treated as an Statement under Sections 230 to 232 and Section 102 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder.Copy of the NCLT convened meeting
Notice(s), the Scheme of Arrangement and Explanatory Statement(s) under Section 230 of the Companies Act,
2013 have been placed on the website of the Company at http://suven.com.

Nagaraj Kumar Annabattula
The Chairman appointed for the Meeting

Date: 16th August, 2019

Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure - 1

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT {DEMERGER)
BETWEEN
SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

(“DEMERGED COMPANY" OR “SLSL")
AND

SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

(“RESULTING COMPANY" OR “SPL")
AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
(Under the provisions of Section 230 to section 232 read with Section 66 and other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013)

I EREAMBLE

This Scheme of Arrangemeant (Damerger) ("the Schema’) is presantad undar Sections 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 66 of Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions of the Companias Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-
enactments or amendmenls thereof) for the demerger, transfer and vesting of Contract Research
and Manufacturing Services Undertaking (as hereinafter defined) of Suven Life Sciences Limited
(“Demerged Company” or “SLSL") on a going concermn basis to Suven Fharmaceuticals
Limitad (“Resulting Company"” or “SPL"). The Scheme also provides for various other matters

consequental or otherase integrally connected herewith,
Il DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES
a. SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED (“DEMERGED COMPANY" OR “SLSL")

i. Demerged Company was onginally incorporated on March 9, 1988 under the Companies
Act. 1956 in the State of Andhra Pradesh with the name "Suven Phamaceuticals Pt

Lid”

ii. On January 04, 1995, the Demerged Company had changed its name to Suven
Pharmaceuticals Limited as per Section 31 (1) / 44 of the Companies Act, 1956. Further,
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ii.

N 3

The Corporale |dentity Number of Demerged Company is L24110TG1989PLC009712.
Tha Registered Office of Demerged Company is situated at Door No. 8-2-334, 6th Floor,
SDE Serene Chambers, Road MNo. 5, Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana
500034,

The equity shares of Demerged Company are listed on BSE Limited (Stock Code:
530239) and Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited (Stock Code: SUVEN-EQ).

The Demerged Company has 2 (two) business verticals:

Contract Research and Manufacluting Services ("CRAMS") - CRAMS division of
Demerged Company is engaged in development and manufacturing of New Chamical
Entity (NCE) based Intermediates, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (AP1), Specialty
chemicals and formulated drugs under Contract Research and Manufacturing Services
for global pharmaceutical, bistechnology and chemical companies.

Discovery or Research and Development (‘Discovery Research') - Discovery Research
division of Demerged Company is focused on discovering, developing and
commercializing novel pharmaceutical products, which are first in class or best in class
CNS (Central Mervous System) therapies using GPCR targets for the treatment of
cognitive impairment associated with neurodegenerative disorders like Alzheimers
disease, Atlention Deficient Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD), Humtington's disease,
Parkinson and Schizophrenia, Major Depressive Disorders (MDD) and sleep disorders
like Narcolepsy etc.

SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED (“"RESULTING COMPANY™ OR “SPL"):

The Resulting Company is a public limited company incorporated on November 08, 2018
under the Companies Act, 2013 in the State of Telangana.

The Corporate ldentity Number of Resulting Company is U24299TG2018PLC128171.
The Registered Office of Resulling Company is situated at Door Mo. 8-2-334. &th Floor,
SDE Serena Chambers, Road Mo. 5, Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana

S00034,
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i, The Resulling Company 15 engaged in the business of development and manufacturing
of New Chemical Entity (NCE) based Intermediates, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients
{API), Specialty chemicals and formulated drugs under contract research and
manufacturing services for global pharmaceutical, biotechnology and chemical
companies.

i, Resulting Company is a whally owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company is inter alia engaged in two business verticals, namely: the Contract
Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking and the Discovery Research Undertaking.

The Board of Direclors of Demerged Company and Resulling Company believe that the risk and
reward associaled with each of the aforesaid business verlicals are different. In order lo
segregate the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking with that of Discovery
Research Undertaking, it is intended to demerge the Contract Research and Manufacturing
Services Undertaking on a going concem basis into its wholly owned subsidiary with a resultant

mirror image shareholding.

The demerger, transfer and wvesting of the Contract Research and Manufacturing
Services Undertaking on a going concern basig o the Resulting Company would result in better
and efficient control and management for the segregated businesses and promote their growth,
Further, it would also result in the following benefits:

. The demerger would facilitale focused growth, operational efficiencies, business
gynergies and increased operational and customer focus in relation to the Conliract
Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking in the Resulting Company and the
Discovery Research Undertaking in the Demerged Company. The demerger would thus
provide a platform for having a concentrated approach lowards development of the

respecltive business verlicals.

. Focused business approach for the maximization of benefits to all the shareholders and
opportunities for growth.
. Operational ralionalization, organization efficiency and optimuem ulilization of various

resources.
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. Ability to leverage financial and oparational resources of each business.

. Each business would be able to address independent business opportunities, pursus
efficient capital allocation and attract different sets of investors, strategic pariners,

lenders and other slakeholders,

= The proposed demerger will enhance value for shareholders and allow a focused
strategy in operation of the respective business vericals which would be in the best
interest of the Demarged Company and the Resulting Company, shareholders, creditors
and all persons connected therewath,

. The segregation is also expected to unlock the value of the business vericals of the
Demerged Company.
. There is no likelihood that the interests of any shareholder or creditor of either the

Demerged Company or the Resulting Company would be prejudiced as a result of the
Scheme. The demerger will nol impose any additional burden on the members of
Demerged Company or the Resulting Company. The Scheme is nol in any manner
prejudicial or against public interest and would serve the interest of all shareholders,

creditors and stakeholdars.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company have
formulated this Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger).

.  PARTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme of Arrangemeant {Demerger) is divided into the following parts:

Part A = Provides for the Definitions, Interpretation and Share Capital;

Part B - Provides for the demerger of Contracl Research and Manufacturing Services
Underiaking from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company and the reduction of

equity share capital of the Resulting Company;

Part C - Provides for the General Terms and Conditions applicable to this Scheme of
Arrangement (Demerger).

Fage 4 of 39
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PART A

DEFINITIONS, INT PIT

DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger), unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the
following exprassion shall have the meanings respectively assigned against them:

1.1

12

13

14

1.5

“Act” or “the Act” means the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued thereunder, as amended from time to time and shall, include any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in foree;

“Applicable Laws” means any stalule, notifications, bye laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, rule of commen law, policy, code, directives, erdinance, orders or instructions
having the force of law enacled or issued by any Appropriate Authority including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force,

“Appointed Date™ means 1 October 2018 or such other date as may be decided or
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal or such other appropriate authority,

“Appropriate Authority” means and includes any applicable Governmental, statutory,
departmental or public body or autharity or agency, whether in India or outside India,
including the Central Government, Registrar of Companies, Mational Company Law
Tribunal, Stock Exchanges and SEBI;

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors or any committee
thereof of the Demerged Company or the Resulling Company or both as the context may
require and shall include a committee duly constituted and authonized thereby for the
purpose of matters pertaining to this Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) and/or any
other consequential or incidental matter in relation thereto,

“Central Government” means the Regional Director, Hyderabad, South East Region, in
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

Pege 5§ of 39
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1.7

1.8

“Demerged Company” or “Transferor Company” or “SLSL" means Suven Life
Sciences Limited, a company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956
on March 9, 1989 (CIN No. L24110TG1989PLC009713) having its registered office at
Door Mo, 8-2-334, 6th Floor, SDE Serena Chambers, Road Mo. 5, Avenue 7, Banjara
Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana S00034, India;

“Demerged Undertaking” or “Contract Research and Manufacturing Services
Undertaking” means and includes, but not limitéd to, the undertaking, bDusiness,
activities, operations, assets, liabilies and employees of the Demerged Company
pertaining to the Contract Research and Manufacturing Senvices Business, as on the
Appointed Date, that would be demerged, transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company on a going concemn basis. The details of assets and liabiliies relating to the
Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Businest as on the Appointed Date is
provided in Schedule 1 and shall without limitation include the following:

(i) All the assets and properties, whether movable or immovable located primarily at
Suryapet, Jeedimetla, Pashamylaram and al Vizag, whether tangible or
intangide, including all intellectual properly, rights, litle, interest, covenant,
including continuing rights, title and interast in connection with the properties,
whether corporeal or incorporeal, leasehold land, leasehold premises, freehold
land, licenses relatable exclusively to the Contract Research and Manufacturing

Services Businass.

{ii} All conmtracts, agreements, deeds, leases, memoranda of understanding,
memoranda of agreements, undertakings, powers of attorney (if granted and
applicable), arrangements, letters of intent, whether written or olherwise, salas
orders, purchase orders or other instruments of whatsoever nature to which the
Demerged Company is a party, in connection with or in relation to the Contract
Research and Manufacturing Services Business, or otherwise identified to be for
the benefit of the same, approvals, electricity permits, telephone connections,
building and parking rights, pending applications for consents or extension
pertaining to or relatable to the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services
Business and the right to use assels and properties, whether movable or
immovable, tangible or intangible, offices, current assels including loans and
advances, fumiture, fistures, office equipment, appliances, accessories of the
Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Business of the Demerged
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jiii)

(iv)

(v

(vi)

All the debts, borrowings and liabilities (including contingent liabilities, liabilities
not accrued, nol recognized or provided for in the books of accounts of the
Demerged Company), guaranlees, assurances, commitments, obligations, loans,
and undertakings of any kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoaver
arising, present or fulure, whether secured or unsecured, and including, without
limitation., working capital facilities, advances from customers, uneamed
revanues, bills payable, interest, whether fixed, contingent or absolute, secured or
unsecured, asserted or unasserted, matured or un-matured, liguidated or un-
liguidated, accrued or not accrued, known or unknown, due or to become due,
whenever or however arising, (including, without limitation, whether arising out of
any contract or tort based on negligence or strict liability), pertaining to or
relatable to the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Business of the
Demerged Company.

All permits, quotas, no objection cerificates, rights, entitiements and benefits
including affiliation with different universities, Institutes, Boards, licenses, bids,
tenders, letter of intent. expression of interest, municipal permissions, approvals,
consents, kenancies in relation to office, benefit of any deposit privileges. all other
rights, receivables, licenses, powers and faciliies of every kind, nature and
description whatsoever, rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile
connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services, provisions
and benefits of all agreements, contracts and arrangements, including
tachnological licensing agreaments, and all other interasts in connection with or
relating to the Contract Research and Manufacluring Services Business of the

Deamerged Company.

All brand names, rademarks, drug master files, serice marks, trade names,
labels, patents (including but not limited to Patent grants mentioned in Schedule
2) and domain names, designs, software and computer programmes, databases,
copyrights, trade secrets and other intellectual property and all cther interests
exclusively relating to the goods or services being used by the Demerged
Company in the busingss, aclivities and operations pertaining to its Contract
Research and Manufaciuring Services Business.

Al staff, workmen and employees engaged in the Confract Research and

Manufacturing Services Business of the Demerged Company as of the Effective

Date. and any other employees/persannel hired by the Demenged Company on

and after the Appointed Date who are primarily engaged in or in relation to the

i nd operations pertaining to e Contra rcn and
P A

business,
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(vii)

{wili)

(i}

{x)

Manufacturing Services Business, that are in the employment of the Demerged
Company as of tha Effective Date.

All earnest monies andfor security deposits in connegtion with or relating to the
Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Business of the Demerged

Company.

All records, files, papers, information, engineering and process information,
computer programs, manuals, data, catalogues, quotalions, sales advertising
materials, lists of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit
information, customer pricing information and other records, whether in physical
form or electronic form relating to the Contract Research and Manufacturing
Services Business of the Demerged Company.

All permits, licenses, consents, approvals, authorizations, quotas, rights, powers,
permissions, arrangements, assignmenis, sanclions, enlitements, allotments,
exemptions, incentives, lax benefits, deferrals, subsidies, concessions, grants,
claims, liberlies, special status, benefits and privileges enjoyed or conferred upon
or held or availed of by the Demerged Company in relation to or paraining o its
Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Business, registrations,
advanlages, no-objection certificates, cerifications, easements, and any waivers
af the foregoing, ssued by any legislative, executive or judicial unit of any
Appropriate Authorty, governmental or quasi-governmental entity or any
departmenl, commission, board, agency, bureauw, official or other regulatory, local
{including municipal), administrative or judicial authority, used or held for use by
the Demerged Company in respect of business, activities and operations
pertaining to its Contract Research and Manufacluring Services Businass.

All tax credits, including cenvat credils, refunds, reimbursements, claims,
exemplions, benefits undar service tax laws, value added tax (VAT). goods and
senice tax (GST), purchase lax, sales tax or any other duly or tax or cess or
imposts under any Ceniral or Stale law including sales tax deferrals, special
economic zone benefits, excise duly benefits, tax deducted al source, right to
carry forward and set-off unabsorbed losses, and depreciation, minimum
alternate tax credits, if any and exemplions, deductions, benefits and incentives
under the Income-tax Act, 1961 in respect of business, activities, research and
development unils and operations pertaining to the Contract Research and
Manufacturing Services Business of the Demerged Company.
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1.8

1.10

(i) All rights, benefits and other interest, whether held in trust or otherwise, contracts,
agreements, powers, engagements, armangements of all kind, privileges and all
ather rights including ftitle, interests, other benefits (including tax benafits),
easements, privileges, liberties and advantages of whatsoever naiure and where
50 ever situate belonging to or in the ownership, possession, power or custody of
or in the control of or vested in or grantad in favour of or enjoyed by the
Demerged Company, whether in India or abroad, all perlaining to or relatable to
the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Business of the Demerged

Company.

It is intended that the definiion of “Demerged Underaking® or “Centract Research and
Manufacturing Services Undertaking” under this clause would enable the transfer of all
property, assels, rights, dulies, employees and liabiliies of Demerged Company
pertaining exclusively to the Contract Research and Manufacluring Services Business to

Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme.

Any guestion that may arise as o whether a specified asset, benefit or liability, contract
or ohligation partains to or does not pertain to the Contract Research and Manufacturing
Services Undertaking or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the
Contract Research and Manufactunng Services Undertaking shall be decided by the
Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or any
committea thereof by mutual agreement.

“Effective Date” means the date or last of the dates on which the certified copy of the
order, issued by the Mational Company Law Tribunal bench at Hyderabad, sanctioning
this Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) is filed by the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company with the Registrar of Companies, Telangana at Hyderabad;

“National Company Law Tribunal® or “NCLT” means the Mational Company Law
Tribunal bench at Hyderabad as constituted and authorized as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for approving any scheme of amrangement, compromise or
reconstruction of companies under seclion 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013;

“Record Date" means the date o be fixed jointly by the Board of Direclors of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for the purposes of determining the
equily shareholders of the Demerged Company to whom shares would be issued in
accordance with Clause 6 of this Schema;

o

é'gc?};f{,

=

'S @\

()

b L

et ) Page 9 of 39
e

' ol
|.=Fi:\ "

45



1.12 “Registrar of Companies" means the Registrar of Companies, Telangana at
Hyderabad;

1.13 “Remaining Business Undertaking” means all the underakings, busingsses,
operations and activities, including all the assets and liabilites, of the Damerged
Company, excluding the Demerged Undertaking, retained by the Demerged Company,
pursuant to this Scheme;

1.14 “Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “SPL" means Suven
Pharmaceuticals Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 2013 on Movember 08, 2018, having its regislered office al Door Mo. 8-2-334, 6th
Floor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road Mo, 5, Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad,
Telangana 500034, India (CIN No. U24299TG2018PLC128171).

1.15 “Schame” or “this Scheme” or “Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger)” shall mean
this Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) in its present form and with such modifications
and amendments as may be made from time to time with the appropriate approvals and
sanchions of the NCLT and other relevant regulatory/statutory/govemnmmental authonties,
as may be required under the Act, and/or any other applicable laws.

1.16 “Share Exchange Ratio" shall have the meaning set out in Clausa 6.1:
1.17 “SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India;

1.18 “Stock Exchanges” means the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited;

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or conirary to the context
or meaning thareof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act and other applicable
laws, rules, regulations, bye laws, as the case may be, including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof from time o time;

Reference to Clauses, recitals and schedules, unless otherwise provided, are to Clauses, recilals
and schedules of and to this Scheme. The singular shall include the plural and vice versa.
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Z. DATE OF TAKING EFF
The Scheme set oul herein in its présent form or with any modification(s) approved or imposed or
directed by the National Company Law  Trbunal andfor other relevant

regulatony/statutory/gevernmental authorities, shall be effective from the Appointed Date, but
shall be operative from the Effective Date.

3 SHARE CAPITAL

a1 The share capital of the Demerged Company as on September 30, 2018 is as under:

Share Capital Amount (In INR)
h pital '
40,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- each 40,00,00,000
TOTAL | 40,00,00,000 |
Issued, subscribed and paid-up Share Capital
12,72,82 478 Equity shares of INR 1/- each 12,72 82 478
TOTAL = — I - 12,72,62,478 |

Subsequent to 30 September 2018, there has been no change in the authorised, issued,
subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Demerged Company. The shares of
the Demerged Company are currently listed on the BSE Limiled and Mational Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

3z The share capital of the Resuling Company as on Movember 08, 2018 (date of
incorparation of the Resulting Company) is as under:

Share Capital Amaount (In INR)
fi r ital
10,00,000 (Ten Lakhs) Equity shares of INR 1/- each 10,00,000
TOTAL 10,00,000
id- ital 1 |
1.00,000 (One Lakh) Equity shares of INR 1/- each 1,00,000 .
TOTAL 1,00,000 |

Subsequent to November 06, 2018, there has been no change in the authorised, issued,
subseribed and paid up equily share capital of the Resulting Company. The entire paid
ulting Company is held by Demerged Gcmpany 1 minm.

rﬂ‘rﬁ:\ ) g
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4.1

4.2

4.3

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the
Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company shall, under the: provisions of Seclion
230 to 232 and all other applicable provigions, if any, of the Act and Section 2{1944) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961, without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to
and stand vested in, and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in, the Resulting
Company as a going concermn so as lo become, as and from the Appointed Date, the
Undertaking of the Resulting Company by virtue of and in the manner provided in this
Scheme.

Any and all assels relating 1o the Demerged Undertaking, as are movable in nature or are
otherwise capable of transfer by delivery of possession or by endorsement and delivery,
the same shall be so transferred by Demerged Company, upen the coming into effect of
the Scheme, and shall become the property of Resulting Company as an integral part of
the Demerged Undertaking with effect from the Appointed Date. pursuant to the
provisions of Section 230-232 of the Act without requiring any deed or instrument of
conveyance for transfer of the same, subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation
to encumbrances in favour of banks and/or financial institulions.

Any and all movable properties of the Demerged Company relating o the Demerged
Undertaking, other than those specified in Sub-Clause 4.2 above, including sundry
debtors, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received, bank balances and depesits, if any, with Govemnmment, semi-
Government. local and other authorities and bodies. customers and other persons, the
game shall on and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company without any notice or other intimation to the debtors (although the
Resulting Company may without being obliged and if it s0 deems appropriate at its sole
diseralion, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to each person, deblor,
or depositor, as the case may be, that the said debt, loan, advance, balance or deposit
stands transferred and vested in the Resulting Company).
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4.4

4.5

46

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, all assets, estale, rights, tille, inlerest
investments (including but not limited to the branch office of Demerged Company in USA)
and authorities held by the Damerged Company on the Appointed Date as regards the
Demerged Underaking, not otherwise specified in Clause 4.2 and Clause 4.3 above,
shall also, without any further act, instrument or deed stand transferred to and vest in the
Resuling Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act.

The immovable properties pertaining to Demerged Undertaking shall stand transferred 1o
the Resulting Company automalically without requirement of execulion of any further
documents for registering the name of the Resulling Company as owner thereof and the
reguiatory authorities, including Sub-registrar of Assurances, Talati, Tehsildar etc. may
rely on the Scheme along with the copy of the Order passed by the Mational Company
Law Tribunal, to make necessary mulation enfries and changes in the land or revenue
records to reflect the name of the Resulting Company as owner of the immovable
properlies. For the purpose of vesling of immovable properlies lo the Resulling
Company, the Demerged Company is hereby empoweredfauthorized to execute any
decuments/enter into any arrangements for and on behalf of the Resulting Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, any
statutory licenses, permissions, registrations or approvals viz.. United States Food and
Drug Administration approvals or consents held by the Demerged Company required to
carry on operations in the Demerged Undertaking shall stand vested in or transferred to
the Resulting Company without any further act or deed, and shall be appropriately
mutated by the statutory authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Resulting
Company. The benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions, environmental
approvals and consents, registration or other licenses, and consents shall vest in and
become available to the Resulling Company pursuant to the Scheme. In so far as the
various incentives, subsidies, rehabilitation Schemes, special status and other benefits or
privileges enjoyed, granted by any Government body, local authority or by any other
person, or availed of by the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking,
are concemed, the same shall vest with and be available to the Resulting Company on
thia sama terms and conditions.
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4.7

4.8

44

4.10

B.A

(a)

All the brands, trademarks of the Demerged Undertaking including registered and
unregistered trademarks along with all the rights of commercial nature including attached
fitle, goodwill, interest, labels and brand registrations, copyrights, and all such other
industrial and intellectual property rights of whatsoever nature shall stand transferred to
the Resulting Company by operation of law. The Resulting Company shall take such
actions as may be necessary and permissible to get the same transferred and jor
registered in the name of Resulting Company.,

The transfer and vesting of Demerged Undertaking as aforesaid shall be subject to the
existing securities, charges, mortgages and other encumbrances if any, subsisting over
or in respact of the property and assets or any part thereof relatable lo Demerged
Underaking to the extent such securifies, charges, morlgages, encumbrances are
craated to secure the liabilities forming part of the Demerged Undertaking.

In relation to olher assets belonging to Demerged Undertaking, which require separate
documents for vesting in the Resulting Company, or which the Demerged Company
andfor the Resulting Company otherwise desire to be vested separately, the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company each will execute such deeds, documents or such
other instruments or writings or create evidence, if any, as may be necessary.

Any assels acquired by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date but prior lo the
Effective Date periaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall upon the coming into effect
of this Scheme also without any further act, instrument or deed stand transfemed o and
vested in or be deemad to have been transferred to or vested in the Resulting Company
upon the coming into effect of this Scheme.

TRANSFER OF DEBTS AND LIABILITIES

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective:

All debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of every kind, nature and
description. if any, atiributable lo the Demerged Undertaking (“Demerged Undertaking
Liabilities") shall, without any further act or deed, be transferred o, or be deemed to be
transferred to the Resulting Company so as to become from the Appointed Date, the
debts, liabiliies, contingent liabiliies, duties and obligations, if any. of the Resulting
Company and the Resulting Company undertakes to meet, discharge and salisfy the
same. It is hereby clarified that it shall not be necessary 1o obtain the consent of any third
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5.2

5.3
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such debts, liabiliies, contingent habilities, duties and obligations have arisen, in order 1o
give effect to the provisions of this Sub-Clause.

Where any of the liabilities and obligations attributed to the Demerged Undertaking on
the Appointed Date has been discharged by the Demerged Company afler the Appaointed
Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to have been for

and on behalf of the Resulting Company.

All loans raised and used, and liabilities incurred, if any, by the Demerged Company after
the Appointed Date, but prior to the Effective Date, for the operations of the Demerged
Undertaking shall be transferred to and discharged by the Resulting Company.

In so far as the existing encumbrances, if any, in respect of the Demerged Undertaking
Liabilites are concerned, such encumbrances shall, without any further act, instrument or
deed be modified and shall be extended to and shall operate only over the assets
comprised in the Demerged Underaking which has been encumbered in respect of the
Demerged Undertaking Liabilities as transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to
this Scheme. Provided that if any of the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking
which are being transfarred to the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme have not
been Encumbered in respect of the Demerged Undertaking Liabilities, such assets shall
remain unancumberad and the existing encumbrances referred to above shall not be
extended to and shall not operate over such assets. The absence of any formal
ameandment which may be required by a lender or truslee or third party shall not affect
the operation of the above.

For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that in so far as the assets comprising
the Remaining Business Undertaking are concemed, subject to Clause 5.3, the
encumbrances, if any, over such assets relating to the Demargad Undertaking Liabilitias
shall, as and from the Effective Dale withoul any further act, instrument or deed be
released and discharged from the obligations and encumbrances relating to the same,
The absence of any formal amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or
third party shall not affect the operation of the above. Further, in so far as the assets
comprised in the Dememed Undertaking is concerned. the encumbrances over such
assets relating to any loans, borrowings or other debls or debt secunties which are not
transferred pursuant to this Scheme (and which shall continue with the Demerged
Company), shall without any further act or deed be released from such encumbrances
and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such liabilities.
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2.2

5.8

5.7

5.8

2.9

5.10

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing clauses and upon the effectiveness of
this Schemea, the Demerged Company and the Resulling Company shall execute any
instrument(s) and/or document(s) andlor do all the acts and deeds as may be required,
including the filing of necessary parlicularg andfor modification(s) of charge, with the
Regqistrar of Companies to give formal effect to the above provisions, if required

All the loans, advances and other facilities sanctioned to the Demerged Company in
relation to the Demerged Undertaking by its bankers and financial institutions prior to the
Appointed Date, which are parlly drawn or utiized shall be deemed to be the loans and
advances sanctioned to the Resulling Company and the said loans and advances shall
be drawn and utilized either parlly or fully by the Demerged Company from the Appointed
Date tik the Effective Date.

Subject to provisions of sub-para 5.8 below, any contingent liability pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking as on the Appointed Date shall be assumed by the Resulting
Company and accordingly, the contingent liabilities of Demerged Company, on any dats
after the Appointed Date shall be deemed to have been reduced to the extent of
contingent liabilities taken over by the Resulting Company as aforesaid.

As regards any tax Liability arising in connection with Income Tax, Excise, Customs,
VAT, Goods and Service Tax, etc. in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, the Resulting
Company undertakes to setfle the liabilily direclly or reimburse to the Demerged
Company, if discharged by the Demerged Company directly.

It is hereby clarified that, for the purpose of this para 5.8, the term "Liability” shall include
duty, penalty, interest or any amount paid on compensation.

It is expressly provided that, save as mentioned in this Clause 5, no other term or
candition of the liabilities transferred to the Resulting Company as part of the Scheme is
modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such amendmeant is required
by necessary implication.

The provisions of this Clause § shall operate, notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in any instrument, deed or writing or the ferms of sanclion or issue or any
security document, all of which instruments, deeds or writings shall stand maodified andfor
superseded by the foregoing provisions,
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6.1

8.2

6.3

ISSUE OF SHARES

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and upon the demerger, transfer and vesting of
the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company, in
terms of this Scheme, the Resulting Company shall, withoul any further application or
deed, issue and allot equity shares credited as fully paid-up, to the extent indicated
below, to the members of the Demerged Company, holding fully paid up equity shares in
the Demerged Company and whose names appear in the Register of Members & in
depositories of the Demerged Company on the Record Date or to such of their respective
heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in title
as may be recognized by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company in the
following manner (“Share Exchange Ratio"):

*1 {One) fully paid up Equify Share of INR 1/~ (Rupee One only) each of the Resulting
Company shall be issved and aliotted for every 1 (One) fully paid vp equily share of INR
1/~ (Rupee One only) each held in the Demerged Company”

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding,
of any shareholder of the Demerged Company, the Board of Directors of the Demerged
Company shall be empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the
Record Date, lo effecluate such a transfer as if such changes in the registered holder
were oparative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the
transferor or transferee of equity shares in the Demerged Company, after the

effectiveness of this Scheme.

The equity shares shall be issued in dematerialized form to those shareholders who hold
shares of the Demerged Company in dematerialized form, into the account in which the
Demerged Company shares are held or such other account as is intimaled by the
shareholders to the Demerged Company and / or its Registrar before the Record Dale,
All those shareholders who hold shares of the Demerged Company in physical form shall
receive the equity shares in dematerialized form provided the details of their account with
the Depository Participant are intimated in writing to the Demerged Company and / or ils
Registrar before the Record Date.
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6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

8.9

The Board of Directors of the Resulting Company shall, if and to the extent required,
apply for and oblain any approvals from concerned Government /Regulatory authorities
and undertake necessary compliance for the issue and allotment of equity shares to the
members of the Demerged Company pursuant to Clause 6.1 of the Schama

The shares issued by the Resulting Company pursuant to the provisions of Clause 6.1
above in liew of the shares of the Demerged Company held in the unclaimed suspense
account shall be issued o a new unclaimed suspense accounld created for shareholdars
of the Resulting Company.

The equity shares to be issued and allolted by the Resulting Company to the equity
shareholders of the Demerged Company shall be subject to the Scheme and the
Memorandum and Arlicles of Association of the Resulting Company.

The equity shares lo be issued by the Resulting Company to the members of the
Demerged Company pursuant to Clause 6.1 of this Scheme will be listed and/or admitted
to trading in terms of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018 read with other applicable laws / regulations on all the Stock Exchanges on which
gshares of the Demerged Company are listed on the Effective Date. The Resulting
Company shall enter info such arrangements and give such confirmations andfor
undertakings as may be necessary In accordance with the applicable laws or regulations
for compliance with the formalities of the said Stock Exchanges.

The equity shares of the Resulting Company allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall
remain frozen in the depositories system till listing and trading permission is given by the
Stock Exchange(s). There shall be no change in the shareholding paltern or control in the
Resulting Company between the Record Date and the listing which may affect the status
of approvals received from the Stock Exchange(s).

The Resulting Company shall, if and to the extent required to, apply for and obtain any
approvals from the concerned regulatory authorities including the Reserve Bank of India,
for the issue and allotment of equity shares by the Resulting Company to the non-
resident equity shareholders of the Demerged Company, if any. The Resulting Company
shall comply with the relevant and applicable rules and regulations including the
provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act 1899, to enable the Resulting
Company to issue and allot equity shares to the non-resident equity shareholders of the
Demenged Can'spa:l?nn the Record Date.
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6.10 The approval of this Scheme by the shareheolders of the Resulling Company shall be

7.1

7.2

deemed to be the due compliance of the provisions of Section 42 read with 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the other relevant and applicable provisions of the Act for the
issue and allotment of equily shares by the Resulting Company fo the shareholders of
the Demerged Company, as provided in this Scheme.

TRANSFER OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF DEMERGED COMPANY TO
RESULTING COMPANY

Upon the Scheme being effective, the Authorized Share Capital of the Demerged
Company amounting to INR 20,00,00,000/ (Rupees Twenly Crore only) comprising of
20.00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/~ each, shall be transferred to the Resulting
Company without payment of any additional fees, duties and laxes as though the same
has already been paid. The authorised share capital of the Resuling Company will
automatically stand increased by the said amount, as on the Effective Date, without any
further act or deed. The Stamp duty and fees paid on the authorised share capital of the
Demerged Company shall be utlised and applied to the increased authorised share
capital of the Resulling Company and there would be nod réquirement for any further
payment of stamp duty and! or fee and/ or taxes by the Resulting Company for increase
in the authorised share capital to that extent.

The existing capital clause contained in the Memorandum of Association of Demerged
Company shall without any act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and
amended pursuant to Sections 13, 61 and 64 of the Act and Section 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act, as set out below:

Memorandum of Association

"The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is INR 20,00,00.000 (Rupees Twenly
Crores only) divided into 20,00,00.000 Equity Shares of INR 1/~ (Rupees One only) each.
With the right to increase or reduce the share capital in accordance with the provisions of
ihe Companias Act 2013. The company shall have powers, al any tima and from fima o
time o increase or reduce capital. Any of the said shares and new shares may al any
time and fram fime to time be divided in fo shares of sevaral classes in such mannar as
the articles of the company may proscribe and the shares of each class may confer such
preferred or ofher special nghts and privilieges and impose such mestnclions and
conditions whether in regard o dividend, voling, return of capital or otherwise as may be
prescribed in orynder. the articles of associalion.”

§e SCiy
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7.3

7.4.

8.1

8.2

The existing capital clause contained in the Memorandum of Association of Resulting
Company shall without any act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and
amended pursuant to Sections 13, 61 and 64 of the Act and Section 232 and other

applicable provisions of the Act, as set out below:
Memorandum of Association

“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is INR 20,10,00,000 (Rupees Twenty
Crores Ten Lakhs only) divided into 20,10,00,000 Equily Shares of INR 1/~ (Rupees One
only) each with the right to increase or reduce the share capital in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013. The company shall have powers, al any time and
from time to time to increase or reduce capital. Any of the said shares and new shares
may at any time and from time to time be divided in to shares of several classes in such
manner as the articles of the company may prescribe and the shares of each class may
confer such preferred or other special rights and privileges and impose such restrictions
and conditions whether in regard to dividend, voling, return of capital or otherwise as may

be prescribed in or under the articles of association.”

The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Demerged Company and
Resulting Company shall be deemed to have the approval for the purpose of effecting the
transfer of authorised share capital and no further resolutions would be required to be

separately passed in this regard.

REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL HELD BY DEMERGED COMPANY IN THE
RESULTING COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the issue of shares by the Resulting
Company in accordance with Clause 6.1 of the Scheme, the existing 1,00,000 equity
shares of INR 1/- each of the Resulting Company held by the Demerged Company, as on
the Effective Date, shall without any application or deed, stand cancelled without any

payment.

The reduction of share capital of Resulting Company shall be effected as an integral part
of this Scheme and Resulting Company shall not be required to follow the process under
Section 66 of the Act or any other provisions of Applicable Law separately.
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82

B4

8.5

The reduction would not invelve either a diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share
capital, if any or payment to any shareholder of any unpaid share capital. Notwithstanding
the reduction in the equity share capital of Resulting Company, the Resulting Company
shall nol be reguired to add “And Reduced” as suffix to its name.

The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Resulting Company shall be
deemed to have the approval for the purpose of effecting the capital reduction in the
Resulting Company under Section B8 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the
Act and no further resolutions would be required to be separately passed in this regard.

The application and reduction of Securities Premium Account of Demerged Company, as
above, shall be effected as an infegral part of this Scheme and Demerged Company shall
not be required to follow the process under Section 66 of the Act or any other provisions
of Applicable Law separately. The reduction would not involve either a diminution of
liability in respect of unpaid share capital, if any or payment to any shareholder of any
unpaid share capital, Motwithstanding the reduction in the Securities Premium Account of
Cemerged Company, the Demerged Company shall not be required to add “And
Reduced” as suffix to its name. The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the
Demerged Company shall be deemed to have the approval for the purpose of effecting
the capital reduction in the Demerged Company under Section 66 of the Act and other
applicable provisions of the Act and no furher resolutions would be required to be
separately passed in this regard.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Accounting treatment in the books of the Demerged ﬂumEn!

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date:

8.1

8.2

The Demerged Company, as on the Appointed Date. shall reduce the book value of
aszels and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred to and vested
in the Resulting Cempany from the bock value of assets and liabiliies as appearing in its
books

The Secunties Premium Account, General Reserve and Retained eamings of the
Demerged Company, as on the Appointed Date, shall be apportioned between the
Resulting Company and the Demerged Company on the basis of net assets transfered
ny and net assets retained by the Demerged C?
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8.3

94

The difference, if any, between the net assets (difference between the book value of
asgelz and liabilities a5 on the Appointed Dale) and transfer of reserves as provided in
clause 9.2 above along with any accounting adjusiments, shall be adjusted against
General Reserve of the Demerged Company.

Investments in the equily share capital of the Resulling Company will stand cancelled as
per Clause 8.1 and be debited to the General Reserve of the Demerged Company.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date:

a5

8.6

8.7

9.8

2.9

9.10

The Demerger will be accounted in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
103 — Business Combination as notified under Section 133 of the Act read together with
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

The Resulting Company, as on the Appointed Dale, shall record the assels and liabilities
peraining to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred to and vested in it pursuant to this
Scheme at their respective book values, excluding revaluation, if any, as appearing in the
books of the Demerged Company.

The Resulting Company shall record the Securities Premium Account, General Resarve,
Retained eamings transferred to and vested in it pursuant to Clause 9.2 above,

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the shareholding of the Demerged Company in
the Resulting Company shall be cancelled and the amount of such share capital, as
stands cancelled, be credited to General Reserve.

The Resulting Company shall credit to its share capital in its books of account, the
aggregate face value of the new equity shares issued by it to the members of the
Demerged Company pursuant to Clause 6.1 of this Scheme.

The excess of assets over the liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking transferred to and
vested in the Resulting Company after considering the treatment specified in Clause 9.7
and 9.8 above and after considering the issue of share capital by the Resulting Company
in terms of Clause 6.1, would be adjusted against the General Reserve of the Resulting
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9.1

912

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

For any matter arising in connection with the accounting treatment, the same would be
dealt in consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company.

In case of any differences in accounting palicy batweean the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company, the accounting policies, as may be directed by the Board of
Directors of the Resulting Company in compliance with the Accounting Standards will
prevail and the differences will be quantified and adjusted to ensure that the financial
statements of the Resulting Company reflect the financial position on the basis of
consistent accounting policy.

PROFITS, DIVIDEND

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall be entitled to declare and pay
dividends, whelher intenim or final, 1o ther respective sharaholders in respact of the
accounting period prior to the Effective Date but only consistent with the past practice, or

in the ordinary coursea.

The Boards of the Demerged Company and the Resulling Company or any of the
committee(s) thereof, if any, shall take such actions as may be necessary or desirable for
the purpose of giving effect to the provisions of this Clause of the Scheme.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, on and from the Appointed Date, the profils of the
Demerged Undertaking shall belong to and be the profits of the Resulting Company and
will be available 1o Resulling Company for being disposed of in any manner as it thinks
fit.

Further, it is clarified that any dividends declared or paid by the Demerged Company to
its shareholders or for any other purpose, on and from Appointed Date until the Effective
Date, shall be out of the prefits and cash generated by the Demerged Undertaking, with
prior wrillen consent of the Board of Directors of Resulling Company.

It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are
enabling provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any member of
Demerged Company andlor Resulting Company to demand or claim any dividends
which, subject to the provisions of the said Act, shall be entirely at the discretion of the
Board of Demerged Company and Resulling Company respectively, subject to such
approval of thl{ghurehnlderu. @3 may be required.

S
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1.

CONDUCT OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY TILL
THE EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the Effective Date:

11.1

1.2

11.3

1.5

The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on and shall carry on its
business and activities relating to the Demerged Undertaking and shall be deemead to
have held and stood possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of all its
properies and assets pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking for and on account of and
in trust for the Resulting Company. The Demerged Company hereby undertakes to hold
its said assets with utmost prudence until the Effective Date

The Demerged Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on its business
and activities relating to the Demerged Undertaking with reasonable diligence, business
prudence and shall not, except in the ordinary course of busingss or without prior written
consent of the Resulting Company, alienate charge, morigage, encumber or otherwise
deal with or digpose of the Demarged Undertaking or part thereof.

The Demerged Company shall be entitled to use all enlitlements, licenses, permissions,
approvals, clearances, authorizations, consents, brands, trademarks, copyrights, patents,
other intellectual property rights, regisirations and no-objection cerificates for the
operations of tha Demerged Undertaking or part thereof.

All the profils or income accruing of ansing to the Demerged Company or expenditure or
losses arising or incurred or suffered by the Demerged Company pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking shall for all purposes be treated and be deemed to be accrued as
the income or profits or losses or expenditure as the caze may be of the Resulling

Company.

The Demerged Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of employment of any of
the employees of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged Underaking
except in the ordinary course of business or without the prior consent of the Resulting
Company or pursuani to any pre-exising cbligation underdaken by the Demerged
Company, as the case may be, prior to the Appointed Date,
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116

12.

121

12.2

13.

131

The Demerged Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, 1o apply
to the Central/State Government and all other agencies, departments and autharities
concermned as are necessary under any law or rules, for such consents, approvals and
sanctions, which the Resulling Company may require to carmry on the Demerged
Undertaking of the Demerged Company.

EMPLOYEES

On the Scheme becoming opefative, all staff and employees of the Demerged Company
pertaining to Demerged Undertaking in service on the Effective Date shall be deemed to
have become staff and employees of the Resulting Company without any break in their
servicg and on the basis of continuity of sarvice, and the terms and conditions of their
employment with the Resulting Company shall nol be less favorable than those
applicable to tham with reference to their employment in the Demerged Company.

It is expressly provided that, on the Scheme becoming effective, the Provident Fund,
Gratuity Fund, Superannuation Fund, Employea State Insurance Scheme or any other
Special Fund or Trusts, if any, created or existing for the benefit of the staff and
employees of the Demerged Company pertaining to Demerged Undertaking or all
purposes whalsoever in relation lo lhe administration or operation of such Fund or Funds
or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said Fund or Funds in
accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms provided in the respeclive Trust
Deeds, if any, to the end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of the
Demerged Company in relation to Demerged Undertaking in relation to such Fund or
Funds shall become those of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that the services of
the staff and employees of the Demerged Company pertaining to Demerged Undertaking
will be treated as having been continuous for the purpose of the said Fund or Funds.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against the Demerged
Company in relation to Demerged Undertaking is pending, the same shall not abate or
be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of or by anything
contained in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal proceedings may be
confinued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company, as the case
may be, in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been
continued, prosecuted and anforced by or against the Demerged Company in relation to
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13.2

133

13.4

14.

14.1

After the Appointed Date, if any proceedings are taken against the Demerged Company
in respect of the matters referred to in the Clause 13.1 above, the Demerged Company
shall defend the same at the cost of the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company
shall reimburse and indemnify the Demerged Company against all liabiliies and
obligations incurred by it in respect thereof and further reimburse all amounts including
interest, penalties, damages, costs etc. which the Demerged Company may be called
upon to pay or secure in respect of any liability or obligation relating to Demerged
Undertaking.

The Resulting Company undertakes to have all legal or other proceedings initiated by or
against the Demerged Company referred to in Clause 13.1 above transferred into its
name and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the
Resulling Company to the exclusion of the Demerged Company to the extent legally
permissible after the Scheme being effective. To the exlent such proceedings cannot be
taken over by the Resulting Company, the proceedings shall ba pursued by the
Demerged Company for and on behalf of the Resulting Company as per the instructions
of and entirely at the cost and expenses of the Resulting Company.

In case of any litigation, suils, recovery progeadings which are to be initiated or may ba
initiated against the Demerged Company in relation to Demerged Underaking including
Itigabons, suits, recovery proceedings relating to excisé duty and labour issues, the
Resulting Company shall be made party thereto and any payment and expenses made
therato shall be the liability of the Resulting Company. Any other litigation, suil, recovery
proceedings of excise duty or labour matters peraining to Demerged Undertaking that
may, arise after the Appointed Date, shall also stand transferred to the Resulting
Company and no liability shall ever be vested in the Demerged Company.

TREATMENT OF TAXES AND CONSEQUENTIAL MATTERS RELATING TO TAX

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as
specified under section 2(1844) of the Income-tax Act, 19681, If any terms or provisions of
the Scheme are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said
section of the Income-tax Act, 1861 at a later date including resulting from an amendment
of law or for any other reason whaltsoeaver, the Scheme shall stand modified 1o the extent
determined necassary to comply with section 2(19A4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, Such
maodification will howewver not affect the other parts of the Scheme.
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142

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all taxes,
duties, cess payable by the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking
including all advance tax payments, tax deducted at source or any refunds [ credit /
claims relating thereto shall, for all purposes, be treated as advance tax payments, tax
deducted at source or refunds [ credit / claims, as the case may be, of the Hesulting
Company, provided however thal any direct and indirect taxes that cannot spacifically be
earmarked as the liability or refunds f/ credit / claims relating to the Demerged
Undertaking shall continue to be borne by the Demerged Company. It is specifically
provided that if the Demerged Company or their successor(s) receives any refunds /
credit / claims or incurs any liability in respect of the Demerged Undertaking, the same
shall be on behalf of and as a trustee of the Resulting Company and the same shall be
refunded to / paid by the Resulling Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all
unavailed credits and sxemptions, margin money, retention money, depaosit with statulory
authorities, other deposits and benefit of carred forward losses and other statulory
benefits, Including in respect of income tax (including MAT credit remaining after
utilization of the same by the Demerged Company), Cenvat, customs, VAT, sales tax,
service tax, GST etc. relating to the Demerged Underlaking fo which the Demerged
Company ig entitied to shall be available to and vest in the Resulting Company, withoul
any further act or deed

If the Demerged Company is enlitled to any benefits under the incentive schemes and
policies including deduction under Section 35(2AB) of the Income-lax Act, 1961 or
concessions relating to the Demerged Undertaking under any tax laws or Applicable
Laws, the Resulting Company shall be entitled as an integral part of the Scheme to claim
such benefit or incentives or deductions as the case may be without any specific approval

O parmission.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company are permifted to revise and file their respective income lax returns, including
lax deducted al source certificales, GST returns and other tax retums for the period
commencing on and from the Appointed Date, and to claim refunds/ credits, pursuant to

the provisions of this Scheme.

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company shall be empowered o determine if
any specific tax liability or any tax proceeding relates to the Demerged Undertaking and
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151

15.2.

16.

16.1.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC,

Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, insurance,
letters of intent, undertakings, arangements, policies, agreements and other instruments,
if any, of whatsoever nature pertaining to Demerged Undertaking to which the Demerged
Company is a party and which is subsisting or having effect on the Effective Date, shall
be in full force and effect against or in favour of the Resulting Company and may be
enforced by or against the Resulting Company as fully and effectually as if, instead of the
Demarged Company, the Rasulting Company had baan a party therato.

The Resulting Company shall enter into andfor issue andior execute deeds, wrtings or
canfimations or enler into any tripartite arrangements, confirmaticns or novations, to
which the Demerged Company will, if necessary, also be party in order 1o give formal
effect to the provisions of this Scheme. The Resulting Company shall be deemed to be
authorized 10 execule any such deeds, wrilings or confirmations on behalf of the
Demerged Company for the Demerged Undertaking and to implement or carry out all
formalities required to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme.

REMAINING BUSINESS UNDERTAKING

It is clarified that the Remaining Business Undertaking of the Demarged Company shall
continue with the Demerged Company as follows:

{a) The Remaining Businese Undertaking of the Demerged Company and all the
assets, liabilties and obligations peraining thereto shall continue to belong to and
be vested in and ba managed by the Demerged Company.

{a) Al legal and other proceedings by or against the Demerged Company under any
statute, whether pending and / or ansing on or bafore the Appointed Date and
relating to the Remaining Business Undertaking of the Demerged Company
(including those relating to any property, investments, right. power, liability,
obligation or duty, of the Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining
Business Underaking) shall be continued and enforced by or against the
Demerged Company,
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) With effect from the Appointed Date and including the Effective Date:

i. The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on and (o be
carrying on all business and activities relating to the Remaining Business
Undertaking for and on its own behall,

ii. All income or profit aceruing to the Demerged Company or expenditure or
losses arising or incurred by it refating to the Remaining Business Undenaking
are and shall for all purposes, be treated as the income or profit or expenditure
or lpsses, as the case may be, of the Demerged Company,;

17. F ACTI

17.1. The transfer of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company to the Resulting
Company under Clause 4 above and the continuance of proceedings by or against the
Resulting Company under Clause 13 above shall not affect any ftransaction or
proceedings already concluded by the Demerged Company or after the Appointed Dale
till the Effective Date, to the end and intent thal the Resuling Company accepl and
adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Demerged Company for the
Demerged Undartaking in respect therelo as done and execuled on behalf of itself,
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18.

18.1.

18.2.

18.3.

"\. ""n
.., )
|3 .-l.".
Fage 30 of 33

PART C

GE c

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVAL [ SANCTIONS

The Scheme is conditional upon subject to:

a) Obtaining no-objection/ observation lefler from the Stock Exchanges/ SEBI in
relation to the Scheme;

b) The Scheme being approved by requisite majorties of the members andior
creditors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company as may be
directed by the Mational Company Law Tribunal;

e The requisite consent, approval or permission of the Central Govemment or any
other statutory or regulatory authority, which by law may be necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme;

d) Approval of the Scheme by the National Company Law Tribunal;

&) Certified copy of the order of the Mational Company Law Tribunal, sanctioning the
Scheme being filed with the Registrar of Companies, Telangana.

In the event of this Scheme failing to lake effect finally, this Scheme shall become null
and woid and in that case no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue fo or be
incurred inter-se by the parties or their shareholders or creditors or employees or any

other person.

If any part of this Scheme is invalid, ruled illegal by any Court of competent jurisdiction, or
unenforcaable under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the parties that such
part shall be severable from the remainder of this Scheme, and this Scheme shall not be
affected thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme to become
materially adverse to any party, in which case the Board of Directors of the Demenged
Company and the Resulting Company involved in the Scheme shall attempt to bring
about a modification in this Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties the benefits, and
obligations of this Scheme, including but not limited to such part. i

.;';."-*vnj'\,'
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18.

18.1

19.2

19.2

201

APPLICATION TO THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall, with all reasenable dispatch,
make a joint application lo the National Company Law Tribunal, under Sections 230 to
232 read with section 66 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Act, seeking
arders for dispensing with or convening, holding and conducting of the meetings of the
classes of their respective members and / or creditors and for sanctioning this Scheme,
with such modifications as may be approved by the National Company Law Tribunal.

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall be entithed, pending the
effectiveness of the Schemae, to apply to any Appropriate Authority, if required, under any
Appligable Law for such consents and approvals, as agreed between the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company, which the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company may require to effect the transactions contemplated under the Scheme or carry
on the Demerged Undenaking, in any case subject to the terms as may be mutually
agreed between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

Upon this Schemea beacoming effective, the respective shareholders of the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company shall be deemed to have also accorded their
approval under all relevant provisions of the Act for giving effect to the provisions
contained in this Scheme.

MODIFICATIONS | AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

Subject to approval of Mational Company Law Tribunal, the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company by their respective Boards of Direclors ("the Board”, which term
shall include Committes thereof), may assent to/make andior consent to any
modificationsfamendments to the Scheme or to any conditions or limitations thal the
Mational Company Law Tribunal and/or any other Appropriate Authority under law may
deem fit to direct or impose, or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable

or appropriate as a result of subsequent events or otherwize by them (i.e. the Board of
Directors). The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company by their respective
Board are authorized to take all such sleps as may be necessary, desirable or proper to
resclve any doubts, difficulties or questions whatsgever for carmying the Scheme, whether
by reason of any directive or Orders of any other authonties or olherwise howsosver,
arising out of or under or by virtue of the Scheme andfor any matter concerned or

connected therewith,
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22.1,

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in the preceding
Clause not being obtained andf or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the National
Company Law Tribunal or such other Appropriate Authority and [ or the Qrder not being
passed as aforesaid within such period or pericds as may be agresd upon between the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company by their Board of Directors, the Board
of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resuling Company are hereby
empowerad and authorized to agrea to and extand the Scheme from time to time without
any limitation, this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect, save and
except in respect of any act or deed done pror therato as is contemplated hereunder or
as to any rights and! or liabilities which might have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto
and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided

in tha Schame or as may otherwise arise in law.
COST, CHARGES, AND EXPENSES

All costs, charges, fees, taxes including duties (including the stamp duty andlor transfer
charges, if any, applicable in relation to this Scheme), levies and all other expenses, if
any (save as exprassly otherwise agreed) arising out of or incurred in carrying out and
implementing the terms and conditions of this Scheme and matters incidental thereto
shall be borne by the Resulting Company and the same shall be eligible for deduction of
expenditure incurred as per section 3500 of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
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SCHEDULE 1

DETAILS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING AS AT THE

APPOINTED DATE
By Particulars oo Amount (in lakhs)
Assels
| Non-current assets
Property (Land & Buildings etc.), plant and equipment 27.532.12
Capital work-in-progress 5,869.68
[ Other intangible assets 26542
Investments - 705
Loans - 634
Chher financial assats A09.00
Defarred tax assats (net) === -
Other nen-current assets - 338433
Total Non-current assets 37,673.94
| Current assels N
Inventaries = 14,000.91
Einancial assats
Investments = =T —
Trade receivables - 6,261.06
Cash and cash equivalents ) -
Bank balances other than above -
Loans 1478
" Other financial assets 0.28
Current Tax Asset(net) 912 06
Other current assets - 5,223.91 |
Total Current assets 26,413.00
TOTAL ASSETS 64,086.94
Liabilities o i
Non-current-liabilities o
Financial ligbilil
| Borrowings I 2464
Provisions 305.95
" Deferred tax liabilities (n 333147

| SE——

o
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Other non-current liabilities

Total Non-current financial liabilities 3,662.06
Current liabilities
Fi ial ligbliti
Borrwﬂngs- 307533
Trade payables 437213
Other financial liabilities 3,173.00
" Other current liabilities - 919.53
Provisions © 430.07
Total current Nabilities 11.979.09
' TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,641.16
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SCHEDULE 2

Details of the Patent grants of the I n ki
PCT PCT Details of |
sI. s Application Pu::lc:iun N;:Iionll Gﬂl‘lttld Grant Grant Expiry
No No & filing = | EMe country | number | date date
et published enterad name
_date countries | == =~ |
Improved
process for
the
preparation i Nt
of PCT/AND3/00 | WOR2005/030
31-12- | renewed
: intermediate | 0325  29- 738 07- | India India 237648 2000 i
s useful for | Sep-2003 Apr-2005 !
lapsed
the
preparation
of
Zonisamide
Total number of granted countries: 1
= [07-07- [29-12- |
Canada 2552009
2000 2023
a ; | 2003288 | 16-May- | 28-12-
ustralia
712 20M 2023
Improved | Canada, chi CN1005 | 28-Jul- | 29-12-
ina
Process far Australia, 19517 2009 2023
PCTANDINOOD | WOR2005/0683 S| S e I
the China, 10-06- | 29-12-
2 s 0401 29- 63 14-Jul- USA UsA 7385072 ki i
e | Dec2003 | 2008 :
of . Japan, 1 o 168-07- | 29-12-
apan
Entacapone Europe Z 2010 2023
e —
| 26-11- validatio
Europe 16899753
2014 n hence
[apsed
| Total number of granted countries: &
| Novel 27-
; : PCTAND4/00 | WO/2006/038 i . 08-10-
intermediate Inclia, India 281508 Jurn
0316 08- | 220 13-Apr- 2024
s useful for | Canada,
3 Oet-2004 2006 :
the | Australia, | Canada 08-10-
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e [ e _|' pCT PCT Details of = ]_ﬁ—
sl Application Publication Mational Granted St Giant Bipley
Title Ho & Phase country
Mo Mo & filing Mumber | date | date
published anlerad nama
date
date countries ) )
preparation China, Mow- 2024
of MNew 2010
Aripiprazole Zealand, 2004323 | 1-Mar- | 08-10-
Australia
and USA, 810 2012 2024
methods for Europe, & | CN1010 | 15-12- | 08-10-
Ina
the Japan, GaTRD 2010 2024
preparation Eurasia, Mew 28-04- | 08-10-
854731
of the novel South Zealand ;mm | 2024
intermediate Korea, A 18-
08-10-
s and lsrael Usa 7872132 | Jan- 208
Aripiprazole 2011 .
‘Europe |
{Validated
in the _
following 4 '
"% | Ep18123 | 21-May- | 0810
countries:
a5 2008 2024
Italy,
Francs,
UK,
Germany)
08-089- | 08-10-
Japan 4819818 |
2011 2024
Q8-
South 1041851 | J 08-10-
un-
Korea 2024
201
Eurasia
(Validated
in the
following &
e 28-Aug- | 08-10-
countries: 12180
) 2000 | 2024
Azebaijan,
Armenia,
Belarus, |
Kazakhsin, |
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PCT PCT Details af
Bl Title Application Fu::l: 3 N;::unnl Er:n:'d Grant Grant Expiry
No No & filing b ase | count¥ | number | date date
s published entered name
date countries | : S JE
Kyrgyzstan
' , Meldova,
Russia,
Tajikistan,
Turkmenist
an)
| 2907 |o0&10-
Igrael | 1824389
|: 2011 2024
| - - Total number of granted countries: 22
EEEEE [
An 20-01- | renewed
India 238064
Improved India, 2010 , 50
B PCTANOS/IO0 | WOr200TH020 USA lickad
r i a
Py 0426 21- 654 22- it G 21“12
e = =12=
. Dec-2005 Feb-2007 USA 7923566
preparation Korea 2011 2025
of Losartan South | | 20003- | 2112
1250820
Korea 2013 2025
Total number of granted countries: 3 |
R _ Indi re bt
ndia
Process for India, 2010 2025
the FETARN T8 LSA, US7915 | 28-03- 21-12
5 | preparation i =i8 Sol lh e 425 IZD;‘I ED;E -
u
Dec-2005 B-Mar-2007
of Losartan Korea South | 12-07- | 21-12-
1050256
| . Korza 2011 2025
Total number of granted countries: 3
A process E Bl
for the
i PCT/ANOSIOO | WOI2007/094 .
(=] on 14 13-02-
8 ;Z $E 0143 25- 007 23-Aug- India India 2372580 2009 2026
Apr-2006 2007 '
isomers of
Entacapone
e i Total number of granted countries: 1
" Process for | PCT/AN2008/ India, 28-04-
the 000270 28- _ USA, 2028




Title

PCT
Application
Mo & filing
date

PCT
Fublication
No &
published
date

Details of
Mational
Phase
entered
countrigs

Granted
country
name

Grant
date

Grant
MNumbar

Expiry

preparation
of Malathion
and its
intermediate
0,0-
dimethldithio
phosphoric
acid for

| pharmaceuti

cal use

Apr-2008

| Jan-2009

Europe

26-03-

2170078
2014

USA

Mo
validatic
n hence
lapsed

08-03-

281140
i 2017

Europe

09-07-
2027

Total number of granted countries: 2

Improved
process for
the
preparation
of
Dorzolamide
hydrochlorid
e and
preparation
of its novel
intermediate

PCTAM2009/
000228 06-
Apr-2009

WOR2010/061
398 03-Jun-
2010

India

24-08-
2015

India 268270

27-11-
2028

| Total number of granted countries: 1

Improved
Process for
the
preparation
of Zolpidem
and
preparation
of its novel
intermediate

l
r

PCTAN2008/
000266 28-
April-2008

WO2009/007
895
19-Mar-2009

India

30-10-
207

India 2688884

09-07-
2027

Total number of granted countr
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| ——

| yer PCT Details of
sl. Application Publication Mational Granted Grant Grant Expiry
Title Mo & Phase country
Mo Mo & filing Mumber date date
date published entered name
date countries
1312- | 18-11-
usa 9518028
Process for 2016 2033
the 24-03- | 18-11-
Japan 6114475
preparation 207 2033
of Mo
. LSA, -
Rosuvastati | PCT/ANZD1Y | WOR2015/008 21-06- validatio
- Japan, Europa 3022213
i n Calcium 000702 18- 284 22- lhd 2017 n, hence
ndia,
and MNov-2013 Jan-2015 lapsed
: Europe
preparation Under proseculion,
of its novel examination report 18.07
intermediate India received, response 2013
| & to be filed 20-Mov-
l 2018
Total number of granted countries: 2
Process for T 10-10- | 27-01-
Usa 4783506
the large 2017 2034
scale | 28-08- | 27-01-
Japan 6216073
| production | 2017 2034 .
of 1H- LSA,
| PCTANZOY4/ | WO/2015/037 Ma
[1.2,3triazel Japan, 29-11- | validatio
e 000062 27- 013 itk Europa 3044212 i
i,

Jan-2014 19-Mar-2015 i i henga
intermediate Europe lapsed
1-Benzyl-

| Under prosecution,
g Indi N i
ndia examination
[1,2,3)triazol ; 2033
| yet to be received

|
Total number of granted countries: 2

Note: All Fatents are valid for 20 years in all National Fhase entered countries from PCT filing date
and in Indva, all Palenls are valid for 20 years from Indian filing date [(Priorly date). "Patent term
extension” up lo five years is possible in USA, Europe, Japan, Australia, South Korea, Eurasia
(Except Tajikistan) amd israel,

Page 39 of 39

75 I



Annexure - 2

KARVY & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

§ February 2019

To

The Board of Directors

Suven LHe Sclences Limited

6th Flpor, SDE Serene Chambers,
Avenue - T, Road Mo 5,

Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad - 500 034, Telangana

The Board of Directors

Suven Pharmacoeuticals Limited
Bth Floor, SDE Serene Charmbers,
Avenue -7, Road No 5,

Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad — 500 034, Telangana

Re: Share Entitlement Ratic Report for proposed demerger of “Contract Research and
Manufacturing Services Undertaking” of Suven Life Sciences Limited into Suven

Pharmacauticals Limited
Dear Sirs,

Whe have been requested by the management of Suven Life Sciences Limited (hereinafter referred to
as "BLSL") and Suven Pharmaceulicals Limited (hereinafter referred to as "SPL"), (collectively
referred to as “Companies®) o issue Share Entillernent Ratio Report for issue of equity shares of SPL,
In connection with proposed Scheme of Arrangement (hersinafter referred to as “Scheme") between
Suven Life Sciences Limited and Suven Phamaceuticals Limited and their respective shareholders and
creditors under the provisions of section 230 o 232 read with section B8 of the Companies Act, 2013
and othér applicable provisions for demarger of "Contract Rasaarch and Manufacturing Services
Undertaking” (CRAMS) of SLSL into SPL.

1. BACKGROUND
1.1. Suwven Life Sclencas Limitad

. SL3L was originally incorporated on March 8, 1888 under the Companies Act, 1855 in the
State of Andhra Pradesh with the name "Suven Pharmaceulicals Pvl. Lid".

¥ Later on in the lerms of Section 31(1) / 44 of the Companies Act, 1958, the name was
changed to SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED on 4th January, 1985 and

N Later after passing special resolution in the AGM on September 20, 2003, the name had
changed to Suven Life Sciences Limited.

. The Corporate |dentity Number of SLSL Is L24110TG1988PLCO0ST13. The Registersd
Office of SLSL is situated at Door No. 8-2-334, 6th Floor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road
Mo. 5, Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana 500034,

. The equity shares of SLSL are listed on BSE Limited (Stock Code: 530239) and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (Stock Coda: SUVEN-EQ).

L SLSL has 2 (bwo) business verticals:
Comlract Research and Manufacluring Services (CRAMS) = SLSL CRAMS Is engaged in
development and manufacturing of New Entity (MCE) basad Intermadiates,
Agtive Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API), /-M\ fa and formulated drugs Under
§ )
Chariened

Mo.2, Bhooma Plaza, St No. 4, Avenue 7, Ba ills, Hyderabad - 34
Phone : 040-23354905, 23358625, Fax : 040-23358507
Email id : info@karvycompany.com
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Contract Research and Manufacturing Services for global pharmaceutical, bictechnology
and chemical companies.

Discovery Research — SLSL Discovery Research is focused on discovering, developing and
commercializing novel pharmaceutical products, which are first in class or best in class CNS
(Central Nervous System) therapies using GPCR targats for the treatment of cognitive impairment
associated with neurodegenerative disorders like Alzheimer's disease, Attention deficient
hyperactivity disorder (ADHD), Huntington's disease, Parkinson and Schizophrenia, Major
Deprassive Disorders (MDD) and sleap disorders like Narcolepsy etc.

1.2. Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

. SPL is a public limited company incorporated on November 67, 2018 under the Gompanies
Act, 2013 in the State of Telangana.

- The Corporate Identity Mumber of SPL Is U24285TG2018PLCA128171.

C The Registered Office of SPL is situated at Door No. B-2-334, 6th Floor, SDE Serens
Chambers, Road Mo, 5, Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana 500034,

. We understand that SPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of SLSL l.e. the enfire share capital
of SPL is held by SLSL.

The management of SLSL is considering demerger of its CRAMS Undertaking into SPL with effect from
Appointed Date of 1 Oclober 2018. We have been informed thal the CRAMS Undertaking will be
demerged to SPL and in consideration, equity shares of SPL would be issued to the equity shareholders

of SLSL.

The existing share capital of SPL, which is held by SLSL, will ba cancelled as a part of the proposed
Scheme.

2. SOURCES OF INFORMATION
Far the purposes of this exercise, we have relied upon the following sources of information:

a) Management Cerified provisional position of assets and liabilties of CRAMS Undertaking
of SLSL as on September 30, 2018 prepared in compliance with section 2(1844) of the
Income-tax Act, 1881,

b)  Current and proposed shareholding pattern of SPL.

¢) Draft Scheme of Arangement between Suven Life Sciences Limiled and Suven
Pharmaceuticals Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under the
provisions of section 230 to 232 read with section 65 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions.

d)  Such other information and explanations as we required and which have been provided by
the managameant of SLSL and SPL.

4. LIMITATION

3.1, Owr report is subject to the scope imitations detailed hereinafter. As such the repor is to be read
in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents referred to herein.

32 Our repor is neither should it be construed as our opining nor cedifying the compliance of the
proposed Demerger of CRAMS Undertaking of SLSL with the provisions of any law including
companies, RBI, taxation and capital market related laws or as regards any legal implications or
issues arising from such proposed Damerger.

3.3. The information contained herein and our report is intended only for the sole use and information
of the Companies, and only in connection with the proposed demerger as aforesaid including for
the purpose of oblaining requisite approvals. It is 1o be noled thal any reproduction, copying or
otherwise quoting of this report ar any part thereof, other than in connection with the proposed
demerger a5 aforasaid, can be done only with o ission in writing.

.




3.4.

3.5

3.6

ar

3.8.

3.9

4.

4.1

Mo investigation on the Companies claims to title of assels has been made for the purpose of this
report and their claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid. Therefore, no responsibility is
assumed for matiers of a legal nature.

We have not carried out audit of the information provided for the purpose of this engagement. We
assume no responsibility for any errors in the above information furnished by the Companies and
consequential impact on the present exercise,

Qur work does not constitute certification of the historical financial statements including the
working results of the Companies referred to in this report. Accordingly, we are unable to and do
not express an opinion on the faimess or accuracy of any financial information referred to in this
report. Our analysis and results are specific to the purpose of this report as per agreed terms of
our engagement. It may not be valid or used for any other purpose or as at any other date. Also, it
may not be valid if done on behalf of any other entity.

Any third person/party intending to provide financefinvest in the shares/businesses of any of the
Companies / CRAMS Undertaking, shall do so, after seeking their own professional advice and
after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are making an informed
decision.

This report is prepared only in connection with the proposed demerger and transfer exclusively for
the use of the Companies and for submission to any regulatory/statutory authority as may be
required under any law.

Mis. Karvy & Co, Chartered Accountants, nor its partners, managers, employees or agents of any
of thefn, makes any representation or warranty, exprass or implied, as to the accuracy,
reazonableness or completeness of the information, based on which this report is being issued. All
such parties expressly disclaim any and all liability for, or based on or relating to any such
infarmation contained in this report.

BASIS FOR DETERMINATION OF RATIO AND CONCLUSION

In order to replicate the mimror shareholding of SLSL in SPL and considering that all the
shareholders of SLSL are and will, upon demerger, be the ultimate beneficial owners of SPL in the
same ratio (inter-se) as they hold shares in SLSL, we recommend a ratio of 1 (One) equity share
of INR 1/- each fully paid up of SPL for every 1 (One) existing equity share of SLSL of INR 1/-
each fully paid up to equity shareholders of SLSL in consideration for the demerger of CRAMS
Undertaking.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For KARYY & CO.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 001757

Acoouniants | o
Firm b,
(AJAYKUMAR mamuur' 4 Uﬂl?_/q

Partner
Membership No 021989

wr&.‘~
Al i8N,
gﬂhﬂ‘dl‘ﬂd

UDIN: 19021383AAAAAATEEE

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 05/02/2018

N /1



Annexure - 3

Ernst & Young Marcrant Basking Services Pvt. Lid. W9 228 G1%2 0000
1 dth The Rusry faar #3f 22 6192 1000
295 i Bapat Marg oy oo
T ™
m:’:‘:}:"" humbe-d{30 028, india

05 February 2019

The Board of Directors

Suven Life Sclences Limited
SDE Serene Chambers,

Gith Floor Avenue, 7 Road No. 5,
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - S00034

Sub: Faimess opinion on the share entitlement ratio for the shareholders of Suven Life

Sciences Limited pursuant to the proposed demerger of its Contract Research and
Manufactu Services Undertaking into Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

Dear SifMadam.

We refier to the engagement letter dated 5 November 2018 with Emst & Young Merchant Banking
Services Private Limited (hereinafler refermed o as “we” or "EYMBESPL" or “us”) wherein  Suven
Life Sciences Limited (hereinafter refermed to as “you” or "Client” or the *Company” or *Suven” or
*SLEL") has requested us fo provide a faimess opinion on the share enfifliement ralio as at 30
Seplember 2018 ("Valuation Date”) recommended by a Chartered Accountant =M/s Karvy and
Company (“Valuer”) for allotment of shares of the new company - Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
("SPL") o the shareholders of SLSL, with respect to the proposed demerger of Contract Ressarch
and Manufacturing Services Undertaking ("CRAMS Undertaking”) of the Company.
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SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

We understand that the Company is contemplating to demerge the CRAMS Undertaking inte SPL
("Proposed Transaction”) at the share entitlement ratio as recommended by the Valuer.

The restructuring will be performed in the following steps as per the draft Scheme of Arrangement
(*Schema’):

1) Curently, SPL is owned by & shareholders and the shares from these shareholders will
be acquired by SLSL prior to the Proposed Transaction;

2) SLSL will demerge the CRAMS Undertaking inin SPL and upon the Scheme becoming
effective. the existing equity shares of 1,00,000 of INR 1/- each of SPL held by SLSL
shall stand cancelled without any paymenl.

3) As a part of the Scheme, the authorized share capital of SLSL fo the extent of
20,00,00,000 aquity shares of INR 1/- each will be transferred to and vesled as the
authorized share capital of SPL.

The Scheme provides that upon the demerger being effective, shareholders of SLSL, for every 1
equity share of INR. 1/ - each fully paid, will receive 1 equity share of INR 1/ - each fully paid up
of SPL, in addition to and not in lieu of the equity shares held by them in SLSL (*Share Entitlement
Ratia").

In this connection, the Management of the Company ("Management’) has engaged EYMBSFL o
submit a faimess opinion repor on the share entitlement ratio for the shareholders of SLSL, with
respect to the Proposed Transaction,

Our scope of work includes commenting only on the faimess of the share entitement ratio with
respect 1o the Proposed Transaction for the consideration of the Board of Directors of the
Company.

This repodt is our deliverable in respect of the above engagement.

This report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, imitations and disclaimers detailed
hereinafter. As such the report is to be read in tolality, and not in parts, in conjunclion with the
relevant documents referred to therein,

This report has been issued only for the purpose of facilitating the Proposed Transaction and
should not be used for any other purpose.
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SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with this exercise, we have received the following information from the
Management:

*  Draft report from the Valuer fitled “Share Enbitlement Ratio Report for proposed demerger of
*Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Underlaking” of Suven Life Sciences Limited
into Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited® and final aforesaid report from the Valuer dated 05
February 2018.

Draft Scheme of Aangement for the Demerger of CRAMS Undertaking into SPL.
Provisional split balance sheet of SLSL into CRAMS Undertaking and residual company as

at 31 March 2018 and 30 September 2018,
= Provisional balance sheet of SPL as at 31 December 2018,
« Background information provided through emails or during discussions.

We have also obtained further explanations and information considered reasonably necessary
for our exercise, from the Management.

STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS

Provision of faimess opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of our
regular valuation practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting f tax
due diligence, consulting or fax related services that may otherwise be provided by us or our
affiliates.

Faimess opinion analysis and result ane specific 1o the purpose of faimess opinion and are based
on the latest available balance sheel as agreed per terms of our engagement. It may nol be valid
for any other purpose or as at any olher date. Also, it may not be valid if done on behalf of any
other entity.

The opinion(s) rendered in this report only represent the opinion(s) of EYMBSPL based upon
information furnished by the Management and other sources and the said opinion(s) shall be
considered advisory in nature. Our opinion will however not be for advising anybody to take buy
or sell decision, for which specific opinion needs to be taken from expert advisors,

We were entilled lo rely upon the informalion provided by the Management withoul delailed
inquiry. Also, wa have been given fo understand by the Managament that it has made sure that
no refevant and material factors have been omitted or concealed or given inaccurately by people
assigned to provide information and clarifications lo us for this exercise and that it has checked
out relevance or materiality of any specific information to the present exercise with us in case of
any doubt. We have assumed that the information provided to us presents a fair image of CRAMS
Undertaking at the Valuation Date. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility for any emors in the
above information fumished by the Management and their impact on the present exercise. Also,
we assume no responsibility for technical information furnished by the Management and believed
to be reliable.
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Our report is not nor should it be construed as our recommending the transfer or opining or
certifying the compliance of the Proposed Transaction with the provisions of any law including
companies, taxation and capital market related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues
arising from such Proposed Transaction,

The fee for the report is not contingent upon the results reported.
We owe responsibility fo only the Board of Directors of the Company and nobody else.

We do not accept any liability to any third party in relation to the issue of this report, and our report
is conditional upon an express indemnity from the Company in our favor holding us harmless from
and against any cost, damage, expense and other consequence in connection with the provision
of this report.

Meither the report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any regisiration statement,
prospecius, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or
document given to third parties without our prior written consent, other than making the report
available for inspection in physical or in an elecironic form from the day of posting of notice il
day of meeting/declaration of resulis in case of postal ballot, as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including the rules made thereunder), secretarial standards and other
applicable legal requirements for seeking shareholders’ approval for the Proposed Transaction.
In addition, we express no opinion or recommendation as to how the shareholders of the
Company should vole at any shareholders’ meeting(s) to be held in connection with the transfer.

This report is subject to the laws of India.
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BACKGROUND OF SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED, SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS
LIMITED AND CONTRACT RESEARCH MANUFACTURING SERVICES UNDERTAKING

Suven Life Sciences Limited

Suven is a bio-pharmaceutical company which manufactures and sells bulk drugs and
intermediaries worldwide. It operates through three business segments - Manufacturing,
Services, and Research and Development. It manufactures bulk drugs and intermediates under
contract manufacturing services. It also provides a range of drug discovery and development
support services o pharma and biotech companies. For the year ended 31 March 2018, Suven
reporied fotal consolidated operating revenue of INR 6,252.6 milion and profit after tax of INR
1,236.9 million,

As a part of the Scheme and before the issue of shares pursuant lo the demerger, the share
capital of SLSL will be as under:

Share Capital Amount (In INR)
Authorized Share Capital

20,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- each 20,00,00,000
Total 20,00,00,000
lzsued, subscribed and paid-up Share Capital

12,72,82,478 Equity shares of INR 1 /- each 127282478
Total 12,72,82,478

Contract Research and Manufacturing Services

CRAMS Undertaking is engaged in development and manufacturing of Mew Chemical Enlity
based Intermediates, Active Phammaceutical Ingredients, Specialty Chemicals and formulated
drugs under contract research and manufacturing services for global pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and chemical companies.

Page 5 of 7

N 3



EY

Building a better
working workd

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

SPL is a public imited company incorporated on 06 Movember 2018 under the Companies Act,

2013in the State of Telangana.

As a part of the Scheme and before the issue of shares pursuant to the demerger, the share

capital of SPL will be as under:

Share Capital Amount (In INR)
Authorized Share Capital 20,10,00,000
20,10,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- each |
Total 20,10,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up Share Capital

100,000 equity shares of INR 1/-each 1,00,000
Other equity (71,3186}
Total 26,664
Cash and cash equivalents 28,664
Total 28,684

gt By, -
T
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APPROACH - BASIS OF DETERMINATION OF THE SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO FOR THE
PROPOSED TRANSACTION

The Valuer has recommended 1o issue a ratio of 1 (One) equity share of INR 1/- each fully paid
up of SPL for every 1 (One) exisling equity share of SLSL of INR 1/- each fully paid up in
consideration for the demerger of CRAMS Undertaking

OUR COMMENT ON THE VALUER'S REPORT

Based on our independent calculation and on consideration of all the relevant factors and
circumstances, we believe that the share entittement ratio as recommended by the Yaluer in our
opinion s fair to the equity shareholders of SLSL.

It should be noted that we have examined only the faimess of the share entitiement ratio for the
Proposed Transaction and have not examined any other matier including economic rationale of
the transfier per & or accounting and lax matiers involved in the Propased Transaction.

Parag Mehta .. .o/
Principal Ml kL
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18 March 2018
The Board of Directors
Suven Life Sciences Limited
SDE Serena Chambers,

Bth Floor Avenue, 7 Road No. 5,
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034

Sub: Appendix to the fairess opinion on the share entitlement ratio for the shareholders of

Suwven Life Sciences Limited nt to the demerger of its Contract Research and
n Un king i icals Limited dated 5 February

2019

Dear SirMadam,

We refer to the engagement letter dated 5 November 2018 and Addendum Letier dated 18 March
2018 with Emsl and Young Merchanl Banking Services LLP (formerly known as Emst & Young
Merchant Banking Senvices Private Limited) (hereinafter refermed to as “we” or *EYMBSLLP" or "us”)
and the report on the faimess opinion on the share entitiement ratio for the shareholders of Suven
Life Sciences Limited ("SLSL") pursuant 1o the proposed demerger of its Confract Research and
Manufacturing Services Undertaking into Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited dated 5 February 2019
(‘Fairness Opinion Report’).

We had issued the Faimess Opinion Repart lo SLEL which was submitted to Malional Stock

Exchange of India Limited for the approval of the Scheme of Arrangement pertaining 1o the demerger.
It is in this connection that SLSL has received a query from NSE pertaining to SPL's financials. Our

response to the query is represented in this Appendix.

<<(nientionally lefl blark=>
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The financial information of Suven Pharmaceutical Limited represented in the Fairmess Opinion
Report was based on provisional financial statements. The same is now amended as per the Audited
Financials dated 5 March 2019 and is presanted below:

Particulars (INR millien) As per provisional financials As per Audited
and presented in the | financials. Now to

Fairness Opinion Report be considerad |

Issued, subscribed and paid-up Share Capital f

1,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- each 1,00,000 1,00,0:00 |
Other equity (71,316) (B5,301)
“Total equity 28,684 14,699
Current Liability Nil 13,985
| Total Equity & Liability 28,684 | 28,684

l

Cash and cash equivalents 28,684 BG4
Total 28,664 28,684

Considering the above, our epinion provided in the Faimess Opinion Report stays unchanged.

Yours faith

Parag Mehta
Partner

' '/
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Date: March 14, 2019

To,

The General Manager
Department of Corporate Services
BSE Limited

25th Floor, P. ). Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Stock Code: 530239
Dear Sir,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated
March 10, 2017 as amended from time to time (“SEBI Circular”) for the proposed Scheme of
Arrangement (Demerger) between Suven Life Sciences Limited (“Demerged Company” or
“SLSL”) and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (“Resulting Company” or “SPL”) and their
respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232 read with section 66 of
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013

We refer to our Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) between
the Demerged Company, Resulting Company and their respective shareholders and creditors.

Since the draft scheme and related documents were hosted/ uploaded on the website of the BSE on
February 18, 2019, please find enclosed herewith the Complaints Report as on March 14, 2019 for
your kind perusal in the format specified by the SEBI Circular.

The Complaints Report is also being uploaded on the website of the company, i.e.
http://www.suven.com/, as per requirement of the SEBI Circular.

We request you to kindly issue Observation Letter/No Objection at the earliest so as to enable us to
file the Scheme of Arrangements before the National Company Law Tribunal Bench at Hyderabad.

For Suven Life Sciences Limited

K. Hanumantha Rao
Company Secretary

Encl: as above

Suven Life Sciences Limited

Registered Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road No.5 | Avenue 7
Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN : L24110TG1989PLC009713
Tel: 91 40 2354 1142/ 3311/ 3315 Fax: 91 40 2354 1152 Email: info@suven.com website: www.suven.com
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Complaints Report as on March 14, 2019

Part- A
Sr. Mo. Part _h:ul_ar__s | Number |
L Number of complaints received directly NIL
2. r Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges/SEBI MIL
3. | Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) NIL
4. MNumber of complaints resolved | N.A.
> Number of complaints pending ‘ MN.A.

Part-B
Sr. No. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status

" —— (Resolved/ Pending)
-- Not applicable --

For Suven Life Sciences Limited

TR S

K. Hanumantha Rao | F/
Company Secretary izl B

Suven Life Sciences Limited
erﬁﬂﬁ:!: B-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road No.S | Avenue 7
Banjara Hilli | Hydevabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN ; LATIOTGHEE9PLOO0ST1S
Tedl: 91 40 2354 1427 33117 3315 Fau: 971 40 2354 1152 Ernail; infoi@suven.com website: www.suven.com
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Date: April 16, 2015

To,

Manager - Listing Compliance

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G
BandraKurla Complex, Bandra (E)
Mumbai - 400051

Stock Code: SUVEN-EQ
Dear Sir,

Sub: Submission of Complaints Report as per Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure  Reguirements), Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI  Circular Mo
CFO/DIL3fCIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 as amended from time to time ["SEBI
Circular”) for the proposed Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger] between Suven Life
Sciences Limited ("Demerged Company” or “SLSLY) and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
{“Resulting Company” or “SPL") and their respective shareholders and creditors under
sections 230 to 232 read with section 66 of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013

We refer to our Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger] between
the Demerged Company, Resulting Company and thelr respective shareholders and creditors.

Since the draft scheme and related documents were hosted/ uploaded on the website of the NSE on
March 25, 2019, please find enclosed herewith the Complaints Report as on April 16, 2019 for your
kimd perusal in the format specified by the SEBI Circular,

The Complaints Report is also being uploaded on the website of the company, i.e.
http:ffwww suven.comy/, as per requirement of the SEBI Circular.

We request you to kindly issue Obsenvation Letter/No Objection at the earliest 5o as to enable us to
file the Scheme of Arrangements before the National Campany Law Tribunal Banch at Hyderabad.

For Suven Life Sciences Limited

Company Secretary
Encl: as above T

Suven Life Sciences Limited

Registered Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serens Chambaers | Gth Floor | Rosd No.S | Avenue 7
Banjaca Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN : L2ANOTGIS9PLO0OSTA
Teek 91 &0 2354 1424 3370 3315 Fa: 91 40 2354 1152 Email: info@isuvenoom websile: wes, suvin.com
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Complaints Report as on April 16, 2019

Part- A

Sr. No. Particulars ) Number

L Mumber of complaints received directly NIL

Z. Mumber of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges/SEBI MIL

3. Total Number of complaints/feomments received [142) NIL

4. Number of complaints resclved MN.A.

5. Mumber of complaints pending MN.A,
Part - B

&r. No. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status

(Resolved/ Pending)

== Mot applicable --

For Suven Life Sciences Limited

K. Hanumantha Rag
Company Secretary

Suven Life Sciences Limited

Registerad Office: 8-2-334 | 5DE Serene Chambers | Gih Floor | Road Me.5 | Avenue 7
Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | india | CIN : L24110TGI989PLODGITIZ
Tel: 91 40 2354 142/ 3507/ 3315 Faw: 91 40 2554 1152 Email: info@suencom website: waw.cuven.com
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED, HELD ON TUESDAY,
THE 5™ DAY OF FEBRUARY 2019, AT 3:30 PM, AT HYATT PLACE, ROAD NO 1,
BANJARA HILLS, HYDERABAD, TELANGANA, INDIA - 500 034

APPROVAL OF THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and
other applicable provisions, if any, read with related rules thereto as applicable under the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force), and in accordance with relevant clauses of the Memorandum of Association
and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the requisite approval(s) of the
shareholders and/or creditors of the Company and further subject to the requisite approvals,
consents, sanctions and permissions of BSE Limited (“BSE"), National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (“NSE"), Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI"), Central Government, other
concerned regulatory authorities and the sanction of the Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench ("NCLT" or “Tribunal”) and/or such other appropriate authority, as
may be applicable, the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) be and is
hereby accorded to the Draft Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme") between Suven Life
Sciences Limited (“the Demerged Company’) and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (“the
Resulting Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Demerged Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors placed before the Board and initialed by the Chairman, for the
purposes of identification, which provides for demerger of “Contract Research and
Manufacturing Services Undertaking” of the Company and transfer and vesting thereof into the
Resulting Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the Board be and is hereby accorded as a
shareholder of Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited to the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between
Suven Life Sciences Limited and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited and their respective

YR JE)
"N
N
NSO
Suven Life Sciences Limited
Registered Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road No.5 | Avenue 7
Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN : L24110TG1989PLC009713
Tel: 91 40 2354 1142/ 3311/ 3315 Fax: 91 40 2354 1152 Email: info@suven.com website: www.suven.com
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‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Share Enfitlement Ratio Reporl dated 5 February 2019
issued by Mr. K. Ajay Kumar from M/s. Karvy & Co, Chartered Accountants, as placed before
the Board be and is hereby noted and accepled.”

‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Fairness Opinion dated 5 February 2019 issued by Emst &
Young Merchant Banking Services Private Limited, on the Share Entitlement Ratio Report
prepared by Mr. K. Ajay Kumar from M/s. Karvy & Co, Chartered Accountants, as placed before
the Board, be and is hereby accepted and taken on record.”

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certificate dated 5 February 2018 issued by Mis, Tukaram &
Co, Chartered Accountants, statutory auditors of the Company, cerlifying inter-alia that the
Scheme is in compliance with applicable Indian Accounting Standards nolified under the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and
other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, as placed before the Board be and is hereby
noted and accepted.”

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report from the Audit Committee recommending the Draft
Scheme, taking into consideration, inter alia the Share Entitlement Ratio Report issued by Mr,
K. Ajay Kumar from M/s. Karvy & Co, Charlered Accountants, Fairness Opinion issued by Emst
& Young Merchant Banking Services Private Limited, the Audilor cerificale regarding the
accounting treatment issued by M/s. Tukaram & Co and non- applicability of Valuation Report
as placed before the Board, be and is hereby accepted and approved.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certificate dated 5 February 2019 issued by Mis. Tukaram &
Co, Chartered Accountants, slatutory auditors of the Company, certifying the non-applicability of
requirements prescribed in  Para I{A)(9)(a) of Annexure | of SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 ("SEBI Scheme Circular’) pursuant to Para
I{A)S)(c) of Annexure | of SEBI Circular as placed before the Board be and is hereby noted and
accepted.”

Suven Life Sciences Limited

Registered Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Foor | Road No.S | Avenue 7
Banjara Hille | Hydorabad - 500034 | Telangana | India | CIN - LM4110TGI989P 1000711
Tek 91 40 2354 1142/ 33117 3315 Faw: 91 40 2354 1152 Email: info@suven.com website: www e n.com
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board has decided that BSE Limited be chosen as
Designated Stock Exchange (“DSE") for coordinating with SEBI for obtaining approval of SEBI
in accordance with Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015")."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the following Directors/Executives, namely, Mr. Venkateswarlu
Jasti, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (DIN - 00278028) and K. Hanumantha Rao,
Company Secretary of the Company (collectively referred to as Authorized Representative(s) of
the Company) for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, be and are hereby severally
authorized to make such alteration and changes in the Scheme as may be expedient or
necessary for satisfying the requirement or conditions imposed by the NCLT or Stock
Exchanges in accordance with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the applicable SEBI
guidelines, or any regulatory authority provided prior approval of Board of Directors shall be
obtained for making any material changes in the said Scheme as approved in the Board

meeting.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the following Directors/Executives of the Company, namely, Mr.
Venkateswarlu Jasti, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (DIN - 00278028) and K.
Hanumantha Rao, Company Secretary for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, be and
are hereby authorized jointly or severally on behalf of the Board, inter alia, for:

(a) Filing the Scheme and/or any other information/ details/ documents/ annexures, etc., with
the concerned Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other body or regulatory authority or
agency to obtain approval or sanction to any of the provisions of the Scheme or for giving
effect thereto,

(b) Representing the Company before the Stock Exchanges, SEBI, as required, NCLT and
such other authorities or bodies for filing and making applications and for that purpose to
sign, execute and verify the Scheme, petitions, applications, undertakings, affidavits, all
other documents and deeds as may be required for the purpose and to make such
modifications/alterations as may be required by the aforesaid authorities or as may be
thought fit and expedient;

Suven Life Sciences Limited
Registered Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road No.5 | Avenue 7
Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN : L24110TG1989PLC009713
Tel: 91 40 2354 1142/ 3311/ 3315 Fax: 91 40 2354 1152 Email: info@suven.com website: www.suven.com
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{e) Filing of applications with the NCLT or other appropriate authorily seeking directions as to
holding/ digpensing with the meetings of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the
Company, for issuing necessary notices and holding the meeting of the shareholders /
creditors of the Company as may be directed by the NCLT to give effect to the Scheme:

(d) Finalizing and settling the draft of the notices for convening/ dispensing with the meetings
of the shareholders andlor creditors of the Company and the drafl of the explanatory
statements under any applicable provisions under the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI
Circulars, or, in terms of the directions of the NCLT, or effect any other modification or
amendment as they may consider necessary or desirable to give effect to the Scheme;

{e) Filing of petitions for confirmation/ approval/ sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT or such
other competent authority;

{f) Filing affidavits, pleadings, applications or any other proceadings incidental or deemed
necessary or useful in connection with the above proceedings and to engage Counsels,
Advocates, Solicitors, Chartered Accountants, Company 3Secretaries and other
professionals and to sign and execute vakalatnamas/ memorandum of appearance
wherever necessary, and sign and issue public advertisements and notices;

{g) Signing all applications, petitions, affidavits, pleadings, documents, relating to the Scheme
or delegate such autharity to another parson by a valid Power of Attorney;

(h) Obtaining approval from such other authorities and parties including the shareholders,
term loan lenders, financial institulions, creditors as may be considered necessary, to the
Scheme;

(i) Applying for and oblain requisite approval of the Central Government and any other
authority or agency, whose consent is required including those of any Lenders / Creditors;

() Appointing the merchant bankers, Scrutineers, Registrars and such others professionals /
agencies as may be required to give effect to the Scheme;

W

Suven Life Sciences Limited
Registeved Office: B-2-334 | SOE Serene Chambers | Gth Floor | Road Mo.5 | Avenue 7
Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN : L24110TG1589PLO0GST1 3
Tk O 40 7354 10427 33017 3315 Faoc 91 40 2354 1152 Enadl: infolsuven.com webiite: waiiuwsn oom
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(k) Setlling any guestion or difficulty that may arise with regard to the implementation of the
Scheme, and to give effect to the above resolution;

{I}  Doing all further acts, deeds, malters and things as may be considered necessary, proper
or expedient to give effect to the Scheme and for matters connected therewith or
incidental thereto;

{m} Deciding upon, make modifications, changes, variations, amendments, revision in and
bring into effect the Scheme from lime to time or give such directions as they may
consider necessary to selile any question or difficully ansing thereunder or in regard lo
and of the meaning or interpretation thereof or implementation thereof or in any manner
whatsoever connected therewith or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of
various conditions of the Scheme and if necessary, o waive any of those (o the extent
permissible under law) or to suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time to time as
may be specified by any statulery authority or they may sue moto decide in their absolute
discretion and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things whatsoaver including settling
any question, doubt or difficulty that may arise with regard to or in relation to the Scheme
as they may deem fit in their absolute discretion.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Common Seal of the Company, if required, be affixed to the
relevant documents in the presence of any of the Direclor of the Company in terms of the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.”

*“RESOLVED FURTHER Tf-lﬁ'l' this resolution shall remain in full force and effect until otherwise
amended or rescinded by lhe Board of Directors.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution duly certified as true by any Director of
the Company or the Company Secretary be furnished to the concemed persons.”

Suven Life Sciences Limited

Registered Office: 5-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | Gth Floor | Road No.5 | Avenue 7
Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIM : L24110TG1589PLCO0ST1
Teh 91 40 2354 1043/ 3311/ 3315 Fax: 91 40 X354 1152 Ermnail: info@surven com website: s tuven.com

e 06




@

SUVEN™

Life Sciences
‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the following Directors/Executives of the Company, namely, Mr.
Venkaleswarlu Jasli, Chairman and Chiefl Execulive Officer (DIN - 00278028) and K.
Hanumantha Rao, Company Secretary be and are hereby severally autherized lo do all things
and to take all incidental and necessary steps for and on behalf of the Company and to lake
from time to time all decisions and steps necessary, expedient or proper, with respect to
implementation of the above mentioned resolution, and also to take all other decisions as itthey
may, in its/their absolute decision, deem appropriate and to deal all questions or difficulties that
may arise in the course of implementing the above mentioned resolution.”

i Certified True Copy /I

For Suven Life Sciences Limited

[C il o

K. Hanumantha Rao
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad —
Date: 5 February 2019

Suven Life Sciences Limited
Regiwered Office: B-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | Gth Flogr | Road Mo % | Avenue 7
Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | irndia | CIN : L2ALI0TG1989PLO00ST 13
Tel: 51 40 2354 11427 33117 3315 Fax: 91 40 2354 1152 Email: infod@warven.com website: s sannenaoom
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED, HELD ON
TUESDAY, THE 5™ DAY OF FEBRUARY 2019, AT 5:45 PM AT HYATT PLACE, ROAD NO
1, BANJARA HILLS, HYDERABAD, TELANGANA, INDIA — 500 034

APPROVAL OF THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and
other applicable provisions, if any, read with related rules thereto as applicable under the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force), and enabling provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company and subject to the requisite approval(s) of the shareholders and/or
creditors of the Company and subject to the sanction of the Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench (“NCLT" or “Tribunal®) or such other competent authority, the
consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded to the Draft Scheme of Arrangement
(“Scheme”) between Suven Life Sciences Limited (“the Demerged Company”) and Suven
Pharmaceuticals Limited (“the Resulting Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Demerged
Company and their respective shareholders and creditors placed before the Board and initialed
by the Chairman, for the purposes of identification, which provides for demerger of “Contract
Research and Manufacturing Services Undertaking” of the Demerged Company and transfer
and vesting thereof into the Resulting Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Share Entittement Ratio Report dated 5 February 2019
issued by Mr. K. Ajay Kumar from M/s. Karvy & Co, Chartered Accountants, as placed before
the Board be and is hereby noted and accepted.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certificate dated 5 February 2019 issued by M/s. Tukaram &
Co, Chartered Accountants, statutory auditors of the Company, certifying inter-alia that the
Scheme is in compliance with applicable Indian Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and
other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, as placed before the Board be and is hereby

noted and accepted.”

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
Registered Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road No.5
Avenue 7 | Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN : U24299TG2018PLC1281T1
Tel: 91 40 2354 3311 | Fax: 91 40 2354 1152 | Email: info@suven.com
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the following persons, namely, Subba Rao Parupalli (DIN -
00296951), for the purpose of giving effect {o this resolution, be and are hereby authorized
jointly or severally on behalf of the Board, inter alia, for:

(a) Representing the Company before NCLT and such other authorities or bodies for filing
and making applicalions and for that purpose to sign, execute and verify the Scheme,
petitions, applications, undertakings, affidavits, all other documents and deeds as may be
required for the purpose and to make such modificationsfalterations as may be required
by the aforesaid authorities or as may be thought fit and expedient;

{b) Filing of applications with the NCLT or other appropriate authority seeking direclions as to
holding/ dispensing with the meetings of lhe shareholders and/ or creditors of the
Company, for issuing necessary notices and holding the meeting of the shareholders /
creditors of the Company as may be directed by the NCLT to give effect to the Scheme,

() Finalizing and settling the draft of the notices for convening/ dispensing with the meetings
of the shareholders andfor creditors of the Company and the drafl of the explanatory
staterments under any applicable provisions under the Companias Act, 2013, or, in lerms
of the directions of the NCLT, or effect any other modification or amendment as they may
consider necessary or desirable to give effect to the Scheme;

(d) Filing of petitions for confirmation/ approval/ sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT or such
other competent authority;

(e} Filing affidavits, pleadings, applications or any other proceedings incidental or deemed
necessary of useful in connection with the above proceedings and to engage Counsels,
Advocates, Solicitors, Chartered Accountants, Company Secrelary and other
professionals and to sign and execute vakalatnamas/ memorandum of appearance
wherever nacessary, and sign and issue public adverlisements and nolices,

{fy  Signing all applications, petitions, affidavits, pleadings, documants, relating to the Schema
or delegate such authority to another person by a valid Power of Atforney,

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
Registered Office: &-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 61k Floor | Road No 5
Avenue T | Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | india | CIN : U24299TG2018PLCIZ8TT
Ted: 51 40 2354 3311 1 Facc 91 40 2354 1152 | Emadl: info@auvencom
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(g) Obtaining approval from such other authorities and parties including the shareholders,
term loan lenders, financial institutions, creditors as may be considered necessary, lo the
Scheme;

(h) Applying and obtaining requisite approval of the Central Government and any other
autharity or agency, whose consent is required including those of any Lenders / Creditors;

(il  Appaointing the merchant bankers, Scrutinears, Registrars and such others professionals /
agencies as may be required to give effect to the Scheme;

iy Settling any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the implementation of the
Scheme, and to give effect lo the above resolution;

(k) Doing all further acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necassary, proper
or expedient to give effect to the Scheme and for matters connected therewith or
incidental thereto;

{li Deciding upon, make modificalions, changes, varations, amendments, revision in and
bring into effect the Scheme from time to time or give such directions as they may
consider necessary to settle any question or difficulty ansing thereunder or in regard lo
and of the meaning or interpretation theraof or implamentation thereof or in any manner
whatsoever connected therewith or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of
various conditions of the Scheme and if necessary, 1o waive any of those (lo the extent
permissible under law) or o suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time lo time as
may be specified by any statulory authority or they may suo molo decide in their absolute
dizcretion and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things whatsoever including sattling
any question, doubt or difficulty that may arise with regard {o or in refation to the Scheme
as they may deem fit in their absolute discretion.”

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
Registered Office: B-2-334 | SDE Sevene Chambers | Gth Floor | Road Mo 5
Ayenue T | Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN ; U24259TG2018PLCIZETT
Tel: 91 40 2354 3310 | Fax: 91 40 2354 1152 | Email info@amen.com
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Subba Rao Parupalli (DIN - 00208951 }.W
severally authorized to do all things and to take all incidental and necessary steps for and on
behall of the Company and to take from time to time all decisions and sleps necessary,
expeadient or proper, with respect to implementation of the above mentioned resclution, and also

to take all other decisions as itthey may, in ils/ftheir absolute decision, deem apprepriate and lo
deal all questions or difficullies that may arise in the course of implementing the above
mentioned resolution.”

‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Common Seal of the Company, if reguired, be affixed to the
relevant documents in the presence of any of the Director of the Company in terms of the
pravisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT this resolution shall remain in full force and effect until otherwise
amended or rescinded by the Board of Directors.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
sign any copy of this resolulion as a cerlified true copy thereof and furnish the same to
whomsoever concemed.”

Il Certified True Copy/fl
For Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

s B

Sunder Venkatraman
Director
DM 00300628

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 5 February 2019

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
Fl.lgiil-md Office: B-2-134 | SDE Serene Chambers | Geh Floor | RBoad Mo S
Awere T ll.quaﬂ Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | 'I'l.'I.IrIJ.ln.I I india | N ; U24299TG20IBPLCIZETT
Tek 9140 2354 33711 Faoc 51 40 2354 1152 | Email: infolsuven.com
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Annexure -7

— BSE

EXPERIEMNCE THE MENW

DCE/AMALMBAIRITMN4E0/2019-20 April 11, 2019

The Company Secretary,

Suven Life Sclences Ltd.

8-2-334, Serene Chambers, Gth Floor,
Road MNo.5, Avenus 7, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad, Telangana, S00034

Wa are in receipt aof Draft Scheme of Arrangament by Suven Life Sciences Lid. filed as required under
SEBI Circular No. CFOMILWCIR/2017/21 daled March 10, 2017; SEBI vide ils letter dated Apal 10,
2019 has inter alia given the following comment{s) on the draft scheme of arrangement:

= “Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company,
after filing tha schama with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter is
displayed on the websites of the listed company.”

+ “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars."

« “Company s advised that the observations of SEBUStock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the observations o the notice of NGLT."

« It is to ba noted that the patitions are filed by the company before NCLT after
precessing and communication of commentsicbservations on draft scheme by
SEBUstock exchange. Hence, the company i3 not required to send notice for
representation as mandated under section 230{5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
again for its commeants / observations | epresentations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesald comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

+  To provide additional infermation, if any, (as stated above) along with vanious documents lo
the Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

+ To ensure that additional information, if any, (as staled aforesaid) along with various
documents are disseminaled on their (company) websile.

+  To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limiléd reference to
those matters having a bearing on listng/ide-listing/continuous listing requirements within the
pronisions of Listing Agreement, 5o as to enable the company 1o file the scheme with Hon'ble NCLT.
Further, where applcable in the explanatory statement of the notice 1o be sent by the company 1o the
sharehoiders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose Information about wnlisted
companies invalved in the format prescribed lor abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017,

However, the listing of equity shares of Suven Pharmaceulicals Limiled shall be subjedt o SEBI
granting relaxation under Rule T92ZHb) of the Securies Confract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and
complance with the requirements of SEBI circular. No. CFOVDILACIRAZ01TIZ1 dated March 10, 2017,
Further, Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited shall comply with SEBI Act, Rules, Regulations, directions of
the SEBI and any other statutory authority and Rules, Byelaws, and Regulations of the Exchange.

BSE Limived {Formerty Borrdsy Slock b L1a)
S&P@3SE B . na
SENSEX  Coporae enty berriee

- LEF 1 00005 C 155 18
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The Company shall fulfill the Exchange's criteria for listing the securities of such company and a
comply with other applicable statulory requirements. However, the listing of shares of
Pharmaceulicals Limited i at the discretion of the Exchange. In addition 1o the above, mu
Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited pursuant (o the Scheme of Amangement shall be subject
approval and the Company salistying the following conditions.

1. Te submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about Suven
Pharmaceuticals Limited in line with the disclosure requirements applicable for public ssues
with BSE, for making the same available to the public through the website of the Exchange.
Further, the company is also advised to make the same avaiable 1o the public through fs
wiabaite.

2. To publish an adverisament in the newspapers containing all the information of Suven
Fharmaceuticals Limited in line with the details required as per the aforesakd SEBI circular no.
CFDDILACIRAZ017/21 dated March 10, 2017, The advertisament should draw a specific
reference 1o the aforesaid Information Memorandum available on the wabsite of the company

a5 well as BSE.

3. To disclose all the material information about Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited on a continuous
basis 80 as to make the same public, in additicn 1o the requiremants if any, spacified in Listing
Agresment for disclosures about the subsidianias

‘Ef

w
L

4. The following provisions shall be inconporated in the schema:

i, mmmnwmmmmsmmMNmmmmanwm
Ll listing/rading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.”

ii.  “There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern of Suven Pharmaoeuticals Limited
between the record date and the listing which may affect the status of this approval®

Further you are also advised 1o bring the contents of this letter to the notice of your shareholders, all
relevant authorities as deemed M, and also in yow application for approval of the scheme of

Arrangement

Kindly note that sz required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be Six Months from
the date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitiad to the NCLT.

The Exchange resarves s right to withdraw its ‘Mo adverse observation’ at any stage if the
information submitted to the Exchangs is found 1o be incompleta / incomect / mislaading ! false or for
contravention of Rulas, Bye-laws and Reguiations of the Exchange, Listing Agreament

any
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutary authorities. &

Piease note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company fram complying with any
ather requiremants,

Ypurs faithfully,

Nitinkurrgr Pujari
%w r

s& P@ BSE BSE Limiedd {Formerty Bombay Stock Excrangs Ld)
Ramgritwresd £ : Floor 1%, 7| Tenwors, Dalal Strest. Murbal 400

SENSEX  Coore oty rasebons Lo ites SosmC I
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National Stock Exchange Of India Limited
Ref: NSE/LIST/20048 April 23,2019

The Company Secretary

Suven Life Sciences Limited
SDE Serene Chambers 6th Floor,
Road No. 5 Avenue 7, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad — 500034, Telangana

Kind Attn.: Mr. Hanumantha Rao Kokkonda
Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for Scheme of Arrangement between Suven Life Sciences Limited and
Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

We are in receipt of the Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) between Suven Life Sciences Limited
(“Demerged Company” or “SLSL”) and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (“Resulting Company” or “SPL”)
and their respective shareholders and creditors vide application dated February 11, 2019.

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/77267 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI Circular
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), SEBI vide letter dated April 22, 2019, has
given following comments:

a. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company, after filing
the Scheme with the Stock Exchange and from the date of the receipt of this letter is displayed on the
website of the listed company.

b.  The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

c¢. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the
petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is obliged to
bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

d. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the company
is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013
to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its comments/observations/ representations.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted companies

involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular ga &%glgnléé[arch 10,2017.

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Tue, Apr 23, 2019 15:00:59 IST

0 NSE Location: NSE
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Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given
in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No-objection” in
terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft
scheme with NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to
the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-
laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory
authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from April 23, 2019, within which the scheme
shall be submitted to NCLT.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Rajendra Bhosale
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further _issues.htm

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Tue, Apr 23, 2019 15:00:59 IST

o NSE Location: NSE
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Annexure - 8

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S

REPORT

To the Members of
Suven Life Sciences Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Suven Life Sciences Limited (‘the Company’) which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended on that date and notes to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to
as “Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March, 2019, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

SUVEN
LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

/70

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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S.No Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

1.

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosures of revenues and other related balances in view
of adoption of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (new revenue accounting standard)

The application of the new revenue accounting standard
involves certain key judgements relating to identification
of the contract with a customer, identification of distinct
performance obligations, determination of transaction
price of the identified performance obligations, the
appropriateness of the basis used to measure revenue
recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied.
Additionally, new revenue accounting standard contains
disclosures which involves collation of information in
respect of disaggregated revenue and periods over which
the remaining performance obligations will be satisfied
subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Refer Notes 2(f) and 16 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Company’s process to identify the impact
of adoption of the new revenue accounting standard. Our
audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as
follows:

« Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to
implementation of the new revenue accounting standard.

«  Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts, and tested
the operating effectiveness of the internal control, relating
to identification of the distinct performance obligations
and determination of transaction price. We carried out a
combination of procedures involving enquiry and observation,
reperformance and inspection of evidence in respect of
operation of these controls.

« Tested the relevant information technology systems’ access
and change management controls relating to contracts and
related information used in recording and disclosing revenue
in accordance with the new revenue accounting standard.

+  Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts and
performed the following procedures:

+ Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance
obligations in these contracts.

«  Compared these performance obligations with that identified
and recorded by the Company.

«  Considered the terms of the contracts to determine the
transaction price including any variable consideration to verify
the transaction price used to compute revenue and to test the
basis of estimation of the variable consideration.

« Samplesinrespectof revenue recorded upon transfer of control
of promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration which the Company expects
to receive in exchange for those products or services, were
tested using a combination of Sales orders, Rate cards, Master
Service Agreements, Dispatch advices, Delivery challans, Tax
invoices and Non-returnable gate passes including customer
acceptances, subsequent commercial invoicing and historical
trend of collections and disputes.

«  Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of
revenues disclosed by type and service offerings.

+ We reviewed the collation of information and the logic of
the report generated from the IT system used to prepare the
disclosure relating to the periods over which the remaining
performance obligations will be satisfied subsequent to the
balance sheet date.

ANNUAL REPORT
2018-19 | 71
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Availment of Section 35(2AB) benefit under the Income
tax Act, 1961.

Refer Note 26 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

Principal Audit Procedures

We have reviewed the status of the availment of Section 35(2AB)
benefit under the Income tax Act, 1961 by the Company for a
weighted tax deduction of 150% of the expenditure incurred on
Scientific research in its in-house R&D facilities at Jeedimetla and
Pashamylaram units.

The current tax benefit availed for FY 18-19 is 809.40 lakhs

(Previous year-¥1,303.79 lakhs).

The Company enters into various financial instruments
such as investments in quoted mutual funds. As at 31
March 2019, financial instruments carried at fair value
through profit and loss totaled ¥22,998.92 lakhs (current
investments) as disclosed in Note 5(a)(ii) to the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements. These financial instruments
are recorded at fair value as required by the relevant
accounting standard. We have focused on this area due
to the complexities associated with the valuation and
accounting for these financial instruments.

Our procedures included but were not limited to:

« Obtaining an understanding of the internal risk management
procedures and the systems and controls associated with
the origination and maintenance of complete and accurate
information relating to financial instruments;

« Utilizing our treasury experts, we also tested on a sample basis
the existence and valuation of such financial instruments
as at 31t March 2019. Our audit procedures focused on the
integrity of the valuation models and the incorporation of the
contract terms and the key assumptions, including future price
assumptions and discount rates; and

+  Obtaining an understanding of key financial instrument
contract terms to assess the appropriateness of accounting
reflected in the financial report.

We have also assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures
included in Note 27 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

During the year, a company by the name Suven
Pharmaceuticals Limited (SPL) has been incorporated
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Suven Life Sciences
Limited. The management of the Company has considered
a demerger of its “Contract Research and Manufacturing
Services undertaking” (CRAMS) on a going concern basis
into SPL with a resultant mirror image shareholding with
effect from the appointed date of 1% October 2018, once
the scheme of Demerger is approved by the NCLT and
other stakeholders.

This demerger will have a significant impact on the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company
as, the CRAMS undertaking is a major revenue earner for
the Company.

We have focused on this area due to the complexities
associated with the demerger and accounting for these
transactions.

Our procedures included but were not limited to:

« Assessing the Management certified provisional position of
assets and liabilities of CRAMS undertaking of SLSL prepared in
compliance with Section 2(19AA) of the Income tac Act, 1961.

«  Verification of the current and proposed shareholding pattern
of SPL.

« Evaluation of the Scheme of Arrangement between the
Company and SPL and their respective shareholders and
creditors under the provisions of section 230 to 232 read with
section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions.

We have also assessed the appropriateness of the disclosure
included in Note 38 to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

/2
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Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial

Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
of the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management'’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
these standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also
provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of Suven USA branch
included in the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the
Company whose financial statements reflect total assets of ¥120.27
lakhs as at 315 March, 2019 and total revenue of I-Nil- for the year
ended on that date.

The financial statements of this branch have been audited by the
branch auditor, whose reports have been furnished to us, and
our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these branches, is based solely on the report
of such branch auditor.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements, and
our Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the financial statements certified by
the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure-A”,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we
report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b)

g

d)

f)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors as on 315 March, 2019, taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31¢
March, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure-B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone Ind AS
financial statements- Refer Note 34 to the standalone Ind
AS financial statements

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For TUKARAM & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. N0.004436S

Rajender Reddy K
Partner
Membership No.231834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 25" May, 2019
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ANNEXURE - ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements for the year ended 31t March, 2019, we report that:

Re: Suven Life Sciences Limited (‘the Company’)

Vi.

Ny ]

In respect of its fixed assets:

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

—
)

As explained to us, the management has physically verified
a substantial portion of the fixed assets during the year
and in our opinion frequency of verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification
of fixed assets as compared to the books of account were
not material and have been properly dealt with in the
books of accounts.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, all the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company except
21.18 acres of freehold land acquired and taken possession
of but yet to be registered for the Vishakhapatnam Plant
amounting to ¥513.22 lakhs.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
inventories have been physically verified by the management
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification
of inventory as compared to the books of account were not
material and have been properly dealt with in the books of
accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) to (c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the
loans and investments made.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public
within the meaning of Section 73 and 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by
the Central Government of India for the maintenance of cost
records prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Act in respect of production and processing activities of the

vii.

Company and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been maintained. We have however,
not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of Statutory dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities, undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods &
Service Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
such statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us,
the dues outstanding of income-tax on account of dispute
as follows:

Nature Nature AmountZ Periodto Forum where
of the of the inLakhs  whichthe disputeis
Statute Dues amount pending
relates
Income Income 7.64 AY Income Tax
Tax Tax 2011-12 Appellate
Act,1961 Tribunal
-Hyderabad

viii. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and

Xi.

explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion
that the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues
to banks, governments and financial institutions. The Company
did not have any debentures outstanding as at the year end.

Based on the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has raised moneys by way of QIP
offer amounting to ¥20,000.00 lakhs in F.Y 2014-2015 of which
the entire amount was utilized as at the end of the current
financial year, for the purposes it was raised. No term loans
were taken during the year by the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose
of reporting the true and fair view of the Standalone Ind
AS financial statements and as per the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no
material fraud, by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees, has been noticed or reported during the
year.

According to the information and explanations give to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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xii. In our opinion and according to the information and | xv. According to the information and explanations given to us

explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with | xvi.The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS

financial statements as required by the applicable accounting | For TUKARAM & CO LLP
standards. Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Regn. N0.004436S
xiv. According to the information and explanations give to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the | Rajender Reddy K
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private Partner
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures | Membership No.231834

during the year. Place: Hyderabad

Date : 25" May, 2019
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ANNEXURE -BTO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Suven Life Sciences Limited (“the Company”) as of
315t March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'sinternal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAland
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on

the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For TUKARAM & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No.004436S

Rajender Reddy K
Partner
Membership No.231834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 25" May, 2019
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH, 2019

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at 31° March, As at 31t March,

Particulars Notes 2019 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 29,056.22 30,494.25
Capital work-in-progress 3 11,108.68 2,474.38
Intangible assets 4 268.50 278.31
Financial assets
(i) Investments 5()(i) 13,644.38 10,229.64
(ii) Loans 5 (c) 7.22 3.79
(iii) Other financial assets 5 (e) 437.42 434.21
Other non-current assets 7 679.94 1,266.73
Total Non-current assets 55,202.36 45,181.31
Current assets
Inventories 8 15,709.83 13,946.62
Financial assets
(i) Investments 5(a)(ii) 22,998.92 27,872.56
(ii) Trade receivables 5(b) 15,014.63 6,153.81
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 5(d)(i) 1,090.74 1,905.79
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 5(d)(ii) 245.14 227.45
(v) Loans 5(c) 11.47 10.20
(vi) Other financial assets 5(e) 0.28 0.28
Current tax asset(net) 9 408.50 340.34
Other current assets 10 6,820.01 5,809.28
Total Current assets 62,299.52 56,266.33
TOTAL ASSETS 117,501.88 101,447.64
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11(a) 1,272.82 1,272.82
Other equity 11(b) 98,088.00 85,397.16
Total Equity 99,360.82 86,669.98
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12(a) 177.53 222.49
Provisions 13 743.16 368.68
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 4,892.10 2,323.71
Other non-current liabilities 14 75.69 104.76
Total Non-current liabilities 5,888.48 3,019.64
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12(b) 3,529.24 3,057.40
(i) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises 12(c) 73.22 -
(b) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 12(c) 5,992.86 5,681.58
(iii) Other financial liabilities 12(d) 1,837.06 1,534.21
Other current liabilities 15 591.18 1,010.82
Provisions 13 229.02 474.01
Total current liabilities 12,252.58 11,758.02
TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,141.06 14,777.66
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 117,501.88 101,447.64
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For TUKARAM & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Suven Life Sciences Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 0044365
Rajender Reddy K Venkateswarlu Jasti
Partner Chairman & CEO
Membership No. 231834 DIN: 00278028
K. Hanumantha Rao P. Subba Rao
Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date : 25" May, 2019 Membership No. A11599 Membership No. A11342
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2019

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended

31+t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
INCOME
Revenue from operations 16 66,350.44 62,525.84
Other income 17 2,422.93 2,327.07
Total Income 68,773.37 64,852.91
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 18 20,413.82 17,616.48
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods 19 (3,061.41) (2,120.13)
Manufacturing expenses 20 9,982.32 8,695.35
Employee benefits expense 21 6,347.79 5,873.83
Research & Development expenses 22 6,027.60 5,846.66
Finance costs 23 376.31 461.11
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 2,214.05 2,130.99
Other expenses 25 4,286.59 3,322.05
Total Expenses 46,587.07 41,826.34
Profit before tax 22,186.30 23,026.57
Tax expense
Current tax 26 4,604.23 4,756.49
Deferred tax 26 2,575.78 2,527.90
Tax of earlier years - (100.55)
Profit for the year 15,006.29 15,842.73
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (21.16) (42.33)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 7.39 14.65
Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss) for the year, net of taxes (13.77) (27.68)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 14,992.52 15,815.05
Earnings per Equity share (Par value of 31 each) Basic and Diluted 37 11.79 12.45
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For TUKARAM & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Suven Life Sciences Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 0044365
Rajender Reddy K Venkateswarlu Jasti
Partner Chairman & CEO
Membership No. 231834 DIN: 00278028

K. Hanumantha Rao P. Subba Rao

Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date : 25" May, 2019 Membership No. A11599 Membership No. A11342

ANNUAL REPORT
2018-19 | 79

. py |



STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FORTHE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2019

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Number of Shares Equity share capital
As at April 01,2017 127,282,478 1,272.82
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As at 31t March, 2018 127,282,478 1,272.82
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As at 31** March, 2019 127,282,478 1,272.82

b. Other Equity

Reserves & surplus

Particulars Notes  Securities General Retained Total Equity
Premium reserve earnings

Balance at April 1,2017 23,311.69 9,036.62 39,531.79 71,880.10
Profit for the year 11(b) - - 15,842.73 15,842.73
Other comprehensive income 11(b) - - (42.33) (42.33)
::zg:z tax relating to items of other comprehensive 11(b) 14.65 14.65
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 15,815.05 15,815.05
Transfer to General Reserve 11(b) - (1,500.00) (1,500.00)
Transfer from Retained Earnings 11(b) 1,500.00 1,500.00
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:

Dividend paid 11(b) - - (1,909.30) (1,909.30)
Tax on distributed profit 11(b) (388.69) (388.69)
Balance at 31t March, 2018 23,311.69 10,536.62 51,548.85 85,397.16
Balance at April 1,2018 23,311.69 10,536.62 51,548.85 85,397.16
Profit for the year 11(b) - - 15,006.29 15,006.29
Other comprehensive income 11(b) - - (21.16) (21.16)
::2222 tax relating to items of other comprehensive 1) 739 739
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 14,992.52 14,992.52
Transfer to General Reserve 11(b) - (1,500.00) (1,500.00)
Transfer from Retained Earnings 11(b) 1,500.00 1,500.00
Dividend paid 11(b) - - (1,909.23) (1,909.23)
Tax on distributed profit 11(b) (392.45) (392.45)
Balance at 31t March, 2019 23,311.69 12,036.62 62,739.69 98,088.00

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For TUKARAM & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Suven Life Sciences Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 0044365
Rajender Reddy K Venkateswarlu Jasti
Partner Chairman & CEO
Membership No. 231834 DIN: 00278028
K. Hanumantha Rao P. Subba Rao
Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date : 25" May, 2019 Membership No. A11599 Membership No. A11342
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FORTHE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2019

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 315 March 2019 315 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 22,186.30 23,026.57
Adjustments :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,569.41 2,476.36
Interest Income (38.38) (89.15)
Finance Cost 376.31 461.11
Gain on sale of Current Investment (195.40) (128.92)
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (1,900.70) (1,687.11)
Gain on disposal of Property,plant & equipment - (2.00)
Changes in Operating assets and liabilities 22,997.55 24,056.85
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (8,860.82) (1,570.49)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (1,763.21) (4,695.48)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 384.50 1,887.61
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non current financial assets (6.64) (27.04)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non current assets 586.80 (1,190.11)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current financial assets (1.27) (2.20)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current assets (1,010.73) (2,133.96)
Increase / (Decrease) in long term provisions 374.48 85.18
Increase / (Decrease) in other non-current liabilities (29.06) (29.06)
Increase/(Decrease) in short term provision (266.15) 27.83
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 302.85 (1,669.35)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (419.64) 91.20
Net cash generated from operating activities 12,288.66 14,830.98
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 4,672.39 4,353.86
Cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 7,616.27 10,477.12
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for Purchase of property, plant and equipment (9,733.33) (4,003.42)
Payment for Purchase of Intangible assets (22.56) (175.85)
Payments for Investments (3,414.74) (3,721.92)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 4,873.64 2,216.35
Gain on disposal of Property, plant & equipment - 2.00
Gain on sale of Current Investment 195.40 128.92
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1,900.70 1,687.11
Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents (17.71) (2.92)
Interest received 38.38 89.15
Net cash from /( used in) investing activities  (B) (6,180.22) (3,780.58)

Cash flows from/(used in) in financing activities

(Repayment)/Proceeds from long term borrowings ' (44.96) (2,454.69)
(Repayment)/Proceeds from short term borrowings 471.84 8.88
Finance Cost (376.31) (461.11)
Dividends paid to equity holders (including dividend distribution tax) (2,301.69) (2,297.99)
Net cash (used In) / from financing activities (C) (2,251.11) (5,204.91)
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FORTHE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2019

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C) (815.06) 1,491.63
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 5(d) (i) ) 1,905.80 414.16
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,090.74 1,905.79
Cash and cash equivalents ( Refer Note 5(d)(i)) 1,090.74 1,905.79
Balances per statement of cash flows 1,090.74 1,905.79

This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For TUKARAM & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Suven Life Sciences Limited

ICAI Firm registration number: 004436S

Rajender Reddy K Venkateswarlu Jasti

Partner Chairman & CEO

Membership No. 231834 DIN: 00278028

K.Hanumantha Rao P. Subba Rao
Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date : 25" May, 2019 Membership No. A11599 Membership No. A11342

82 SUVEN
LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

. Jwey |



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE: 1 Company overview

Suven Life Sciences Limited (Suven) is a bio-pharmaceutical
company, began operations in 1989 as specialty chemicals
provider about 29 years ago and went on to create a NCE
based CRAMS (Contract Research And Manufacturing Services)
business model in 1995, providing building blocks (bulk
actives, drug intermediates and specialty chemicals) for global
life science companies. Suven has made in-roads into drug
discovery in the year 2005 with a specialisation on CNS (Central
Nervous System) based programs targeting unmet medical
need and 4 of the molecules in pipeline are into clinical phase
of development. The Company is targeting CNS indications
where there is a high unmet medical need, patient populations
are identifiable, clinical endpoints can be well-defined and with
possible commercialisation options. Suven Neurosciences,
Inc, a Delaware Company, is a WOS (wholly owned
subsidiary) of Suven, is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical
company commenced activities in October 2015, focused
on the acquisition, development and commercialisation of
novel therapeutics for the treatment of neurodegenerative
disorders. The near-term focus for Suven Neurosciences, Inc.,
is to develop Suven product candidate, which we refer to as
SUVN-502, for the treatment of Alzheimer's disease and other
forms of dementia. Suven Pharma Inc., a Delaware Company,
is a WOS (wholly owned subsidiary) of Suven, is a SPV (Special
Purpose Vehicle) created on 9% March, 2019, for undertaking
various business opportunities in Pharma Industry. Suven
Pharmaceutical Limited (SPL) on 5" February, 2019 became
WOS (wholly owned subsidiary) of Suven. SPL is engaged in the
business of development and manufacturing of New Chemical
Entity (NCE) based Intermediates, Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (API), Speciality Chemicals and formulated drugs
under contract research and manufacturing services for global
pharmaceutical,biotechnology and chemical companies.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the
Company's Board of Directors on 25% May, 2019.

NOTE: 2 Significant accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with IND AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notified)
and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendment rules issued there after.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following:
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b)

«  certain financial assets are measured either at fair value
or at amortised cost depending on the classification

- employee defined benefit assets/(liability) are
recognised as the net total of the fair value of plan
assets, plus actuarial losses, less actuarial gains and the
present value of the defined benefit obligation; and

+ Share-based payments which are measured at fair
value of the options

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset
is treated as current when it is:

+ Expectedtoberealised orintended to sold or consumed
in normal operating cycle

+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

«  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being

exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

.

.

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in Cash and Cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as
its operating cycle.

c) Segment reporting

d)
0]

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been
identified as being the Chief Operating Decision Maker.
Refer note 31 for the segment information presented.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR),
which is Company's functional and presentation currency.
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(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is
considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that
foreign operation.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non- monetary assets
and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified
as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

e) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as,
derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

« Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

SUVEN
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f)

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

+ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Revenue recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from sale of

New Chemical Entity (NCE) based Intermediates,
Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API)
Speciality chemicals and formulated drugs under
contract research and  manufacturing  services.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive
in exchange for those products or services. To recognise
revenues, we apply the following five step approach:

(1) identify the contract with a customer,

(2
3

(4

-

identify the performance obligations in the contract,

=

determine the transaction price,

=

allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract, and

(5

=

recognise revenues when a performance obligation is
satisfied.

At contract inception, the Company assesses its promise
to transfer products or services to a customer to identify
separate performance obligations. The Company applies
judgement to determine whether each product or services
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promised to a customer are capable of being distinct,
and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the
promised product or services are combined and accounted
as a single performance obligation. The Company allocates
the arrangement consideration to separately identifiable
performance obligation based on their relative stand-alone
selling price or residual method. Stand-alone selling prices
are determined based on sale prices for the components
when it is regularly sold separately, in cases where the
Company is unable to determine the stand-alone selling
price, the Company uses third-party prices for similar
deliverables or the company uses expected cost plus
margin approach in estimating the stand-alone selling
price.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
products or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration which the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those products or services.

Effective 15t April, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS
115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to
be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue. The
Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative
effect method. The effect of initially applying this standard
is recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. April
1, 2018). The standard is applied retrospectively only
to contracts that are not completed as at the date of
initial application and the comparative information in
the statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the
comparative information continues to be reported under
Ind AS 18.

Refer note 2(f) - Significant accounting policies — Revenue
recognition in the Annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31t March, 2018, for the revenue recognition
policy as per Ind AS 18. The impact of the adoption of the
standard on the financial statements of the Company is
insignificant.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
company will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate and presented within other income.
Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets and presented within other income.

The benefit of Government loan at a below market rate of
interest is treated as Government grant , measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of

h)

loan based on prevailing market interest rates.
Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period's taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in subsidiaries and branches where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in subsidiaries and branches where it is not
probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will not be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Dividenddistributiontaxarising out of paymentof dividends
to shareholders under the Indian Income tax regulations
is not considered as tax expense for the Company and all
such taxes are recognised in the statement of changes in
equity as part of the associated dividend payment.

i) Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

j) Cash and cash equivalents

k

m

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work-in-progress, traded
and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of raw materials comprise of
cost of purchase. Cost of work-in-progress and finished
goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include
all other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of first-in-first-out
basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

=

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If

SUVEN
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any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or Company of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed
budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at
each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses
no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited
so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill
cannot be reversed in future periods.

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee
is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
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o)

investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, and reversed
if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets
and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, underaninsurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

« a present obligation arising from past events, when
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation;

« apresent obligation arising from past events, when no
reliable estimate is possible;

« a possible obligation arising from past events, unless
the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net
of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income
are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and
commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Investments and other financial assets
i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

«  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and

« those measured at amortised cost.

The classification  depends on  the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is
held. Forinvestments in equity instruments, this will depend
on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Company's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is de-recognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When
the financial asset is de-recognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
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value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the company's
management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from
such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Company's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/(losses)
in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 28
details how the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the
simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

iv) Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income from the debt instruments is recognised
using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the
right to receive payment is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the company, and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

SUVEN
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Royalty

Royalty income is recognised in profit or loss only when
the right to receive payment is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the royalty will
flow to the company, and the amount of the royalty can be
measured reliably.

p) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification, as described below:

Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holderforalossitincurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
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the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

q) Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period.

r) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
group or the counterparty.

s) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as separate
asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual value

Depreciation on Property , Plant & Equipment is provided
on straight-line basis at the rates arrived at based on the
useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013. The company follows the policy of charging
depreciation on pro-rata basis on the assets acquired or
disposed off during the year.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original
cost of the asset. The assets' residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
Statement of profit or loss when the assets are de-recognised.

Estimated useful life :

- Factory buildings 25 - 30 years

-Roads 3-10years

- Machinery 8- 20 years

- FurniFure, fittings an 3-10years
equipment

- Vehicles 8- 10years

t) Intangible assets
(i) Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing
of identifiable and unique software products controlled by
the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software so
that it will be available for use

- management intends to complete the software and use
or sell it

- thereis an ability to use or sell the software

- it can be demonstrated how the software will generate
probable future economic benefits

- adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
software are available and;

- the expenditure attributable to the software during its
development can be reliably measured

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as
part of the software include employee costs and
an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
available for use.

(ii) Amortisation methods and periods

Intangible assets with finite useful live are amortised over
their respective individual estimated useful lives (3-10 years
in case of computer software's) on a straight line basis.

(iii) Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure
that do not meet the criteria in (i) above are recognised
as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in
the subsequent period.

Estimated useful life :
Software 3-10years
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u) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

v) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
afinancial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/ (losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of
a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does
not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of
financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as
consequence of the breach.

w) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their

SUVEN
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expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

x) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet.

(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service. They are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit credit method.
The benefit are discounted using the market yields at the
end of the reporting period that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligations. Remeasurements
as a result of the experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement
is expected to occur.

(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment
schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
(b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.
Gratuity obligations

The liability or assets recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation
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denominated in INR is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. The benefits which are denominated
in currency other than INR, the cash flows are discounted
using market yields determined by reference to high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
current in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and
loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost.

Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly
administered funds as per local regulations. The Company
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as
defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

(iv) Bonus plans

The group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses.
The group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(v) Share-based payments

Shared-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the Suven Employee Stock Option Scheme
-2004.

Employee Options:

The fair value of options granted under the Suven
Employee Stock Option Scheme -2004 is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase
in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted.

- including any market performance conditions (eg. the

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

entity's share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non market
performance vesting conditions( eg. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity for a specified time period) and;

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(eg. the requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specific time period)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

y) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on
the trade date, i.e.,, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets
are classified in two broad categories:

- Financial assets at fair value
- Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses
are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and
loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognised in
other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions
is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for

ANNUAL REPORT
2018-19 | 91

v |



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

92

impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value
through profit or loss under the fair value option

« Business model test: The objective of the Company's
business model is to hold the financial asset to collect
the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realise its
fair value changes).

« Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions
is measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income unless the asset is designated at fair value through
profit or loss under the fair value option

+  Business model test: The financial asset is held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

«  Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured
at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an 'accounting
mismatch') that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable
election is made at initial recognition to measure it at fair
value through other comprehensive income with only
dividend income recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the company’s
statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to

SUVEN
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a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset. When the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of
the investment is assessed and written down immediately
to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amounts are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Investments in units of mutual funds

In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values
represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these
mutual fund units in the published statements. Net asset
values represent the price at which the issuer will issue
further units in the mutual fund and the price at which
issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

Accordingly, such net asset values are analogous to
fair market value with respect to these investments, as
transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such
prices between investors and the issuers of these units of
mutual funds.

z) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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aa) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorized and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

ab) Earning per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

«  The profit attributable to owners of the company

+ By the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

«  The after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and

«  The weighted average number of additional equity
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

ac) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the direct method, whereby
profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
anon-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and items of income
or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows . The cash flows from operating, financing activities of
the company are segregated.

ad) Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirements of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

ae) Critical estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different
than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in

relevant notes together with information about the basis
of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
1. Estimation of current tax expense and payable

2. Estimated Useful life of Depreciable assets / intangible
assets

3. Estimation of defined benefit obligation
4. Recognition of revenue

5. Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward
losses

6. Recoverability of advances/receivable

7. Evaluation of indicators for Impairment of assets

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Effective date for application of the following amendments is
annual period beginning on or after 15t April, 2019. The Company
is currently evaluating the effect of these amendments on the
financial statements.

Ind AS 116 - Leases :

On 30" March, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind
AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard,
Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and
the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are
charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also
contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard permits two
possible methods of transition:

« Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period
presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

+ Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the Standard recognised at the date
of initial application

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records
the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease
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payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and
the right of use asset either as:

« Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied
since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

« An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease
recognised under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of
initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:

On 30™ March, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind
AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which
is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable
profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments
under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to
determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting
each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies
have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be
considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected
value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition -

i)  Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix
C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period
presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using
hindsight and

ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying
Appendix C recognised by adjusting equity on initial
application, without adjusting comparatives.

Ind AS 12 - Income taxes :

On 30" March, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued
amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes, in
connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity
originally recognised those past transactions or events.

SUVEN
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Ind AS 109- Prepayment features with Negative compensation :

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109
regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at
amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value
through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative
compensation payments.

Ind AS 19 - Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement :

On 30" March, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued
amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits, in connection with
accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

+  to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost
and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

« to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a
gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if
that surplus was not previously recognised because of the
impact of the asset ceiling

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs :

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity
borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on
general borrowings.

Ind AS 28-Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures:

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture
that form part of the netinvestment in the associate or joint venture
but to which the equity method is not applied.

Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations and Ind AS 111 - Joint
Arrangements :

The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify
that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it re-measures previously held interests in that business.
The amendments to Ind AS 111 clarify that when an entity obtains
joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does
not re-measure previously held interests in that business.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . ‘ .
NOTE 4: INTANGIBLE ASSETS (All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Software Total
Gross carrying amount
At 15t April, 2017 134.43 134.43
Additions 175.85 175.85
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31t March, 2018 310.28 310.28
Accumulated amortisation
Upto 1% April, 2017 9.60 9.60
Disposals 2237 22.37
Balance as at 31t March, 2018 31.97 31.97
Net Book Value as at 31 March, 2018 278.31 278.31
Gross carrying amount
At 1%t April, 2018 310.28 310.28
Additions 22.55 22.55
Balance as at 31t March, 2019 332.83 332.83
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Upto 1% April, 2018 31.97 31.97
Charge for the year 32.36 3236
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 64.33 64.33
Net Book Value as at 31 March, 2019 268.50 268.50
NOTE 5: FINANCIAL ASSETS
5 (a) (i) Non-current investments
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Investment carried at cost
Unquoted Equity Instruments - (Fully paid up)
a) In Subsidiary Companies
E)Egg(l)ﬁy shares of Suven Neurosciences Inc. At par value USD 10,00,000 007 10,00,000 0.07
-Additional paid-in capital in Suven Neurosciences Inc. - 13,636.26 - 10,222.52
-Equity shares of Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd. At par value %1 1,00,000 1.00 = =
b) Other Investments
Jeedimetla Effluent Treatment Ltd 1,000 6.00 1,000 6.00
Patancheru Envirotech Pvt Ltd 10,487 1.05 10,487 1.05
Total Investments carried at cost 11,111,487 13,644.38 10,11,487 10,229.64
Total Non-Current investments 11,11,487 13,644.38 10,11,487 10,229.64
Aggregate amount of quoted investments & market value ) _
thereof
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 13,644.38 10,229.64

Aggregate amount of impairement in value of Investment in
unquoted investments
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5 (a) (ii) Current investments

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

Units Amount Units Amount
Investment in Mutual Funds- Unquoted ( Fully paid up)
SBI Infrastructure Fund 50,000 6.70 50,000 6.80
HDFC Short Term Debt Fund-Growth 3,00,82,443 6,208.86 3,00,82,443 5,768.22
Reliance Prime Debt Fund-Growth 1,09,08,021 4,269.00 1,58,39,384 5,771.95
IDFC Low Duration Fund-Growth 4,45,63,533 11,808.26 4,45,63,533 10,973.90
SBI Liquid Fund -Growth 24,212 706.10 1,90,182 5,164.58
SBI Ultra short term fund - - 8,347 187.11
Total Current Investments 8,56,28,209 22,998.92 9,07,33,889 27,872.56
Aggregate amount of quoted investments & market value _ _
thereof
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 22,998.92 27,872.56

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investment in
unquoted investments

5(b) Trade receivables

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Unsecured, considered good 15,014.63 6,153.81
Total receivables 15,014.63 6,153.81
5(c) Loans

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Unsecured, considered good

Loan to employees 11.47 7.22 10.20 3.79
Total loans 11.47 7.22 10.20 3.79

5(d) (i) Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

31t March, 2019

31 March, 2018

Balances with banks

-in current accounts 58.19 55.61
-in EEFC account 657.77 148.43
- in Cash Credit account 367.39 563.21
- Deposits with maturity of less than three months = 1,126.91
Cash on hand 7.39 11.63
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,090.74 1,905.79

5(d) (ii) Other bank balances

Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
In unclaimed dividend accounts 57.44 51.13
Deposits -LC & BG 187.64 176.25
Interest accrued on LC & BG 0.06 0.07
Total Other bank balances 245.14 227.45
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5(e) Other financial assets

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Particulars
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits 0.28 415.19 0.28 413.92
Interest accrued on deposit - 22.23 - 20.29
Total Other financial assets 0.28 437.42 0.28 434.21
NOTE 6: DEFERRED TAX ASSETS /( LIABILITIES)
The balances comprises temporary differences attributable to :
Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Defined benefit obligations & DST Loan 361.12 291.64
Other items
QIP Expenses = 41.93
Others-MAT credit 869.39 2,980.62
Total Deferred tax assets 1,230.51 3,314.19
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions
- Depreciation 4,710.82 4,574.11
- Unrealised capital gains on MF 1,411.79 1,063.79
Total Deferred tax Liabilities 6,122.61 5,637.90
Total deferred tax assets/(Liabilities) (net) (4,892.10) (2,323.71)
NOTE 7: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Capital advances 679.94 1,266.73
Total other non-current assets 679.94 1,266.73
NOTE 8: INVENTORIES(VALUED AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)
Particulars 31% March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Raw materials 3,033.11 3,630.13
Work-in-progress 7,001.16 3,962.53
Finished goods 4,188.32 4,165.54
Stores and spares 1,258.36 1,916.20
Packing materials 228.88 272.22
Total inventories 15,709.83 13,946.62
NOTE 9: CURRENT TAX ASSET (NET)
Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Advance tax balance 15,439.06 10,767.47
Less: Provision for income tax 15,030.56 10,427.13
Total Current tax asset (net) 408.50 340.34
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 10: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

31t March, 2019

31t March, 2018

Unsecured, considered good

VAT credit receivable - 695.04
CENVAT credit receivable - 1.49
Service tax credit receivable - 19.36
MEIS receivable 536.52 1,003.83
MEIS licenses on hand 344.39 -
Duty drawback receivable 39.29 -
GST Receivable 5,043.64 2,869.42
Pre paid expenses 405.73 445.40
Advances to Material Suppliers 375.62 741.65
Advances to service providers 41.83 12.09
Others advances 32.99 21.00
Total other current assets 6,820.01 5,809.28

NOTE 11: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY
11(a) Equity share capital

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Authorised Capital
400,000,000 Equity shares of %1 /- each 4,000.00 4,000.00
(400,000,000 Equity shares of %1 /- each)
4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
127,282,478 Equity shares of %1 /- each 1,272.82 1,272.82
(127,282,478 Equity shares of 1 /- each)
1,272.82 1,272.82
11(a).1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
315t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 12,72,82,478 1,272.82 12,72,82,478 1,272.82
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 12,72,82,478 1,272.82 12,72,82,478 1,272.82

11(a).2 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

Equity shares have a par value of 1. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the
company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to

one vote.

The Board of Directors has declared and paid an interim dividend of ¥1.50/- per equity share (315t March, 2018:31.50/-).

11(a).3 Shares of the Company held by holding company

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Jasti Property and Equity Holdings Private Limited
76,365,000 Equity shares of T1/- each (Previous year:76,365,000) 7,63,65,000 7,63,65,000
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
11(a).4 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Particulars Number of Number of
() H 0y i
Shares % of Holding Shares % of Holding
Jasti Property and Equity Holdings Private Limited 7,63,65,000 60.00% 7,63,65,000 60.00%

11(a).5 Shares reserved for issue under Options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option plan (ESOP) of the Company, refer note no 36

11(b) Other equity

Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018

Securities premium 23,311.69 23,311.69

General reserve 12,036.62 10,536.62

Retained earnings 62,739.69 51,548.85
Total other equity 98,088.00 85,397.16
(i) Securities premium

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Opening balance 23,311.69 23,311.69
Add: On issue of shares - -
Closing Balance 23,311.69 23,311.69
(ii) General Reserve

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Opening balance 10,536.62 9,036.62
Transferred from Retained Earnings 1,500.00 1,500.00
Closing Balance 12,036.62 10,536.62
(iii) Retained earnings

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Opening balance 51,548.85 39,531.79
Net profit for the year 15,006.29 15,842.73
Transferred to General reserve (1,500.00) (1,500.00)
Dividend paid (1,909.23) (1,909.30)
Tax on distributed profit (392.45) (388.69)
Other Comprehensive Income

- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax (13.77) (27.68)
Closing balance 62,739.69 51,548.85
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
NOTE 12: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

12(a) Non-current borrowings

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31*March, 2018
Secured
Foreign currency term loan from State Bank of India ( refer note (ii) below) = 24.84

Terms of repayment: The term loan is repayable in 20 quarterly installments after roll over
commencing from March'2016.

Unsecured

Loan from Department of Science & Technology, Government of India-I 160.55 192.97
Terms of repayment: 10 Annual installments of ¥50 Lakhs each commencing from October

2013

Loan from Department of Science & Technology, Government of India-II 111.38 123.92
Terms of repayment: 10 Annual installments of ¥44.40 Lakhs each commencing from

February 2013

Total non-current borrowings 271.93 341.73
Less: Current maturities of Non-current borrowings (included in note 12(d)) 94.40 119.24
Non-current borrowings 177.53 222.49

12(b) Current borrowings

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Secured

Working Capital Loans from State Bank of India( refer note (i) below) 2,965.71 2,476.23
Working Capital Loans from Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait ( refer note (i) below) 563.53 581.17
Total Current Borrowings 3,529.24 3,057.40
Notes:

(i). Working capital loans of ¥3529.24 lakhs (PY %3057.40 lakhs) was availed from State Bank of India and Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait. The
loan is secured by hypothecation on stocks, receivables and other current assets of the company and second charge on fixed assets of
the Company

(ii). Term loan of INIL (PY %24.84 lakhs) was availed from State Bank of India. The loan is secured by hypothecation on fixed assets of the
Company and second charge on stocks, receivables and other current assets of the Company.

Debit Balance in cash credit accounts as at 31t March, 2019 & 31t March, 2018 have been grouped under the head "Cash and Cash

equivalents"

12(c) Trade payables

Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note below) 73.22 -
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5,992.86 5,681.58
Total trade payables 6,066.08 5,681.58

Dues to micro and small enterprises:

With the promulgation of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company is required to identify Micro,
Small and Medium Suppliers and pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period irrespective of the terms with the suppliers.
The Company has circulated letter to all suppliers seeking their status. Response from few suppliers has been received and is still awaited
from other suppliers. In view of this, the liability of interest calculated and the required disclosures made, in the below table, to the extent
of information available with the Company.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31**March, 2019  31%March, 2018
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 67.12 -
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 6.09 -

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 6.03 -
interest specified under this Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 0.06 -

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to small enterprises

12(d) Other Financial liabilities

Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Current

Current maturities of non-current borrowings(Refer Note 12(a)) 94.40 119.24
Liabilities for expenses 1,292.83 1,186.69
Payable for Capital Goods 392.39 177.15
Unpaid dividend on equity shares 57.44 51.13
Total other current financial liabilities 1,837.06 1,534.21

NOTE 13: PROVISIONS

31t March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Particulars
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Provision for Employee benefits
-Leave obligations 134.40 44454 107.02 368.68
-Gratuity 94.62 298.62 366.99 -
229.02 743.16 474.01 368.68

(i) Post-employment obligations
a) Gratuity- Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 day salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan
is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and
maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

(ii) Defined Contribution plans

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Provident Fund 300.90 261.52
State Defined Contribution Plans

| Employees State Insurance 3247 40.73
Il Employees Pension Scheme,1995 135.65 125.87

102 | f:é\élzsh(‘:IENCES LIMITED

ey ]



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gratuity

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

. Present Value of
Particulars

Fair Value of

Net amount

obligation Plan Assets
01-Apr-17 783.73 494.87 288.86
Current service cost 112.96 - 112.96
Interest expense/(income) 62.70 43.94 18.76
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 959.39 538.81 420.58
Remeasurements - - -
Return on plant assets, excluding amounts included in interest _ _ }
expense/(income)
Experience (gains)/loss 42.33 = 42.33
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 1,001.72 538.81 462.92
Employer contributions - 108.74 (108.74)
Benefit payments - (12.82) 12.82
31-Mar-18 1,001.72 634.73 366.99
01-Apr-18 1,001.72 634.73 366.99
Current service cost 125.13 = 125.13
Interest expense/(income) 78.87 52.93 25.94
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1,205.72 687.66 518.07
Remeasurements = = =
Return on plant assets, excluding amounts included in interest _ _ )
expense/(income)
Experience (gains)/loss 7.30 - 7.30
Total amount recognised in total comprehensive income 1,213.02 687.66 525.36
Employer contributions - 114.29 (114.29)
Benefit payments (31.69) (13.86) (17.83)
31-Mar-19 1,181.33 788.08 393.25
(iii) Post-employment benefits (pension and gratuity)
Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Discount rate 7.65% 8.00%
Salary growth rate 9.00% 9.00%
Attrition rate 6.50% 6.50%
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(iv) Sensitivity analysis (All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Defined benefit obligation

Particulars Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
31t March, 31t March, 31t March, 31t March, 31t March, 31t March,
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Discount rate 1% 1% 1,089.85 926.81 1,287.01 1,088.02
Salary growth rate 1% 1% 1,275.70 1,079.68 1,094.35 929.13
Attrition rate 1% 1% 1,174.08 997.16 1,189.42 1,006.78

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation
to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior
period.

(v) Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset Volatility: The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets under perform this
yield, this will create a deficit. Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities.
A portion of the fund is invested in equity securities and in alternative investments which have low correlation with equity securities. The
equity securities are expected to earn a return in excess of the discount rate and contribute to the plan deficit. The company has a risk
management strategy where the aggregate amount of risk exposure on a portfolio level is maintained at a fixed range. Any deviations
from the range are corrected by rebalancing the portfolio. The company intends to maintain the investment mix in the continuing years.

Changes in bond yields: A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially off-set by an increase in the
value of the plan's bond holdings.

Inflation risk: In the pension plans, the pensions in payment are not linked to inflation, so this is a less material risk.

Life expectancy: The pension obligation are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increase in life expectancy will result in
an increase in the plan's liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationery increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life
expectancy.

The company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has been
developed to achieve long term investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework,
the company's ALM objective is to match the assets to the pension obligations by investing in long term fixed interest securities with
maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.

The company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows
arising from the employee benefit obligations. The company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods.

A large portion of assets in 2019 consists of government and corporate bonds, although the company also invests in equities, cash and
mutual funds. The company believes that equities offer the best returns over the long term with an acceptable level of risk. The majority of
equities are in a globally diversified portfolio of international blue chip entities, with a target of 60% equities held in India. The plan asset
mix is in compliance with the requirements of the respective local regulations.

(vi) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

The company has agreed that it will aim to eliminate the deficit in defined benefit pension and gratuity plan over the next nine years.
Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis and the current agreed contribution rate is 12% of the basic salaries. The company
considers that the contribution rate set at the last valuation date are sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the agreed period and that
regular contributions, which are based on service costs will not increase significantly.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13.44 years (2018-13.24 years). The expected maturity analysis of

undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Particulars Amount
Year 1 94.62
Year 2 128.47
Year 3 96.49
Year 4 96.81
Year 5 96.41
Year6to 10 560.64
Estimate Contribution to post employment benefit plans during the next year would be ¥196.62 lakhs
NOTE 14: GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Opening Balance 133.82 162.88
Provision recognised/(reversed) during the year 29.06 29.06
Closing Balance 104.76 133.82
Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Current portion 29.06 29.06
Non-current portion 75.69 104.76
NOTE 15: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31% March, 2018
Government grants 29.06 29.06
Advance from customers 402.43 823.52
Statutory dues payable 159.69 158.24
Total other current liabilities 591.18 1,010.82
NOTE 16: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31% March, 2018
Sale of Products 59,547.37 56,847.99
Sale of Services 4,987.53 4,410.23
64,534.90 61,258.22
Other Operating Income
Export Incentives (MEIS) 1,692.44 1,267.62
Duty Drawback Received 123.10 =
1,815.54 1,267.62
66,350.44 62,525.84
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 17: OTHER INCOME

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Interest income
On fixed deposits 13.68 8.38
Others 24.70 80.77
Government Grants 29.06 29.06
Credit balances written back 33.03 5.29
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 226.37 385.54
Gain on Financial Assets 2,096.09 1,816.03
Profit due to sale of asset - 2.00
2,422.93 2,327.07
NOTE 18: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Particulars 31**March, 2019  31%March, 2018
Raw Materials
Raw Material at the beginning of the year 3,630.13 2,066.24
Purchases during the year 19,484.29 18,901.27
Less: Raw Material at the end of the year 3,033.11 3,630.13
20,081.31 17,337.38
Packing Materials
Packing Material at the beginning of the year 272.22 255.37
Purchases during the year 289.17 295.95
Less: Packing Material at the end of the year 228.88 272.22
332.51 279.10
20,413.82 17,616.48
NOTE 19: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND FINISHED GOODS
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Opening Balance:
Work-in-progress 3,962.53 3,716.28
Finished Goods 4,165.54 2,291.67
Total opening balance 8,128.07 6,007.95
Closing Balance:
Work-in-progress 7,001.16 3,962.53
Finished Goods 4,188.32 4,165.54
Total closing balance 11,189.48 8,128.07
(3,061.41) (2,120.13)
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 20: MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Power & Fuel 3,742.57 3,355.96
Consumable Stores 109.33 110.23
Factory Upkeep Expenses 2,251.98 1,974.89
Environment Management Expenses 908.78 637.97
Safety Expenses 93.62 7043
Quality Control Expenses 782.75 456.20
Repairs & Maintenance:
Buildings 40.22 164.73
Plant & Machinery 2,053.07 1,924.94
9,982.32 8,695.35
NOTE 21: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Salaries & Wages 5,499.45 4,953.88
Contribution to Provident & other funds 469.19 428.45
Gratuity Expense 151.07 166.70
Staff Welfare Expenses 228.08 324.80
6,347.79 5,873.83
NOTE 22: RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
R & D Salaries 1,862.39 1,679.95
R & D Materials 319.33 551.28
Patent Related Expenses 1,285.71 752.88
Lab Maintenance 764.01 707.48
R & D Other Expenses 1,440.80 1,809.70
Depreciation 355.36 34537
6,027.60 5,846.66
NOTE 23: FINANCE COSTS
Particulars 31 March, 2019 31% March, 2018
Interest 199.02 281.60
Bank Charges 177.29 179.51
376.31 461.11
NOTE 24: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3) 2,181.69 2,108.62
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 4) 32.36 22.37
2,214.05 2,130.99
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 25: OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Rent 70.90 75.33
Rates & Taxes 35.67 46.58
Service Tax 16.24 6.24
Insurance 334.66 265.03
Communication Charges 126.40 128.63
Travelling & Conveyance 802.50 624.88
Printing & Stationery 47.34 64.09
Vehicle Maintenance 28.15 29.16
Professional Charges 355.30 348.40
Payments to Auditors (Refer note 25(a)below) 20.69 16.81
Security Charges 213.12 190.41
Donations 0.10 0.75
Repairs & Maintenance - others 106.12 82.81
Corporate Social Responsibility(Refer note 25(b)below) 659.06 330.61
Sales Promotion 646.36 334.12
Clearing & Forwarding 309.75 346.02
Commission on Sales 204.39 177.02
General Expenses 309.84 255.16
4,286.59 3,322.05
Note 25(a): Details of payments to auditors
Particulars 31t March, 2019 315t March, 2018
Payment to auditors
As auditor:
Statutory Audit fee 16.00 12.00
Tax audit fee - -
In other capacity
Other Services 4.00 4.00
Re-imbursement of out -of- pocket expenses 0.69 0.81
20.69 16.81
Note 25(b): Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Particulars 31**March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act 356.48 302.58
Amount spent during the year on
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 659.06 330.61

NOTE 26: INCOME TAX EXPENSE

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity and how the tax
expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the company’s

tax positions.
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 26 (a) Income tax expense

Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 4,604.23 4,756.49
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods = (100.55)
Total current tax expense 4,604.23 4,655.94

Deferred tax

Decrease(increase) in deferred tax assets - -

Increase(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 2,575.78 2,527.90
Total Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 2,575.78 2,527.90
Income tax expense 7,180.01 7,183.84

Income tax expense is attributable to:

Profit from operations 7,180.01 7,183.84

Note 26 (b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Particulars 31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Profit from operations before income tax expenses 22,186.30 23,026.57
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.944% (2017-18 -34.608%) 7,752.78 7,969.04

Computed expected tax expense:

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure (809.40) (1,303.79)
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 230.30 114.42
Donations 0.04 0.26
Government grant (10.16) (10.16)
Income tax paid at special rate (188.77) (241.63)
Interest on Income tax 0.92 =
Interest on MSMED 2.13 =
Interest on Service tax 0.14 =
opening DTL on impact of rate change 22.56 -
Mutual funds 126.35 =
DST Loan 12.60 =
Impact of WDV change 158.08 =
MAT Credit (120.57) -
Others 3.01 655.71
Income tax expenses 7,180.01 7,183.84
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Financial instruments and risk management

NOTE 27: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31t March, 2019 31 March, 2018
FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost

Financial Assets
Investments

-Equity Investment = 7.05 = 7.05

-Mutual funds 22,998.92 - 27,872.56 -
Trade Receivables = 15,014.63 = 6,153.81
Loans = 18.69 = 13.99
Security deposits - 437.69 - 434.49
Cash and Cash equivalents - 1,090.74 - 1,905.80
Bank Balances - 57.44 - 51.13
Fixed Deposits with Banks and Interest thereon - 187.70 - 176.31
Total Financial Assets 22,998.92 16,813.94 27,872.56 8,742.58
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 3,706.77 - 3,279.89
Current maturities of long-term debt - 94.40 - 119.24
Unpaid dividends - 57.44 - 51.13
Trade Payables - 6,066.08 - 5,681.58
Capital creditors - 392.39 - 177.15
Total Financial Liabilities - 10,317.08 - 9,308.99

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised
and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Financial assets measured at fair value &

Amortised cost Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31t March, 2019

Financial assets

Equity Investment = = 7.05 7.05
Investment in mutual funds 5(a)(i) - 22,998.92 - 22,998.92
Trade Receivables - - 15,014.63 15,014.63
Loans = = 18.69 18.69
Security deposits - - 437.69 437.69
Fixed Deposits with Banks and Interest thereon - - 187.70 187.70
Total Financial Assets - 22,998.92 15,665.76 38,664.68
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised

cost & Fair Value Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31t March, 2019

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - - 3,706.77 3,706.77
Current maturities of long-term debt - - 94.40 94.40
Unpaid dividends - - 57.44 57.44
Trade Payables = = 6,066.08 6,066.08
Capital creditors = = 392.39 392.39
Total Financial Liabilities - - 10,317.08 10,317.08
:ir:t::ii::s;e:: measured at fair value & Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31t March, 2018

Financial assets

Equity Investment 7.05 7.05
Investment in mutual funds 27,872.56 - 27,872.56
Trade Receivables 6,153.81 6,153.81
Loans 13.99 13.99
Security deposits 434.49 434.49
Fixed Deposits with Banks and Interest thereon 176.31 176.31
Total Financial Assets - 27,872.56 6,785.65 34,658.21
:Lr;:r:;?i:i‘a’:::jteies measured at amortised Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31t March, 2018

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - - 3,279.89 3,279.89
Current maturities of long-term debt 119.24 119.24
Unpaid dividends 51.13 51.13
Trade Payables 5,681.58 5,681.58
Capital creditors 177.15 177.15
Total Financial Liabilities - - 9,308.99 9,308.99

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes Quoted prices taken from market.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data( unobservable inputs).

NOTE 28: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial
performance of the company, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts will be entered to hedge certain
foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments. This
note explains the sources of risk which the entity loss exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of them in the
financial statements
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management Comment

Cash and cash equivalents,

trade receivables, financial Diversification of bank deposits and

Credit risk assets measured at Q9SldlEne 2k monitoring of credit limits of customers
amortised cost
S Borrowings and other Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines and
Liquidity risk o . AP
liabilities forecasts borrowing facilities
Future commercial
transactions .
Market risk - foreign Recognised financial Cash flow forecasting GUREDIEEED Im_port commitment are
o s . covered by snapping from the export USD
exchange assets and liabilities not Sensitivity analysis
. . . thru EEFC account
denominated in Indian
rupees

Long-term borrowings at
variable rates

Interest rates were Libor plus rate of

Market risk - interest risk interest fixed for the full term of the loan

Sensitivity analysis

Investments in Mutual

Market risk - security prices funds

Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

The company'’s risk management is carried out by the management. Company treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in
close cooperation with the company’s operating units. The management provides written principles for overall risk management, as well
as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, and investment of excess liquidity.

(A) Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration
of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit
has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk
principally consist of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Company
result in material concentration of credit risk.

i) Financial instruments and cash deposits

For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/ institutions are accepted. Other Financial assets (excluding Bank deposits)
majorly constitute deposits given to State electricity departments for supply of power, which the company considers to have negligible
credit exposure. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated
throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s
potential failure to make payments.

ii) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

For trade receivables , the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables

Year ended 31 March, 2019

More than

Ageing 0-30days 31-60days 61-90days 91-120days 120 days Total
Gross carrying amount 7,298.54 3,903.06 2,582.72 248.92 981.39 15,014.63
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Expected credit losses } ) ) _ ) _
(loss allowance provision)

Carrying amount of trade receivables 7,298.54  3,903.06  2,582.72 248.92 981.39  15,014.63

(net of impairment)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All in Indian R in lakhs, unl herwi
Year ended 31 March, 2018 (All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Ageing 0-30 days 31-60days 61-90days 91-120 days '\1,'(2) (r)e;fa\;: Total
Gross carrying amount 1,046.36 2,598.33 1,893.84 289.84 32545 6,153.82
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Expected credit losses B _ : _ - .
(loss allowance provision)

Carrying amount of trade receivables 1,046.36  2,598.33  1,893.84 289.84 32545  6,153.82

(net of impairment)

(B) Liquidity Risk:

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to dynamic
nature of the underlying business, company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit
lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position(comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at local level in the company in accordance with
practice and limits set by the company. These limits vary by location to take into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity
operates. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering
the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended 31 March, 2019 On Demand il:nnoe':(tthlz >1year Total

(i) Borrowings 3,529.24 94.40 177.53 3,801.17

(i) Trade payables - 6,066.08 - 6,066.08

(iii) Other financial liabilities 57.44 1,685.22 - 1,742.66
3,586.68 7,845.70 177.53 11,609.91

Year ended 31 March, 2018 On Demand i:'“:en):th:z >1 year Total

(i) Borrowings 3,057.40 119.24 222.49 3,399.13

(i) Trade payables - 5,681.58 - 5,681.58

(iii) Other financial liabilities 51.13 1,363.84 - 1,414.97
3,108.53 7,164.66 222.49 10,495.68

C) Market risk - foreign exchange risk

The company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with
respect to the USD, GBP and EUR. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable
foreign forecast transactions.

The company’s risk management policy is to hedge part of forecasted foreign currency sales for the subsequent months. As per the risk
management policy, foreign exchange forward contracts are taken to hedge part of the forecasted sales by taking consultancy from
external treasury management forms . The imports were hedged naturally by payment through EEFC account.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure:

The company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

particulars As at 31** March, 2019

usb GBP EUR Others
Financial assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 712.36 - - -
Trade receivables(Net) 14,155.50 30.72 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3,529.24 - - -
Trade payables 801.12 57.72 142.01 39.21
Other financial liabilities 55.50 - - -
Particulars As at 31 March, 2018

usb GBP EUR Others
Financial assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 197.75 - - -
Trade receivables 5,313.53 - - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3,082.24
Trade payables 1,248.78 17.71 14.00 7.66
Other financial liabilities 43.64 - - -

D) Market risk - interest risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the company to cashflow
interest rate risk.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars 31t March, 2019 315t March, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 3,529.24 3,082.24
Fixed rate borrowings - -
Total borrowings 3,529.24 3,082.24

(b) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. Other components of
equity change as a result of increase/decrease in the fair value of cash flow hedges related to the borrowings if any

Impact on Other components

Impact on Profit after tax .
of equity

Particulars

31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Interest rates-increase by 100 basis points 163.74 302.77 - -
Interest rates-decrease by 100 basis points 96.09 176.86 = =

NOTE 29: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(a) Risk management
The Company'’s objective when managing capital are to:

1. Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, and
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital

to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts

Consistent with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio: -Net debt (total borrowings

net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity (as shown in the balance sheet)

31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Net debt 2,465.29 1,265.89
Total Equity 99,360.82 86,669.98
Net debt to equity ratio 2.48% 1.46%

(b) Dividends (on equity instruments)

31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

(i) Equity shares

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2019 of ¥1.50 (31-March 2018-31.50) per fully
paid share

1,909.23 1,909.30

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period = =

The interim dividend paid has been declared as final dividend in the board meeting held on
25/05/2019

NOTE 30: UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH QIP

During the year ended 315t March 2015, the Company has raised 20,000 lakhs primarily for clinical development expenses, capital
expenditure and general corporate purposes and any other purposes as may be permissible under applicable law.

Utilisation of QIP Funds:

Particulars 31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Amount Raised in QIP - -
Unutilsed amount at the beginning of the year 2,133.16 7,781.20
Amount utilised during the year : 2,133.16 5,648.04
Investment in wholly owned subsidiary - Suven Neurosciences Inc., 2,133.16 3,721.93
Investment in Capex - 1,926.11
Unutilsed amount at the end of the year - 2,133.16

NOTE 31: SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Description of segments and principal activities

The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker(CODM). The CODM examines the Company’s
performance both from a product and a geographic perspective and has identified two reportable segments:

Business Segment

Segments have been identified and reported taking into account the nature of products, the differing risk and returns, the organisation
structure, and the internal financial reporting scheme.The company has identified the following segments as its reportable segments

(@) Manufacturing (CRAMS)
(b) Services (DDDSS)
(c) Research and Development

I.  Manufacturing (CRAMS) - Bulk Drugs & Intermediates under contract services products are developed and produced on an
exclusive basis under contract Manufacturing services

IIl. Services (DDDSS) - Which consists of Collaborative Research Projects (CRP), Clinical Trials and Testing and Analysis services
ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. (All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Geographical Segment

The Company has identified the following geographical reportable segments:

(a) India-The Company sells Bulk Drugs and Intermediates, Fine Chemicals & Services.
(b) USA -The Company sells Intermediates & Services

(c) Europe-The Company sells Bulk Drugs and Intermediates

(d) Others -The Company sells Bulk Drugs, Intermediates & Services

Manufacturing 0 Research &
(CRAMS) Services (DDDSS) e T Unallocated Total
Particulars
31**March, 31tMarch, 31 March, 31t March, 31 March, 31t March, 31 March, 31 March, 31 March, 31*March,
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Segment Result-
Operating 26,594.91 28,031.87 2,558.00 1,428.77 (6,027.60) (5,846.66) (778.36) (394.97) 22,346.95 23,219.01
profits(EBIT)
Interest Expense - - - - - - (199.02) (281.59) (199.02)  (281.59)
Interest Income - - | ] | ] 38.38 89.15 38.38 89.15
Income Taxes - - - - - - (7,180.02) (7,183.84) (7,180.01) (7,183.84)
Net profit 26,594.91 28,031.87 2,558.00 1,428.77 (6,027.60) (5,846.66) (8,119.02) (7,771.25) 15,006.29 15,842.73
Manufacturing . Research &
(CRAMS) Services (DDDSS) il Unallocated Total
Particulars
315 March, 31%*March, 31 March, 31 March, 31 March, 31 March, 31 March, 315 March, 31 March, 31 March,
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Segment
Revenue
. 61,387.18 59,687.64 4,987.53 2,838.20 s s 2,398.66 2,327.07 68,773.37 64,852.91
Including other
Income
Segment Result-
Operating 26,594.91 28,031.87  2,558.00 1,428.77 (6,027.60) (5,846.66) (778.36) (394.97) 22,346.95 23,219.01
profits
Segment Assets  69,666.60 52,951.18  5,687.52  4,00097  3,022.45 2,782.38 39,12531 41,713.11 1,17,501.88 1,01,447.64
Segment
Liabilities 9,189.76 8,594.07 641.72 382.64 1,592.08 1,587.28 829.02 1,194.03 12,252.58 11,758.02
Capital
. 472.70 1,257.22 156.55 636.68 450.86 571.26 41.47 211.36 1,121.58 2,676.52
Expenditure
Depreciation 1,782.11 1,930.88 361.69 100.06 355.36 345.37 70.26 100.06  2,569.41 2,476.36
Revenue for the year ended Value of Net Assets as on Additions to Fixed Assets during
the year
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018 FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
INDIA 4,764.56 4,874.67 29,306.78 30,751.28 1,116.80 2,674.23
USA 3,882.85 6,725.96 17.94 21.28 478 2.29
EUROPE 42,484.92 45,985.35 9 9 s a
OTHERS 15,218.11 4,939.86 s 4 s =
66,350.44 62,525.84 29,324.72 30,772.56 1,121.58 2,676.52
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information about major customers

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Revenues from one of the customers of the Company's in Europe was 323,317 lakhs representing approximately 35% of the Company's
total revenue, for the year ended 31t March, 2019 and 16,580 lakhs representing approximately 26% of the Company's total revenue, for

the year ended 315 March, 2018.

NOTE 32: INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES

The Company's subsidiaries as at 315 March, 2019 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of
equity shares that are held directly by the Company

Place of e e IR I LY Ownership interest held by Non-Controlling interests
. Business/ the Company
Name of the entity
Country of 315t March, 31tMarch, 31°*March, 31%March, Princioal activit

incorporation 2019 2018 2019 2018 P y
Suven Neurosciences Inc., USA 100% 100% 0% 0% Clinical trials business
Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd. India 100% - 0% - CRAMS business

SPV for undertaking

Suven Pharma Inc., USA 100% - 0% - etene ks

opportunities in Pharma
Industry.

NOTE 33: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Holding Company

(b) Subsidiaries:

(c) Key Management personnel(KMP)

(d) Relative of Key Management personnel
(e) Entity with common KMP

(a) Parent entities

: Jasti Property and Equity Holdings Private Limited
(In its capacity as sole trustee of Jasti Family Trust)

: Suven Neurosciences Inc.,
: Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd.
: Suven Pharma Inc.,

: Mr. Venkateswarlu Jasti (Chairman & CEO)
Mrs. Sudha Rani Jasti (Whole-time Director)
Mr. P. Subba Rao (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. K. Hanumantha Rao (Company Secretary)

: Mrs. Kalyani Jasti (Daughter of Mr. Venkateswarlu Jasti and Mrs. Sudharani Jasti)

: Suven Trust

Ownership Interest

Name Type Place of Incorporation

31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Jasti Property and Equity Holdings Immediate and . 5 o
Private Limited Ultimate parent entity L1 60.00% 60.00%

(b) Subsidiaries

31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018

Opening 10,222.59 6,500.67
Investment in subsidiary 3,414.74 3,721.92
Balance outstanding 13,637.33 10,222.59
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(c )JKey Management Personnel compensation

31 March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Short term employee benefits 889.68 858.18
Post-employment benefits = =
Long term employee benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Total Compensation 889.68 858.18
Balance outstanding 339.40 357.54

(d ) Relative of Key Management Personnel compensation

31t March, 2019

31t March, 2018

Short term employee benefits 232.10 158.37
Post-employment benefits - -
Long term employee benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Total Compensation 232.10 158.37
(e) Entity with common KMP
31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Suven Trust 659.06 330.61

NOTE 34: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

31t March, 2019

31t March, 2018

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

a) Income tax appeal for Asst.year 2011-12 7.64 7.64
b) Letter of credit for imports 1,077.47 1,013.00
c) Bank Guarantee 6.50 8.50
1,091.61 1,029.13
NOTE 35: COMMITMENTS

31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Estm)ated amount of contrac'ts remammg to be executed on capital account and not 3,665.86 2,820.08

provided for, net of Payments(including advances)
3,665.86 2,820.08

NOTE 36: SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
(a) Employee option plan

Suven Employee Stock Option Scheme -2004 was approved by shareholders at the 2004 annual general meeting. Each option entitles the
holder thereof to apply for and be allotted one equity share of the Company of 1.00 each upon payment of the exercise price during the
exercise period. The exercise period commences from the date of vesting of the Options and expires at the end of three years from the date
of vesting in respect of Options granted under the Suven Employee Stock Option Scheme -2004

The vesting period for conversion of Options is as follows:

On completion of 24 months from the date of grant of the Options: 25% vests
On completion of 36 months from the date of grant of the Options: 35% vests
On completion of 48 months from the date of grant of the Options: 40% vests

The Options have been granted at the ‘market price’ as defined from time to time under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999.
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. . (All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Set out below is a summary of option granted under the plan:

31t March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Particulars Average exercise Number of Average exercise Number of
price per.share Options price per.share Options
option() option(3)

Opening balance 22.30 200,000 2361 455,000
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Forfeited/ Expired during the year 22.30 200,000 23.61 255,000
Closing balance - - 22.30 200,000
Vested and exercisable - 200,000

Share options outstanding at the end of the year having the following expiry date and exercise prices:
Grant Date Expiry Date Exercise price (3) 31 :T\:;fc?"’)tzig:; 31?;:::::23:' ;
30-May-2011 29-May-2018 22.30 - 200,000
Total - 200,000
Weighted average remaining contractual life of ) _ ) G

options outstanding at the end of the period

(i) Fair value of options granted

The fair value at grant date of options granted during the year ended 315t March, 2019 was INIL per option( 315t March, 2018XNIL). The fair
value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the
share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and risk free interest rate for the
term of the option.

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

(b) Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as

follows:

31t March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Employee option plan Nil Nil
Share appreciation rights Nil Nil
Total employee share based payment expense Nil Nil

NOTE 37: EARNINGS PER SHARE

31t March, 2019 315t March, 2018

Profit After Tax (PAT) 15,006.29 15,842.73
Weighted average number of equity shares 1,272,82,478 1,272,82,478
Basic Earnings per share 11.79 12.45
Note:

There is no dilution to the Basic Earnings per share as there are no dilutive potential equity shares
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 38: SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT (DEMERGER) (All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

During the year under review, subject to the approval of NCLT and other stakeholders, the Company’s Board considered and decided
that the Company shall demerge CRAMS undertaking on a going concern basis to its wholly owned subsidiary, Suven Pharmaceuticals
Limited (SPL) through a Scheme of Arrangement w.e.f the appointed date of 1t October, 2018 between the Company and SPL keeping
in view the expected growth prospects in both CRAMS and Discovery business, which shall not only enable both the businesses to grow
independently with their focused vision, strategies and operations, but also contribute significantly towards unlocking the potential value
of the businesses for the shareholders.

The consideration for the demerger shall be issue of 1 (One) fully paid up equity share of face value of 31/- (Rupee One only) each of SPL for
every 1 (One) fully paid up equity share of face value of ¥1/- (Rupee One only) each held by each shareholder in the Demerged Company
(SLSL) as on the Record Date, thereby resulting in a mirror shareholding of SLSL in SPL.

NOTE 39 : Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to this year’s
classifications.

The accompanying notes from an integral part of the financial statements

For TUKARAM & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Suven Life Sciences Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 004436S
Rajender Reddy K Venkateswarlu Jasti
Partner Chairman & CEO
Membership No. 231834 DIN: 00278028
K.Hanumantha Rao P. Subba Rao
Place : Hyderabad Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date : 25" May, 2019 Membership No. A11599 Membership No. A11342
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Annexure -9

TUKARAM & CO LLP s

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 2322 8086

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
To the Members of Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Siatemenis

{pinion

Wi have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Suven Pharmaceaticals Limited
(*the Company™) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019, the Statement of Profil amd
Lass (including Onher Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statensent of
Cash Flows for the vear ended on that date and rotes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred 1o 8z “Ind AS

financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given o us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Aci read with the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other sccounting principles generally sccepled in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2019, the LOSS and total comprehensive
incoane, changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Rasis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(5As) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those
Swandards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institvte of Charered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind A% financial statements,

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auvditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Roard of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Repont, Business Responsibility Repont, Corperate Governance
and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s
repon thereon.

Cur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other informarion and we do not
express any form of wssurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing 20, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other
information, we are réquined 1o report thal f have nothing to report in this regard.
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Managemeni's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statemenis

I'he Company’s Hoard of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements thm
give @ true and Fair view of the lnancial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and eash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other

wccounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility alsa includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provizsions of the Act for safepuarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of approprise implementation and maintenance
of accounting policics: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implemientation and maintenance nfadnquatc internal financial contrals, that were operating efectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind A% financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

missiatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability 1o continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of sccounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Company
o 1o eease operations, or has no realistic alternative bul to do so,

Those Board of Directors are responsible for oversecing the company™s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Ohur objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance aboutl whether these Ind AS financial stalements as a
whole are free from material misstalement, whether due to froud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is nol a guaraniee that an
amdil conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of wsers taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maimain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s [dentify and assess the nsks of matenal misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or errer, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain
audil evidence that is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

= (¥btain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant ta the audit in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)1) of the Act, we ane
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls svstem in place and the operating effectivencss of such contrals.

¢  Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of sccounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events
or condibions that may cast significant doubt on the Company”s ability to continue as a going
concern. | we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our
aediier's report o the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial staiements or, il such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up o the date of our audiber's report. I-Iuw:v:r. fulure evenis or conditions may cause the
Company 10 cease [0 Continue as o Fokee o
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= Evaluaie the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial siatements represent the underlying
transactions and cvents in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

Mareriality is the magnitde of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in
ageregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably Knowledgeable user of the Ind
AS financial statemenis may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii} to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicale with those charged with governance regarding, among olher matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significent deficiencies in internal
contral that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters thar may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of [ndia in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure-A", a stalement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Aci, we report thai:

a) We have zought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
0 (ar as it gppears from our examination of those books,

¢} The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agresment with the books of account.

d} In our opinion. ihe aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31° March, 2019,
iaken on record by the Board of Dircclors. none of the dircctors is disqualified as on 31"
March, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

fi With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer (o our separate reporl in
“Annexure-B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

£) With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repont in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and (o the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o
s, the remuncration paid by the Company (0 its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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h} With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Auvdit and Auditars) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given bo us:

i.  The Company has no pending litipations on its financial position in its financial
Siatemenis,

il The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivaiive contracis for
which there were any material foresceable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For TUKARAM & CO LLI*
Chartered Accountants
[CAl Firm Regn. No.0044 365

(%—_»L‘\r- %
RAJENDER REDDY K

Partnér
Membership No23 1834

Place: Hydersbod
Drate: 24052019
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“Anncxure = A" o the Auditors” Reporl

The Annexure referred 1o in Independent Auditors' Report 1o the members of the Company on the Ind AS
financial statements for the vear ended 31% March, 2019, we report that:

Re: Suven Pharmaccuticals Limited (“the Company')

i.

vi.

vii.

wiii.

The Company has no fixed assets and hence paragraph 3(i) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not carried out any trading activities during the year and hence no inventory is
held by the Company. Therefore paragraph 3{u) of the onder s not applicable (o the Company.

According o the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecurcd to companics, firms or other partics covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investments made,

Acedrding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not sccepled
depasits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 and 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Act and the rules framed there under.

In respect of the Company, maintenanee of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act in respect of activities of the

company.
In respect of Statutory dues:

{a} According to the information and explanations given to us on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/acerued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed staiutory ducs including income tax, cess and other material statutory dues have
been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounis payable
in respect of such statutory dwes were oulstanding, at the vear ¢nd, for a period of more than

six months frem the date they became payvable.

{b) According to the information and ¢xplanations given to us, there are ne dues of income-tax,
w55 that have not been depasited by the Company on account of any disputes.

Based on ouwr audit procedures and as per the information and explanations piven by the
management, wé are of the apinion that the Company has not defaulred in the repayment of dues
1o banks and fnancial institutions, The Campany did nol have any debentures outstanding as at
the year end.

Based on the informatien and explanations given 1o us by the management, the Company has net
raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or futher public offer of equity shares,
convertible securities and debt securities. No term loans were taken during the year by the

Company.

Baged upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management,
we report that no material fraud, by the Company or on the Company by ils officers or
employees, has been noticed or reported during the course of our awdil,
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Xl

xii.

xiii.

Xiv,

KW,

K.

According to the information and explanations give to us and bazsed on our cxamination of the
recards of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during
the vear. Hence paragraph 3(xi) of the order i3 not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and sccording to the information and explanations given to us, ihe Company is not
a Midhi Company. Accordingly, Clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are i compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as regquired by the applicable accounting standards,

Agcording to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential alloiment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year,

Acgording to the information and explanations given (0 us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, Clause (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company i% mol reqguired to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934,

For TUKARAM & OO LLIM
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Regn. No.O044365

- .

! ‘[ cHARTERED
RAJENDER REDDY K ACGOUNTANTS | 3
Partner .
Membership No.231834 &
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 24052019

s .
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Annexure - B to the Our Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of Suven
Pharmaceuticals Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 20013 (“the Aci™)

We have audited the internal financial comtrols over financial reporting of Suven Pharmaceuticals
Limited {“the Company™) as of 31" March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS linancial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
hazed on the internal control over financial reporiing criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Moic on Audit of Intermal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial
conirols that were operaling effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policics, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accurscy and completeness of the accounting recerds, and the timely preparation of
relizble financial information, s required under the Compames Act, 2013,

Aunditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Campany's intemmal financial controls over financial
reporting based an our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Imtemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Mote™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companiez Act,
2003, 10 the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable o an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfiarm
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial contrals over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating efecliveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intermal financial
controls over financial reporling, assessing the risk that o matenial weakness exists, and testing and
cvaluating the design and operating effectivencss of internal controd based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind A% linancial statements, whether due to fawd or ermor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company™s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
raasonahle assurance regarding the reliahility of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial stalements for external purposes in accordance with gencrally accepied accounting principles. A
Company's imernal financial control over financial reperting includes those policies and procedures thal
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or imely detection of unauthensed acquisibion, use, or
dizposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind A5 financial statements.

24/05/2019

163



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matenial misstatements doe o emor
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls aver financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contral
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal fnancial controls over financial reporling were operaling
cffectively as at 31° March, 2019, based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Ciuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For TUKARAM & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Regn. Mo 0044365

Oedan

HRAJENDER REDDY K
Pariner
Membership Mo 231834

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24052009
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SUVEN PHARMACELITICALS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019
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For and on behalf of de Boand of Directors of
Suven Pharmaceuticais Limited




SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period from Gth Nowember, 2018 to 313t March, 2019

[AL gervawints i Indian Rupees, bhless stherwise stoted)
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For TUKARAM E COLLP
Chartersd Accountants
Firm reghutration numiber: 0084365

Rajender Reddy K
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ACCOUNTANTS *
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Staterment of changes in equity for the period from Gth November, 2018 to 315t March, 2019
(AN amownts b indian Rupeés, undéds oBherwiie fhated)

a. Eguity share capital

Particulars mﬂ %qiﬂ“
Opening Balarce =
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This is the Statement of Changas in Equity referred &0 in our report of even date

For TURARAM E OO LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: D044365
o

CR‘#E(—'
Rajender Reddy &
Partner

Membership No. 231834

Place ; Hyderabad
Dabe © 2ath May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors of
Saeen Pharmaceuticals Limited

Din: GO30062E
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SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Seavernent of Cash flows for the period from Eth Nevemnber, 2018 1o 335t March, 2019
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SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Nates to the financial statements

Note 1: Company overview

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited is a bio-pharmaceutical company, incorporated on 06th
November 2018 with object of the Development and manufacturing of Intermediates,
Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients [APl), Specialty Chemicals and formulated drugs under
Contract Research and Manufacturing Services (CRAMS) for global pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and chemical companies,

Note 2: Significant accounting policies
A). Basis of preparation
{I) Compliance with IND AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') (to the extent notified) and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policics have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use

[ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:
* certain financial assets are measured either at fair value or at amortised cost
depending on the classification
=  employee defined benefit assets/(liability) are recognised as the net total of the fair
value of plan assets, plus actuarial losses, less actuarial gains and the present value
of the defined benefit obligation; and
# Share-based payments which are measured at fair value of the options

B). Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

+ Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpase of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.




SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements

A liability is eurrent when:
¢ |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
« |t is held primarily for the purpose of trading
# Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
& There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement af the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liahilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in Cash and Cash equivalents. The Company has identified twetve months as its

operating cycle.

C). Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been
identified as being the Chief Operating Decision Maker.

D). Foreign currency trans'ation
{i} Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary aconomic environment in which the entity operates (the functional
eurrency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is
Company's functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curréncies at year eand
exchange rates are generally recognisad in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity
if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and gualifying net investment hedges or
are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. A monetary
item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur ir the foreseeable
future is considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that foreign operation.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non- monetary assets and
liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FWOC! are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

e L /O
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E). Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer

the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset

or liahility.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

= Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whale) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liahility and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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F). Revenue recognition
The Company earns revenue primarily from sale of New Chemical Entity (MCE) based
Intermediates, Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API) Speciality chemicals and formulated

drugs under contract research and manufacturing services.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those products or services. To recognize revenues, we apply the following five
step approach:

{1} identify the contract with a customer,

(2) identify the performance obligations in the contract,

(3) determine the transaction price,

(4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and
(5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract inception, the Company assesses its promise to transfer products or services to a
customer to identify separate performance obligations. The Company applies judgement to
determine whether each product or services promised to a customer are capable of being
distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised product or
services are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. The Company
allocates the arrangement consideration to separately identifiable performance abligation
based on their relative stand-alone selling price or residual methad. Stand-alone selling
prices are determined based on sale prices for the components when it is regularly sold
separately, in cases where the Company s unable to determine the stand-alone selling
price, the Company uses third-party prices for similar deliverables or the company uses
expected cost plus margin approach in estimating the stand-alone selling price.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to

receive in exchange for those products or services.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 from its date of Incorporation
which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and
when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue. The Company has
adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect methad. The effect of initially applying this
standard is recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). The standard is
applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial
application and the comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not
restated — i.e. the comparative information continues to be reported under Ind A5 18.

G). Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonahble

assurance that the grant will be recelved and the company will comply with all attached
conditions.
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Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate

and presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liakilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

The benefit of Gavernment loan at a below rmarket rate of interest is treated as Government
grant , measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of loan
based on prevalling market Interest rates.

H). Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax lossas.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management pericdically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differances
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax

liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
tempaorary differences and losses,

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries and branches where the company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries and branches where it is not probable
that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offsat and intends gither to settle on a net hasis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneoushy.

Current and deferred tax Is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Dividend distribution tax arising out of payment of dividends to shareholders under the
Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for the Company and all such
taxes are recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part of the associated dividend
payment.

1}, Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

l). Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, hignly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
lass that are readily convertible to known amounts of eash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

K). Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

L). Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work-in-progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the

lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials comprise of cost of purchase,
Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also includes all
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs
are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of first-in-first-out basis, Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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M).Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's [CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those fram
other assets or Company of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a
period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth yvear,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised In the statement of profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU
{or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss Is recognised. Impairment losses relating
to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.




I L /6

SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee is measured by comparing the
tecaverable amount of investment with its carrying amount. An inparment loss is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, and reversed if there has been a favorable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

N). Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
senefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliak!e estimate can be made of Lthe
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset, bul only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating
1o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimheveement,

if the affect af the time value of money is material, provisions are discounied using a
currant pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate. the risks specific to the Hability, When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised a5
a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

» apresent obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

s 3 present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;

s 3 possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probahility of outflow of
FESOUFCes is remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to pasties fu-
completion of assets.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, santingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of ecancmic benafi
ts will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in wiich the change
QECUrS.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

0). Investments and other financial assets

i) Classitication
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following meaturemen! categories:

# those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
= Lhose measured at amortised cost.
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The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gaing and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
ather comprehensive incame. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments in eguity instruments, this
will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model
for managing thosc assets changes.

il) Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a inancial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three

measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost
and 5 not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’' cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FYOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the
financial asset ic derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/{losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest
rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FWVOC! are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that 15 subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of
profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income.
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Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and lpsses to profit or loss, Dividends from such investments are recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in ather gain/(losses) in the statement of profit and loss. iImpairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
fraom other changes in fair value.

ili) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairmant
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 28 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind
AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

w) Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from the debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset te the pross carrying amount of a
financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

Dividends
Dividends are recopnised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow

to the company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Royalty
Royalty income is recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the royalty will flow te
the company, and the amount of the royalty can be measured reliably.
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P). Financial liahilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company's financial liahilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Leans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amartisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial puarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the abligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Q). Derivatives and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
inte and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting

period.
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R). Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance shest
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basiz or realize the azset and settle the liability simultaneausly.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

5). Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical eost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
repoarting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight-line basis at the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.
The company follows the policy of charging depreciation on pro-rata basis on the assets
acquired or disposed of during the year.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reparting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written dewn immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in Statement of profit or loss when the assets are derecognised.

Estimated useful life :

- Factory buildings 25 - 30 years
- Roads 3-10 years
- Machinery 8- 20vyears
- Furniture, fittings and equipment 3= 10 years
= Vehicles 8- 10vyears

T). Intangible assets

(i) Computer software
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Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

— itis technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use

-  management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

— there is an ability to use or sell the software

- it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic

benefits
- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and

to use or sell the software are available and;
- the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably

measured

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software include employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalized development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortized from the
point at which the asset is available for use.

{il) Amortization methods and periods

Intangible assets with finite wseful live are amortized over their respective individual
estimated useful lives (3-10 years in case of computer software’s) on a straight line basis.

{iii) Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria in (i)
above are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as an expense are not recognised as an asset in the subsequent period.

Estimated useful life :
Software 3- 10 years

U). Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company pricr ta
the end of financial vear which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest method.

s . .
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V). Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferrad until the
draw down occurs. Te the extent there is no evidence that it is probabie that some or all the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liguidity services and
amortized aver the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liabikity that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in profit or loss as other gains/ (losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an uncanditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting-pericd. Where
there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term laan arrangement on or before the
end of the reporting pariod with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on
the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as consequence of the breach.

W).Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their

intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for

capitalization.
Other borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

X). Employea benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employes benefit obligations in the
balance sheet.
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(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method. The benefit are discounted using the market yields at the end
of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligations. Remeasurements as a result of the experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur,

(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and

{b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or assets recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
and gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation at the end
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
caleulated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation. The benefits which are denominated in currency other than INR, the
cash flows are discounted wsing market yields determined by reference to high-guality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the current in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes
in equity and in the balance sheet.
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from pian
amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost.

Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered funds as per iocal
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plaps and the
contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is availabie.

{iw]) Bonus plans

The group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses. The group recognices a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation,

(v) Share-based payments
Shared-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Suven Employes

Stock Option Scheme -2004

Employee Options:

The fair value of aptions granted under the Suven Employee Stock Option Scheme -2004 is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference 1o the fair value of the options
granted.

- including any market performance conditions (eg. the entity's share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions(
eg. profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity for a
specified time period and;

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (eg. the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a specific time period)

The total expense 15 recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

¥). Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e,, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value
or as financial assets measured at amortised cost,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad

categories:

= Financial assets at fair value
+ Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in
the statement of profit and less (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognised in other
comprehensive income (ie. fair value through other comprehensive income).

A financial assat that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net
of any write down for impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit
or loss under the fair value option

* Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the
financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes).

s (Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amaunt outstanding.

s A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income unless the asset is designated at fair value
through profit or loss under the fair value option

* Business model test: The financial asset Is held within a business model whase
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

s Cazh flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortised cost er fair
value through other comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value
through profit or loss il doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measuremant or
recognition inconsistency [sometimes referred to as an "accounting mismatch’) that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value thraugh profit or loss.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial
recognition to measure it at fair value through other comprehensive income with only
dividend income recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the company’s
statement of financial position) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

# The Company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

When the Company 5Gas transferred its rights to roceive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into 3 pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it hac neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recagnise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s

continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and abligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Investments in units of mutual funds

In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values represent net asset value as stated
by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published statements. Net asset values
represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and the
price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

Accordingly, such net asset values are analogous to fair market value with respect to these
investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such prices between
investars and the issuers of these units of mutual funds

Z). Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

AA) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized
and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period
but not distributed at the end of the repeorting period.

AB) Earning per share

(i} Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

« The profit attributable to owners of the company
« By the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury

shares.
(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings
per share to take into account:

» The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

+ The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been
putstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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AC) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the direct method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, financing activities of the

company are segregated.
AD) Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest rupees as per the requirements of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

AE) Critical estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results, Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies.

This nate provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates
and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed
information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the

financial statements.

The areas involving eritical estimates or judgements are:

1. Estimation of current tax expense and payable

2, Estimated Useful life of Depreciable assets [ intangible assets
3. Estimation of defined benefit obligation

4, Recognition of revenue

5. Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward losses
6. Recoverability of advances/receivable

7. Evaluation of indicators for Impairment of assets

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

Recent accounting pronouncements
Effective date for application of the following amendments is annual period beginning on ar
after April 1, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of these amendments on

the financial statements.

Ind AS 116 - Leases :
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116

will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind A5 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The
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standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116
introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset
is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit &
Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2019. The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

+ Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS g
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

s Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying
the Standard recognized at the date of initial application

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and
the right of use asset either as:

* Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date,
but discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

= An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the

date of initial application.
Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.
ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments :

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C,
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the
determination of taxable profit {or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According
to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority
accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or
plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely
amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible metheds of transition —
i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied
retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8

- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using
hindsight and
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ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by
adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

Ind AS 12 - Income taxes:
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Carporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind
AS 12, ‘Income Taxes', in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax conseguences of
dividends in profit or loss, ather comprehensive income or equity according to where the
entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Ind A5 109- Prepayment features with Negative compensation :

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination
rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost or, depending on the business
maodel, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the casa of negative
compensation payments.

Ind AS 19 = Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19,
‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and
settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

« to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the
remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

+ to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement,
any reduction In a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of
the impact of the asset ceiling

Ind AS 23 — Barrowing Costs:
The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related
asset s ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an

entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

Ind AS 28 — Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures :
The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, to long-
term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the

assaclate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.

Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations and Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements :

The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify that when an entity
obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it re-measures previously held
interests in that business. The amendments to Ind AS 111 clarify that when an entity obtains
joint control of 3 business that is a joint operation, the entity does nol e
previously held interests in that business. :
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MNote 3: Cash and cash equivalents

[Particulars As at 31 March 2019
E;!am:es with banks
-in current accounts 82,826
Taotal cash and cash equivalents B2 826
Mote 4: Equity share capital and other equity
4{a) Equity share capltal
As at 31 March 2019
Authorised Capital
10,00,000 Equity shares of Re. 1 /- each 1,000,000
1,000,000
Iszued, Subscibed and fully paid up (Nos)
100000 Equity shares of Re. 1 /- each 100,000
100,000
4{a).1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the periad
As at 31 March 2019
Number Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the period 5
Add: Issued during the period 100,000 1040, 000
Qutstanding at the end of the period 100,000 100,000

a{a).2 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

Equity shares have a par value of Re.l. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and 10 share in
the proceeds of winding up the company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares

held.

Every halder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a

poll each share is entitled to one vote,

4(a).3 Shares of the Company held by ho'ding company

Particulars As at 31 March 2019
Suwen Life Sclences Limited

1,00,000 Equity shares of Re. 1/- each 100,000
4(a).4 Datails of shareholders holding more than 5% sharaes in the Company

A% at 31 March 2019
Particulars
Number of Shares | % of Holding
Suven Life Sciences Limited 100,000 100.00%]

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both lagal and

beneficial ownership of shares.

e 1 O 1
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4{b) Other Equity

[Particulars As at 31 March 2019
Securities premium =
General reserye 7
Retained earnings (220,359]
Total ather equity (220,359)

(i) Retained earning

[Particulars As at 31 March 2019

Opening balance 5
Wet profit/{Loss) for the peried (220,359)

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earning
- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax .

Closing balance (220,359)

Note 5: Financial liabilities
Particulars As at 31 March 2019
Unsecured loan - Mr Sunder Venkalraman 100,000

Total other current liabilities 100,000
Note 6:0ther current liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2019
Liahility for expenses 103,185

Total other current liabilities 103,185
MNote 7: Finance costs

For the Period from
Particulars November 6, 2018 to
March 31, 2019
Interest on borrowings -
Bank Charges 80
Total Finance Costs 350
Note 8: Other expenses
For the Perlod from
Particulars November 6, 2018 to
March 31, 2019

ERa.te_r. & Taxes 5,185
Payments to Auditors
- As Audit Fees 100,000
Directors sitting fee 40,004
Depository Fees 62,580

General Expenses 11,800

Total Other Expenses 219,969
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Financial instruments and rick management
Note 9: Fair value measurements

Asat 31 March 2019

FUTPL | Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investmants - -
Trade Receivables -
Cash and Cath aquivalents - 82,820
Bank Balances . .
Total Financial Assets . 82,826
Financial Uabilitles
Borrawings 100,000
Trade Payables -
Capital creditors
Total Financlal Liabilities - 100,000
{1} Falr value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
{a] recagnised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial staterments. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company
has classified its financial Instruments inte the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each
level foliows underneath the table.

Financlal assets measured at falr value & Amortised cost [Notes|Level 1]Lovel 2] Level3 Total

As at March 31, 2019
|Flaancial azsets
Imeestments
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash equivalents 3 . - 82826 82,828
Bank Balances
Total Financial Assels - - 62,826 82,826

Financial liabilitles measured at amortised eost & Falr Value | Lavel 1[Level 2|  Level3 Tatal
As at March 31, 2019

(Einancial Ligbilities

Barrawings 5 . . 100,000 100,000

Trade Payables . .
Capital craditors : . a
Total Financial Liabilities . - 100,000 100,000
Lewel 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes Quoted prices taken from market.

Lewvel Z: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable far the asset
Level 3: Inputs are not bated an ohservable market datal unobservable inputs).
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Mote 10: Financial Risk management
The Company Sctivities sxposs it to market risk, Bouidity risk and crédit figk, This note explains the spurces of risk which the
Company is exposed 1o and how the Company manages the risk.

Risk Expasure arising from Measurement
] Ageing analysis Diversilicathon of
Credit risk Cath and cash equivalents ba
: Availability of
Liguidity risk Barrewings and other labilities R""ﬁ;‘ﬂ flow | < ommitted credit lines.
* | and borrowing facilities

The company's risk management ks carried out by the management. Company treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges
Fimaneial risk in close cocperation with thi compamy's operating units. The management provides written principhes for
overall risk management, as well as poliches covering spexific areas, such as credit risk and liquidity risk.

{A) Eredit Risk Management

Credit risk i the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations undér 3 financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. Crédit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of
creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks, Credit risk i controlled by analyring credit Bmits and creditworthingss of
customers on & continuous basts to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit.
Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk princlpally consist of cash and cash squivalents, bank
depasits and other financlal assets. None of the financial instrurnants of the Company result in material concentration of
credit risk.

ik Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk anses from cash and cash sguivalents. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/ institutions are
accepied

There are ro such category of assets on which provision for expecied credit Ioiaes ta be recognived

18] Liquidity Risk:

Prudent kguidity ridk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate ameunt of committed credit facilities to meet abligations whan due and o close out markst
positions. Due ta dynamic nature of the underlying business, cOMpany treasury maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability wnder committed credit knes,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company's liquidity position{camprising the undrawn bofrowing facilivies
below] and cash and cash equivalenis on the basls of expected cash fows. This is generally earried out at local level in the
company in accordance with practice and limits set by the company. These limits vary by location to take into account the
lquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the company's liquidity management policy invohes
projecting cash flows in major currencles and considering the level of liquid assets necessary o meet these, monitading
balance sheet liquidity ratios agabnst internal and external regulatony réquirements and maintaining debt financing plant.

The table below summarises the matusity profile of the Company financial labilities based on contractual unditeounted
paymants.

|vear ended March 31, 2019 On Demand In next 12 months >1 ywar
Ll_u Barrowings 100,000 -
{ii] Otheer financial Rabibties - ‘
100,000 - -
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Market Risk - Interest Risk
The Company has avalled interest free loan fram its director Hence no cash flow interest risk will arises.

Foreign currency risk exposure
Since the company does not have any financial assets & financial labilties in terms of foreign currency , fareign currency
expoture a5 at the reperting date is Nil

Mate 11: Capital Managament

(2] Risk management ;
The Company™s objective when managing capital are 1o:
1. Safeguard their abllity to continue a5 3 golng concern, 5o that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and

benefits for other stakeholders, and
1. Maintain an aptimal eapital strueture to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
relurn capital to shareholders, ltus new shares or well assens to reduce debts

Consistent with athers In the industry, thi Company manitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio: -Met debt
(total barrowings net of cash and cash equivalonts) divided by total equity (as shown in the balance sheet]

As at 31 March, 2015

reet debit 17,174
Tatal Equity (120, 358)
|Ner debt to equity ratic -14.27%

Mote 12: Segment Information

5 the comparny o not have any business operations tll the reparting date, segrment reparting as per Ind AS 109 “Segment
Reporting” i not paovidid.

Maote 13: Related Party Transactions

|a) Holding Company 1 Suven Life Schences Limited

() ey Management parsonnal (KMP] My, Sunder Venkatraman (Director)
Mr. P. Subba Rao |Director)

{a}Parent entities
Place of Ownership Imterest as
e b Incorgoration | 3t 31st March 2019 |
Suven Life Sclences Limited immadinie and Ukimate panent India 100.00%
Entity
b |Borrowings taken from KMP
Az ot 31 March 2019
Opening Balance T
ADD:Taken during the year 100,000
Ctlosing Balnce 100,000
Balance outstand 100,000
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MNote 14: Contingent Liabilties Rs. Nil during current year

Mote 15: Capital Commitments
Estimated ampunt of confracts remabning to be executed on capital sccount are amounting to Rs. Nil net of capial

advandid

Mete 16: Earnings per share

31 March 2019
[Profit/Loss) after Tau (PAT) {220,358
|Weighted average number of equity shares 100,000
[Basic Earnings per share (2.20)

Nate:
There is ro dilution 1o the Basic Earnings per share as there are na dilutive potential equity shares

Mote 17 : Demerger Note

During the yeer under review, Your Board of Directors have considered and accepted the preposal of Suven Life Sciences
Ltd (5151} to acquire the entire share hobdings in the Company and your Company betame Wholly Owned Subsidiary of SLSL
on Sth February, 2019, As part of Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger] your Company was identified as Resulting Company.
Your Company's Board considered and decided subject 1o approval of NCLT snd other stakeholders that the SUSL shall
demerge CRAMS undertaking on & going concern bass to Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (SPL) through 3 Scheme of
Arrargerment bebween SUSL and SPL keeging in vigw th expected growth prospects in both CRAMS and Discovery business,
which shall nat only enable both the businesses to grow independenthy with their focused vision, strateghes and oparations,
but aka ecrtribute significantly towards unlocking the patential value of the businesses for the shareholders.

The cons.deration for the demerger chall Be issue of 1 (One) fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 1/- (Rupee One
ondy) sach of SPL for svery 1 {One) fully paid up equity share of face value of INR 1/- (Rupee One only) each held by each
shareholder in the Derserged Company (SLSL) 03 on the Record Date, thereby resulting in a miror shareholding of SL5L in
SpL.

Mobe 18: As this i the first year of incorporation, comparative figures of pravicus year are not applicable.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
A% per our report of even date

For TUKARAM & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charterad Accountants Suwen Pharmaceutstals Limited

Firm registration numbér; (084
“-IWI::-:QS_'
Partner

Membership No. 231834

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 24th May 2019

ey ]
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED
(DEMERGED COMPANY) AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 5 FEBRUARY 2019 PURSUANT TO
SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Board of Directors of Suven Life Sciences Limited in its meeting held on 5 February 2019
has considered and approved the draft Scheme of Arrangement between Suven Life Sciences
Limited (“Demerged Company” or “the Company”} and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
{“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme of
Arrangement”), under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules, inter-glia providing for
transfer and westing of the Contract Retearch and Manufacturing Services Undertaking

["CRAMS Undertaking”) of the Demerged Company in to the Resulting Company.

As per Section 232(2)(¢) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report adopted by the Board of
Directors explaining the effect of the Arrangement on each class of shareholders, key
managerial personnel, promoters and non-promaoter shareholders has to be appended with
the notice of the meeting of the shareholders and the creditors. Further, the said Report has

to lay out in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties,

The following is the Report taking into consideration the aforesaid provision:

1. Share Entitlement Ratio

1.1. For the Scheme of Arrangement, the Share Entitlement Ratio Report was obtained
from Mr. Ajay Kumar from PM/fs. Karvy & Co., Chartered Accountants who had
recommendad the fallowing ratio in their report dated 5 February 2019,

“1 (Qne) fully poid up Equity Share af INR 1/ (Rupee One Only) each of the Resulting
Company sholl be issued ond ollotted for every 1 {One) fully poid up equity shore of
INR 1/~ (Rupee One Cnly) each held in the Demerged Company™

Suven Life Sciences Limited

Regsstered Office: 8-2-334 | S5DE Serene Chambeers | Gih Floor | Read Mo S | Avenue 7
Barjara Hills | Hyderabad - $00 034 | Telangana | India | CIN ; L24TI0TGI98SPLO0OS TS
Tek 91 40 2354 11427 3311/ 3315 Fac: 1 40 2354 1152 Email: info@suven.com webshte: www.ouven.com

________________________________________________________ppyg |
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1.2, Para 1({A)(4)(a) of Annexure | to the SEBI Scheme Circular regarding submission of
Waluation Report from an Independent Chartered Accountant by the Company is not
applicable as there is no change in the shareholding pattern of the listed entity

(Demerged Company).

1.3. Fairness Opinion was also obtained from Ernst and Young Merchant Banking Services
Private Limited, an independent Merchant Banker, on the above-mentioned Share
Entitlement Ratio, who have provided in their report that the Share Entitlement Ratio

stated in the Scheme of Arrangement and as provided in the Report is fair.

2. Eff f 1] Ly - |

the Demerged Company

2.1. There is only one class of shareholder i.e. equity shareholders, which includes the
promoter as well as non-promaoter sharehalders of the Demerged Company,

2,2, On demerger, the shareholders of the Demerged Company would receive shares in
the Resulting Company i.e. Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (mirror shareholding)
whose name is recorded in the register of members on the Record Date, as per the
above mentioned share entitlement ratio.

2.3. The equity shares in the Resulting Company to be issued to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company shall be subject to the Scheme of Arrangement, and the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Resulting
Company, and shall rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Resulting
Company in all respects including for the purpose of any dividend declared after the
Scheme of Arrangement becomes effective.

2.4. There would be no dilution or increase in the sharehalding of the promoter or the

nan-promaotér sharehalders of the Demerged Company.

ﬂ? ..;‘.'::::-*x
)
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2.5. Further, the shareholders of the Demerged Company, classified as promoters and

public currently, receiving equity shares in the Resulting Company, upan demerger
would be classified as promoters and public in the same manner as that in the
Demerged Company and thus, the overall economic interest of equity shareholders
of the Demerged Company shall remain the same.

3.6. There would be no impact on the shareholders of the Demerged Company on
reduction of capital of the Resulting Company (the Scheme of Arrangement provides
for reduction of equity share capital of INR 1,00,000/- held by Demerged Company in

the Resulting Company).

3 ct of the Scheme on the

3.1. KMPs as shareholders of the Demerged Company
KEMPs who holds shares in the Demerged Company on the Record Date to be

announced would be alliotted shares in the Resulting Company on demerger.

3.2, KMP Kecuti f th i mpan
KMPs in relation to the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services Business

Undertaking of the Demerged Company would be transferred to the Resulting

Company pursuant to demerger on the same terms and conditions as pre-demerger.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
swm Life Sciences Limited

*%

Date: 05" February, 2019
Place: Hyderabad

Uenl:luma rlu Jasti
Chairman and CEQ

Suven Life Sciences Limited
Registered Office: B-2-334 | SDF Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road Mo 5 | Avenue 7
Barjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | india | CIM : L24N0TGIG9PLC009T12
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PHARMACEUTIC.
REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
(RESULTING COMPANY) AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 05™ FEBRUARY, 2019 PURSUANT TO
SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Board of Directors of Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited in its meeting held on 5 February
2019 has considered and approved the draft Scheme of Arrangement between Suven Life
Sciences Limited (the “Demerged Company”) and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (the
“Resulting Company” or "Company”] and their respective shareholders and creditors
(“Scheme of Arrangement”), under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules, inter-alia
providing for transfer and vesting of the Contract Research and Manufacturing Services
Undertaking ("CRAMS Undertaking™) of the Demerged Company in to the Resulting

Company,

As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report adopted by the Board of
Directors explaining the effect of the Arrangement on each class of shareholders, key
managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders has to be appended with
the notice of the meeting of the shareholders and the creditors. Further, the said Report has
to lay out in particular the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties.

The following is the Report taking into consideration the aforesaid provision:

1. Share Entitlement Ratio

1.1. For the Scheme of Arrangement, the Share Entitlement Ratio Report was obtained
from Mr. Ajay Kumar from M/s. Karvy & Co., Chartered Accountants who had

recommended the following ratio in their report dated 5 February 2019.

“1 {One} fully poid up Equity Share of INR 1/~ (Rupee One Only) each of the Resulting
Cornpany shall be issued and allotted for every 1 (One) fully paid up equity share of
INR 1/- (Rupee One Only) each held in the Demerged Company”

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
hﬂil-'l.l-ﬂd Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road MNo.5
HAwenise T | Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - S00 034 | Telangana | India | CIN @ U24295TG20MBPLCLZEIT 1
Tel: 91 40 2354 3311 | Faoc 91 40 2354 1152 | Email: infodzuven.com
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1.2.In terms of Para 1[A)4)(a) of Annexure | of the SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, submission of Valuation Report from
an Independent Chartered Accountant is not applicable as there is no change in the

shareholding pattern of the listed entity (Demerged Company).

1.3. Fairness Opinion was also obtained from Ernst and Young Merchant Banking Services
Private Limited, an independent Merchant Banker, on the above-mentioned Share
Entitlement Ratio, who have provided in their report that the Share Entitlement Ratio
stated in the Scheme of Arrangement and as provided in the Report is fair.

2. Effect of the Sche

2.1. There iz anly one class of sharshalder i.e. equity shareholders,

2.2. The entire paid-up share capital of Resulting Company is held by Demerged Company
and its nominees. The Resulting Company does not have non-promoter shareholders.

2.3. Upon the Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective, the existing equity shares of
the Resulting Company, held by the Demerged Company along with its nominees shall
stand cancelled as enshrined in Clause 8 of the Scheme of Arrangement.

2.4. On demerger, the shareholders of the Demerged Company would receive shares in
the Resulting Company i.e. Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (mirror shareholding)
whaose name is recorded in the register of members on the Record Date, as per the
above mentioned share entitlement ratio.

2.5, The equity shares in the Resulting Company to be issued to the sharehdiders of the
Demerged Company shall be subject to the Scheme of Arrangement, and the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Resulting
Company, and shall rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Resulting
Company in all respects including for the purpose of any dividend declared after the

Scheme of Arrangement becomes effective.

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

Registered Office: 8-2-334 | 5DE Serene Chambers | Gth Floor | Road No.5 5
Awenue 7 | Banjars Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN | UZ4299TG20MBPLCIZETM
Tel: 91 40 2354 13111 Faxc 91 40 2354 1152 | Email: info@onen.com
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2.6. Further, the shareholders of the Demerged Company, classified as promoters and
public currently, receiving equity shares in the Resulting Company, upon demerger
would be classified as promoters and public in the same manner as that in the
Demerged Company, and thus, the overall economic interest of equity sharehalders
of the Demerged Company shall remain the same.

2.7. There would be no impact on the shareholders of the Demerged Company on
reduction of capital of the Resulting Company (the Scheme of Arrangement provides
for reduction of equity share capital of INR 1,00,000/- held by Demerged Company in

the Resulting Company).

3. nagerial Person (KMP) of the Resulti mpa

The Resulting Company does not have KMP.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Suwen Pharmaceuticals Limited

Date: 05" February, 2019
Place: Hyderabad

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited
i Office; B-2-1%4 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road Bo S 3
Awerue T | Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | Indiia | CIN ; U24233TG20MBPLCIZENTI
Tal: 91 40 2354 3317 1 Faec 91 40 2354 1152 | Email: infolguwen.com
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SUVEN
PHARMACEUTICALS

This is a disclosure document preparcd in connection with the proposed Scheme of Arrangement
involving Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (the “Company™ or *SPL" or “Resulting Company™), Suven
Life Seiences Limited (“SLSL™ or “Demerged Company™) and their respective shareholders and
creditors under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme™).

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS 6 PAGES, PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE
RECEIVED ALL THE PAGES. NO EQUITY SHARES ARE PROFOSED TO BE SOLD OR
OFFERED PURSUANT TO THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

This document is prepared to comply with the requirement of Regulation 37 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with
SEBI Circular No. CFIVDILY/CIR2017/21 dated March 10, 2007 and in accordance with the disclosures
regpuired to be made in format specified for Abridged Prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule V1
of the Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requiremenis)
Regulations, 2018, to the extent applicable. |
You may download the Scheme & other relevant documents from the webhsites of SLSL and BSE Limited
& National Stock Exchange of India Limited where the equity shares of SLSL are listed (“Stock
Exchanges™); vie: www.suven.com; www hseindia.com; and www.nseindia.com respectively.

[ "This Disclosure Document dated 9th August, 2019 should be read together with the Scheme and the |
Motice to the shareholders of SLSL. |

SUVEN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Registered Office and Corporate | Door Mo, 8-2-334, 6™ Fleor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road Mo, 5,

Office: | Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hvderabad, Telangana - 500034,
Contact | Mr. K. Hanumantha Koo Telephone: +0]-40-23549414

Person: |

E-mail: | investorservices/asuven com | Wehsite: | www. suven.com | CIN: I L24200TG2018PLCI28171

[ NAME OF PROMOTER OF THE COMPANY Ty - ]
Suven Life Sciences Limited (CIN: L24110T G989 LCO0YTLS)

_ ] SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE
Scheme Details: |

SLSL is a bio-pharmaceutical Company, incorperated on March 9, 1989 under the Companies Act., 1956 under |
the name of Suven Pharmaceuticals Private Limited and it became a public limited company with effect from
| January 4, 1995 and the name was changed w Suven Life Sciences Limited on September 20, 2003,

|
SLSL has two business divisions:

{i} Contreact Research and Manufacturing Services
(i) Discovery or Research & Development

| Contract Research and Manufacturing Services ("CRAMS™): CRAMS division is engaged in development and |

| manufacturing of New Chemical Entity ("NCE™) based imermediates, Active Pharmaceutical Ingrediems

[ (“API7), Specialty Chemicals and Formulated Drugs for global pharmaceutical, biotechnology and chemical
companies,

Page 1 of 6
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‘_]Jisun\-l:r}' or Research & Development (“Discovery Research™): Diseovery Research division focuses on
discovering. developing and commercializing novel pharmaceuticals products for CMNS (Central Nervous
System) therapies wsing G-Protein Coupled Receptors (G-PCR) nargets for the weatmenmt of cognitive
impairment nssociated with Neurodegenerative Disorders like Alzheimer’s disease, Attention Deficient

Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD), Huntington's disease, Parkinson and Schizophrenia, Major Depressive
Disorders (MDD) and sleep disorders like Narcolepsy ete,

SPL was incorporated on November 6, 201 8. The entire share capital of 3PL was acquired by SLSL on February

5, 2019 pursuant to which SPL became a wholly owned subsidiary of SLSL. SPL is incorporated with an object

toengage in the busingss of the development and manufacturing of Mew Chemical Entities based intermediates,

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients, specialty chemicals and manufacturing services for global pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and chemical companies.

The Board of Direclors of SLSL and SPL believe that the risk and reward associated with each of the aforesaid
husiness divisions are different and accordingly decided o segregate the CRAMS business and Discovery
Research business of SLSL by formulating a Scheme of Armangement to demerge the CRAMS business on a
mofng concern basis into SPL.

This demerger would facilitale focus growth, operational efficiency. business synergies and inercased
operational and customer focus in relation o CRAMS and Discovery Research businesses. For further details,
please refer 1o the Scheme.

Listing:

Upan the Scheme becoming ¢ffective, SPL shall allot 1 (One) fully paid up equity share of face value Rs.1/-
{Hupee One only) each for every 1 (One) fully paid up equity share of face value Bs. 15 (Rupee One only) each
held in SLSL. The equity shares of SPL so allotted to the sharcholders of SLSL would be listed on the Stock
Exchanges.

| Procedure:
Sharcholders of the SLSL are not required (o follow any procedure in relation to the proposed issuance of equily

 shares in 1he Company pursuant to the Scheme.

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE
The eligibility criteria of Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2008 relating to mitial public affering of shares are not apphcable 1o SPL.

INDICATIVE TIMETABLE
Ihe listing of the equity shares of the Company shall be subject 1o shareholder’s approval of the Scheme, NCLT
Order, SEBI exemption under 1923b) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and listing & |
trading approval from the Stock Exchanges, |

GENERAL RISKS
Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk. Specific attention of the
shareholders are invited 1o the section titled “Risk Factors™ of this Disclosure Document and the Information
Memorandum to be issued by the Company for listing of the equity shares in compliance with BSE Observation
Letter no. DCSAMALBARITNA60/2019-20 dated April 11, 2009 read with the SEBI circular no.
CFDDILYCIR2017/21 dated March 10, 2017,

NAME OF THE STATUTORY | M/s. Tukaram & Co. LLP (Firm's Registration No. 0044365)
AUDITOR .

Page 2 of 6
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The Fromoter of the Company is Suven Life Sciences Limited (SLSL or Demerged Company). SLSL was
incorporated on March 9,1989, a company registered under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 with CIN
L2341 10TGI989PLCO09713 and having its Registered Office at Door Mo. 8-2-334, Gth Floor, SDE Serenc
Chambers, Road No. 3, Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034, Telangana. The equity shares of the
SL5L are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.

SLSL is a pharmaceutical research expent that leverages its innovation capability to undertake NCE based
CRAMS projects involving discovery and development of molecules for innovator companies. The Company”s
expertise in process rescarch, custom synthesis and NCE development support services has eamed it the respect
of global pharmaceutical companies.

SLSL is headquartered in Hyderabad, Telangana with its R&D facilities in Hyderabad and Sanga Reddy and
three manufacturing locations in Sanga Reddy, Suryapet and Visakhapatnam. Suven has a 950+ member team:
its 400+ member strong R& D team comprises of 35 Phids and works in the rescarch-intensive areas of analytical
development, drug discovery, process R&D and formulations development.

1
| Currently, entire share capital of the Company is held by SLSL. Post demerger, the shareholders of the SLSL
a5 on the record date would become sharehalders of the SPL. Accordingly, the promaters of S1.SL shall become
|_the promoters of the Company. l

| (HE BUSINESS MODEL/BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

| Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited ("SPL7) a wholly owned subsidiary of SLSL is incorporated with an object to
engage in the business of the development and manufacturing of new chemical entities based intermediates,
active pharmaceutical ingredients, specialty chemicals and manufacturing services for global pharmaceutical, j

biotechnology and chemical companies.

Upon sanction of order from the NCLT and Scheme of Arrangement becoming effective, the tangible &
intangible assets, liabilities and employees pertaining to the CRAMS division of SLSL shall be transferred to
the SPL on a going comcern basis. This would also inclede all brand names, trademarks, drug master files, trade |
names, labels, patents and domain names, designs, software and computer programmes, databases, copyrights, |
trade secrets and other intellectual property and all other interests exclusively relating to the goods or services |
being used by the SLSL in the business, activities and operations pertaining to its CRAMS division, For further |
details, please refer to the Scheme of Arrangement. |

Strategy '
The strategy of the management is to facilitate growth, operational efficiency, business synergies and increased

| operational and customer focus in relation to CRAMS business demerged into SPL. The key business strategy

| of SPL will be to focus on:

s NCE based pharmaceuiical research solutions 1o global customers for development of key
Iniermediates/ Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients {APIs) during clinical rescarch stage, leading to contract '
manufacturing operations from clinical development stage to commercial operations. |

= Development and manufacturing of specialty chemicals for non-pharmaceutical application for global
Cuslomers.

e Development of niche Abbreviated New Drug Applications (ANDA) leading to manufacturing and supply
of generic product for global market.

»  Providing Contract Technical Services (CTC) for global pharmaceutical and biotechnology companics.

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

Registered Office: B-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | Gth Floor | Road Mo S

Avenue T | Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangsna | India | CIN : U24299TG2NSPLCIZEITT
Ted: 91 40 2354 3301 | Faue 91 40 2354 1152 | Email info@suvwen.oom

I 205




SUVEN
PHARMACEUTICALS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sr. Name Designation | Experience including current/past position held in other firms
Mo
1 Mr. Govind Director | Mr. Prasad is a Chartered Accountant, has been a career banker for
Prasad Dasu over 33 years having expertise in trade finance. intemnational finance,
merchant banking, corporate strategies, M&A, loan syndications, ¢te.
[ He has worked with Canara Bank and Exim Bank.
| 2. Mr. Sunder Director Mr. Sunder Venkatraman is the Vice President-Corporate AlTairs of
Venkatraman SLSL having 34 years of varied experience in Finance, Accounts,
Audit, Taxation, Information Technology and Clinical Research. He
is 2 Cerlified Management Accountant from The Institute of
Management Accountants, USA, Associate Member of The Institute
of Cost Accountants of India and Centified Management Consultant
from Institute of Management Consultants of India, |
1. Mr. Subba Rao Director | Mr. Subba Rao Parupally is the Chief Financial Officer of SLSL and
Parupally is responsible for overseeing Accounting and Financial matters, in
relation to the Company. He is a qualified Cost and Management
Accountant (CMA) from the Institute of Cost and Works Accountants
of India. He has got vast experience of 38 years which includes
Finance, Costing, Banking, etc. from  various  prominent
| Chganizations like Standard Organics Lid, Subsidiaries of Dr
| Reddy's Laboratories I,

| ~ OBJECTS OF THE SCHEME ]

The demerger, wransfer and vesting of the CRAMS division on a going concern basis 1o SPL would result in better
and efficien comtrol of the segregated CRAMS and Discovery Research businesses in two separate companies.
For further details, please refer to the Scheme of Arrangement.

DETAILS AND REASONS FOR NON-DEPLOYMENT OR DELAY IN DEFLOYMENT OF
PROCEEDS OR CHANGES IN UTILIZATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS OF PAST PUBLIC
ISSUFS/RIGHTS ISSUES, IF ANY, OF THE RESULTING COMPANY IN THE PRECEDING 10
YEARS
Mot Applicable

[ NAME OF MONITORING AGENCY, IF ANY [ Not Applicable ]
TERMS OF ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE SECURITY, | Mot Applicable
IF ANY
| PRE-SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN il
L Sr. Particulars Mumber of shares %% holding of Pre-Scheme
M.
| Promoter amd Promoter Group 101, M0 104000
[ a |Suven Life Sciences Limited 99,994 99.994%
| {(SLSL)
_b. | Subba Rao Parupalli* I 0.001%
¢ | Lakshmana Rao Veeramachaneni® |

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

Registered Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floar | Road No S
Avenie 7| Banjara Hills | Hyderabad - 500 034 | Telangana | india | 1N : U24299TG2018PLE128ITY
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[ d. ] Jahnavi Korrapati® 1 0.001%
[ e | Srinivas Varadarajan Katragadda® 1 0.001%
| f. | Lakshmana Rao Pothuneedi* 1 (.00 1%
| g | Subbareddy Venkat Singi* 1 0.001%
| 2 Public - -

| Total 104,000 104100

* Holds shares as o nominee of Stven Life Sclences Limited (SLSL)

| STANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIALS |

The standalone Audited Financial Information (Ind-AS) of Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited (SPL) from the date

of incorporation till March 31, 2019 is provided below:
{Rs. In Lakhs except per share daia)

| Sr.No Particulars Amount

: 1. Total ncome from operations {net) ) NIL
2 Met Profit / (Loss) before tax and extraordinary items =2.20
3. Net Profit / (Laoss) after tax and extraordinary ilems -2.20
4, Equity Share Capital 1.0}
5. Reserves and Surplus -2.20
6. Met worth -1.20
7. Basic & Diluted'carmings per share -2.20
8. | Returm on net worth (%) MNA

[ 9, hiet assen value per Share' -1.20

Please note:

I. Basic & Diluted carnings per share is computed by dividing the profit for the year after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

2. Return on net worth (%) is computed by dividing the net profit afier tax by the net worth as on March 31.
2019.

3. Met asset value per share is computed by dividing the nel worth by the outstanding number of equity

shares as on March 31, 2019.

The Company is in losses and having negative net worth,

Mo financials are available for preceding vears as the Company was incorporated on November 6, 2018,

Consolidated financial statements are not required o be prepaned,

oo s

L'E INTERNAL RISK FACTORS |

13 The Company has been recently incorporated with an objective 10 engage in the business of the development
and manufacturing of new chemical entities based intermediates, active pharmaccutical ingredients,
specially chemicals and manufacturing services for global pharmaceutical, biotechnology and chemical
companies. Currently, the Company does not have any business operations. post the demerger and transfer
of the CRAMS division into the Company, the Company would face all the risks that are associated with
that business, resources, management, existing as well potential litigations e1c.

2y Specific atention of the shareholders is invited 1o the section titled “Risk Faciors™ in the Information
Memorandum to be issued by the Company in compliance with BSE Observation Lemer no.
DCS/AMAL/BARIT 1460201920 dated April 11, 2019 read with the SEBI circular no.
CFIVDILICIRZ017/21 dated March 10, 2017,

Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

Reglstered Orffice: 8-2.334 | SBE Serene Charmbers | 6h Floor | Rosd Nos
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[ SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION |

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against the company and amount involved- NIL

B. Brief details of top 3 material outstanding litigations against the company and amount involved

NATURE OF LITGATION MO, OF CASES AMOUNT INVOLVED (IN
INI)
Civil proceedings MIL MIL
Criminal proceedings NIL MIL
Tax matters NIL MIL
Labour NIL MIL

C. Regulatory Action, if any. disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters/Group
companies in last § financial years including outstanding action. if any - No regulatory/ disciplinary action
taken/ owistanding. However, a show cause notice has been received by SLSL from SEBI, in relation to
Clause 4 of the Minimum Standards for Code of Conduct 1o regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders
as specified in Schedule B read with Regulation 9(1) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation,
2015, against which the Company (SLSL) is representing the matter through its advocates.

D.  Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters - NIL

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
NIL

| DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the guidelines/regulations issued
by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the SEBL established under Section 3 of the
SEBI Act, 1992 as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in this disclosure document
is contrary 10 the provigions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Act. 1992 or rules made or guidelines or
regulations issued there under, as the case may be. We funther centify that all statements in the disclosure document
is true and cormect.

For Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited

Dare: 9 August 20019
Place: Hyderabad

Page 6 of &
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IN THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL BENCH AT HYDERABAD
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA) NO.178/230/HDB/2019

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules

and

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Suven Life Sciences Limited, (“Demerged Company”)
and Suven Pharmaceuticals Limited, (“Resulting Company”) and their respective Shareholders and
Creditors

Suven Life Sciences Limited, A company
incorporated under the provisions of Companies
Act, 1956 with CIN: L24110TG1989PLC009713
and having its registered office at Door No. 8-2-
334, 6" Floor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road No.
5,Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034,
Telangagna | ... First Applicant Company/ Demerged Company

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

PROXY FORM

[as per Form No. MGT-11 and Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s)

Registered Address

Email Id

Folio No. / Client ID* DP ID*

*Applicable in case shares are held in electronic form.

I/We, being the member(s) of shares of Suven Life Sciences Limited, hereby appoint

1 Name

Address
E-mail Id

Sighature
or failing him/her

2 Name

Address
E-mail Id

Signature

or failing him/her

3 Name

Address

E-mail Id Sighature

ey ]



as my/ our proxy to attend and vote for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the National Company Law Tribunal
convened Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company to be held on Friday, the 20th day of
September, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. IST at the KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh
Chambers of Commerce & Industry [FTAPCCI], 11-6-841, Red Hills, Hyderabad — 500004, Telangana, India, at
such Meeting and any adjournment or adjournments thereof, in respect of such resolution(s) as indicated below:

Resolution For Against

To consider and if thought fit, approve the Scheme of Arrangement between
Suven Life Sciences Limited (Demerged Company) and Suven Pharmaceuticals
Limited (Resulting Company) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors
(“Scheme of Arrangement”) under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rules made thereunder

Signedthis____ day of 2019.

Signature of Shareholder(s):

Please affix
Revenue
Stamp of

Rs. 1/-

Signature of Proxy holder(s):

Notes:

1. The form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company at Door No. 8-2-334,
6th Floor, SDE Serene Chambers, Road No. 5,Avenue 7, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034, Telangana, at
least 48 (Forty Eight) hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of the said Meeting.

2. Ifyou are a body corporate, as the equity shareholder, a copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or the
Governing Body authorizing such a person to act as its representative/proxy at the Meeting and certified to be
a true copy by a director, the manager, the secretary or any other authorised officer of such Body Corporate
should be lodged with the Demerged Company at its Registered Office not later the 48 (Forty Eight) hours
before the Meeting.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of shareholders not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Demerged Company carrying voting rights. A shareholder
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Demerged Company carrying voting rights may appoint
a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialled.
Please affix appropriate revenue stamp before putting signatures.
In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.

Proxy need not be shareholder of the Demerged Company.

© N o g &

No person shall be appointed as Proxy who is a minor.
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(’ Life Sciences
SUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

Registered Office: 8-2-334 | SDE Serene Chambers | 6th Floor | Road No.5 | Avenue 7
Banjara Hills | Hyderabad — 500 034 | Telangana | India | CIN: L24110TG1989PLC009713
Tel: 91 40 2354 1142/ 3311 Fax: 91 40 2354 1152 Email: info@suven.com website: www.suven.com

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
ATTENDANCE SLIP
PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS ON FRIDAY, THE 20™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019 AT 3:00 PMIST

Sr. No.

Folio No/Client ID DP ID

No. of Shares

Name and Address
of the Equity
Shareholder(s)

Name and address
of Proxy**

*Applicable in case shares are held in electronic form
** *To be filled in by the Proxy in case he/she attends instead of the Equity Shareholder

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Meeting of Equity Shareholder(s) of Suven Life Sciences Limited
convened pursuant to the order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal dated 14 August, 2019 at the KLN Prasad
Auditorium, The Federation of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce & Industry [FTAPCCI], 11-
6-841, Red Hills, Hyderabad — 500004, Telangana, on Friday, the 20th day of September, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. IST

Signature of the Equity shareholder/ Authorized Representative:

Signature of the Proxy Holder:

Notes:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Equity Shareholder/ Proxy Holder/ Authorized Representative wishing to attend the Meeting should bring the
attendance slip to the Meeting and hand over at the entrance of the venue of the Meeting duly signed.

Equity Shareholder/ Proxy Holder/Authorized Representative desiring to attend the Meeting is requested to
bring his/ her copy of Notice for reference at the Meeting.

Equity Shareholder who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP ID for
easy identification of attendance at the Meeting.

Equity Shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who
is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.
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